A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER,
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29
3TN on THURSDAY, 15 DECEMBER 2005 at 11:30 AM and you are

requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:-

APOLOGIES

MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on the
24™ November 2005.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or prejudicial
interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any Agenda
item. Please see Notes 1 and 2 below.

IMPLEMENTING ELECTRONIC GOVERNMENT STATEMENT 2005
(Pages 9 - 38)

To consider a report by the Head of Information Management seeking
approval for the content of the Council’s Implementing Electronic
Government (IEG) Statement 2005.

CALL CENTRE PERFORMANCE AND PROPOSED CHANGES TO
CALL HANDLING ARRANGEMENTS (Pages 39 - 44)

To consider a report by the Director of Commerce and Technology on
levels of performance achieved by the call centre in its first month of
operation and seeking approval for certain changes in call-handling
arrangements.

BLACK AND MINORITY ETHNIC (BME) HOUSING STRATEGY
(Pages 45 - 46)

To consider a report by the Head of Housing Services seeking
approval for the draft Black and Minority Ethnic Housing Strategy
2005/06.

(A copy of the Draft Strategy has been appended separately to the
agenda)

NUISANCE VEHICLES (Pages 47 - 54)

To consider a report by the Public Health Manager on powers from the
DVLA to remove untaxed vehicles from the public highway.

PUBLIC CONVENIENCES

Contact
(01480)

Mrs H Taylor
388008

C Hall
388116

D Oliver
388309

J Barrett
388203

J Allan
388281



10.

11.

12.

13.

(@) PUBLIC CONVENIENCES ADVISORY GROUP (Pages 55 -
58)

To consider the report of the meeting of the Public Conveniences
Advisory Group held on 24™ November 2005.

(o) PUBLIC CONVENIENCES - IMPROVEMENT PROPOSALS
(Pages 59 - 70)

To consider a report by the Head of Environment and Transport
detailing proposals for the improvement and ongoing
maintenance of town centre public conveniences.

HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION OFFICER: REQUEST FOR THE
RELEASE OF FUNDS (Pages 71 - 74)

By way of a report by the Head of Housing Services to consider a
request for the release of funding for a Homelessness Prevention
Officer post.

ALFRED HALL MEMORIAL FIELD/EYNESBURY ROVERS FC
DESIGN BRIEF (Pages 75 - 84)

To consider a report by the Planning Policy Manager requesting the
adoption of the revised design brief as Interim Planning Guidance.

RAMSEY CONSERVATION AREA, BOUNDARY REVIEW,
CHARACTER ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT PLAN
CONSULTATION DOCUMENTS (Pages 85 - 106)

To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services seeking
approval for consultation purposes of the draft Management Plan for
the Ramsey Conservation Area.

DEVELOPMENT BRIEF - THE GRAND CINEMA, RAMSEY (Pages
107 - 122)

With the assistance of a report by the Head of Planning Services, to
consider the outcome of consultations on the draft Development Brief
for the Grand Cinema, Ramsey.

RESIDIENTIAL DEVELOPMENT SITE, MOORHOUSE DRIVE,
HUNTINGDON (Pages 123 - 124)

To consider a report by the Heads of Housing Services and of Legal
and Estates regarding the disposal of Council-owned land at
Moorhouse Drive, Huntingdon.

THE COUNCIL'S SCHEME OF DELEGATION: INTERIM VARIATION
PENDING THE APPOINTMENT OF A DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE
AND TECHNOLOGY (Pages 125 - 126)

With the assistance of a report by the Head of Administration to
consider interim arrangements relating to the Council’s Scheme of
Delegation pending the recruitment of a replacement Director of
Commerce and Technology.

Ms C Deller
388007

C Allen
388380

S Plant
388240

M Huntington
388404

L Brown
388476

C Surfleet
388476

F Mastrandrea
388208
K Phillips
388260

Mr R Reeves
388003



14.

15.

16.

Notes

APPOINTMENTS PANEL

The Appointments Panel established by the Council on 18™ May 2005
comprises Councillors Baker, Davies, Rogers and Simpson, together
with the relevant Executive Councillor in relation to the post to be filled.
The remit of the Panel is to make recommendations to full Council on
the appointment of a Chief Executive and, subject to the Employment
Procedure Rules, to make appointments to Chief Officer and Heads of
Services posts.

In anticipation of the forthcoming vacancy in the post of Director of
Commerce and Technology, the Chief Executive will report on the
requirement for Cabinet to nominate an Executive Councillor to serve
on the Panel for this purpose.

EMPLOYMENT PANEL

To appoint an Executive Councillor as ex-officio Member of the
Employment Panel.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Arising from a review of Risk Management procedures, the Corporate
Governance Panel has recommended that a Cabinet member be
appointed Risk management “Champion”.

Dated this 7 day of December 2005
B«& N\u\%
-

Chief Executive

P Watkins
388002

P Watkins
388002

Mrs H Taylor
388008

A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent

than other people in the District —

(& the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, a

partner, relatives or close friends;

(b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any

company of which they are directors;

(c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of

securities exceeding the nominal value of £5,000; or

(d)  the Councillor's registerable financial and other interests.

A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has
knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member's personal
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor's judgement of

the public interest.




Please contact Mrs H Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Tel No. 01480 388008/e-
mail Helen.Taylor@huntsdc.gov.uk if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish
to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information on any
decision taken by the Cabinet.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the
Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website —
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy).

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports or
would like a large text version or an audio version please contact the
Democratic Services Manager and we will try to accommodate your needs.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting Administrator,
all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency exit and to make
their way to the base of the flagpole in the car park at the front of Pathfinder House.




Agenda Item

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the CABINET held in the Council
Chamber, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon PE29 3TN
on Thursday, 24 November 2005.

PRESENT: Councillor D P Holley — Chairman.

Councillors | C Bates, Mrs J Chandler,
N J Guyatt, A Hansard, Mrs P J Longford,
Mrs D C Reynolds, T V Rogers and
L M Simpson.

104. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 10™ November
2005 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

105. MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillors Bates and Guyatt declared personal interests in Minute
No. 118 by virtue of their membership of Cambridgeshire County
Council and the Development Control Panel respectively. Councillor
Guyatt also requested that it be recorded that his participation in
debate and voting would be undertaken without prejudice to the
consideration and/or determination of any relevant planning
application subsequently by the Development Control Panel.

Councillor Simpson declared a personal and prejudicial interest in
Minute No. 116 by virtue of his receipt of a pension from the
Cambridgeshire Constabulary and Councillor Bates declared a
personal and prejudicial interest in Minute No. 116 by virtue of his
membership on the Cambridgeshire Police Authority. Those
Councillors, who declared personal and prejudicial interests, left the
Chamber for the duration of discussion and voting on the respective
items of business.

106. FINANCIAL STRATEGY - UPDATE

Further to Minute No.05/60 and by way of a report by the Director of
Commerce and Technology (a copy of which is appended in the
Minute Book), the Cabinet were acquainted with issues likely to affect
the adoption of the Council’s strategy for managing its finances in the
period to 2011/12.

Having regard to the information contained in the report, the
uncertainty as to the future levels of Government grant, the
implications of possible changes to the grant formula and the ongoing
review of the Medium Term Plan, the Cabinet

RESOLVED
(@) that the Council be requested to defer a decision on

the Council’s Financial Strategy until the 22nd
February 2006 and to consider the Strategy in parallel



107.

with the budget and 2006/11 Medium Term Plan; and

(b) that a copy of the guidance to Officers on the
preparation of the Medium Term Plan be circulated for
information to all Members.

REVIEW OF COUNCIL BUDGET AND EXPENDITURE

A report by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Planning and Finance)
was submitted (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book)
which summarised the findings of a review by a working group into
the Council’s budget and expenditure

With regard to the Panel’s individual recommendations, Members
commented as follows:-

. that the distribution of a total spend analysis similar to Annex
A of the Panel's report would he helpful to Members and
could be supported;

. that the Cabinet already monitored the MTP closely with
specific approval required before each scheme in the
programme could proceed;

. that the recommended advice to officers on the formulation
of MTP bids mirrored Management Team instructions with
final consideration being given to individual proposals by the
Cabinet and Council;

. that future inflation levels were reviewed on an ongoing
basis and were incorporated in budget reports;
. that the Cabinet also currently favoured Option 3 in respect

of Council Tax increases, subject to the content of the final
grant settlement;

. that the Cabinet also supported early savings in the
Council's budget and the Overview and Scrutiny Panel
informed of the savings that had been achieved in the past
two years;

. that the Panel be informed that a decision on the operational
arrangements for the call centre had been made by the
Council and that the Cabinet could not support any change
in those arrangements

. that it was anticipated that efficiency savings would become
apparent as services transferred to the call centre and that
all vacant posts were evaluated to ensure that a need
existed for them to be fitted; and

. that the Cabinet did not support any consideration of
alternative funding strategies for leisure centres in the short
term.

In referring to the Panel's recommendation that a decision on
alternative office accommodation should not be taken in advance of
approval of the financial strategy, the Cabinet stressed that a decision
on the accommaodation could not be deferred beyond December 2005
whereas the Financial Strategy could not be determined in advance of
the grant settlement referred to in Minute No. 05/106 ante.

RESOLVED



108.

109.

110.

(a) that a total spend analysis of the Council's budget
including where reasonably practicable the distribution
of all unallocated items be made available for all
Members; and

(b) that the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Planning and
Finance) be advised of the Cabinet’s response to their
recommendations as summarised above.

CONCESSIONARY FARES

Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Environment and
Transport (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) which
outlined the implications for the Council of the Government’s decision
to introduce a free concessionary bus fare scheme for those within
the eligibility criteria including the over 60s and people with
disabilities.

As the scheme made provision for concessionary travel within the
boundaries of an individual authority after 09.30 hours only, Members
were advised that a study had been commissioned by the
Cambridgeshire authorities in an attempt to identify a deliverable
scheme for implementation by the required date of April 2006.

Having noted that the new scheme would result in some recipients
being worse off than previously, and having discussed three options
identified as possible schemes, the Cabinet expressed concern over
the imposition of a further new initiative on local authorities without
the accompanying resources. It was therefore

RESOLVED

(@) that a statutory minimum concessionary fare scheme
for an interim 12 months period be adopted by the
Council; and

(b) that a further report and associated Medium Term Plan
bid be submitted to a future meeting.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

A report by the Head of Financial Services was submitted (a copy of
which is appended in the Minute Book) which reviewed the respective
levels of performance achieved during the period July — September
2005 by external fund managers in the matter of investment of the
Council’s capital receipts.

RESOLVED

that the content of the report be noted.

HUNTINGDON HIGH STREET - ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPROVEMENTS

By way of a report by the Head of Environment and Transport (a copy

of which is appended in the Minute Book) the Cabinet were updated
on progress with the Huntingdon High Street environmental

3



111.

112.

113.

improvements scheme.

Having considered a request for the release of funding from the
Medium Term Plan to enable tenders to be prepared for phase 2 of
the scheme to proceed comprising improvements to the adjoining St
Benedict's Court area, the Cabinet

RESOLVED

(&) that the progress of the Huntingdon High Street,
Environmental Improvements Scheme be noted; and

(b) that the release of funding for phase 2 of the scheme
in 2006/07 be approved.

MEDIUM TERM PLAN: REQUEST FOR THE RELEASE OF FUNDS

With the assistance of a report by the Head of Financial Services (a
copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) the Cabinet,

RESOLVED

that the relevant funding be released from the MTP for the
replacement of the bar air conditioning unit at St Neots
Leisure Centre.

CORE POLICIES DPD - AFFORDABLE HOUSING TARGETS:
PREFERRED OPTION FOR CONSULTATION

Further to Minute No.05/11, consideration was given to a report by
the Head of Planning Services (a copy of which is appended in the
Minute Book) containing a preferred option for affordable housing
targets and contributions for inclusion in the Council’s Core Strategy
Development Plan Document (DPD). Members were reminded that
the Core Strategy would establish a spatial vision for the District and
criteria-based policies to guide the development and use of land and
would form a framework for a range of documents.

Having considered the option proposed and in noting that a target
figure of 40% or more for the total number of affordable dwellings in
future housing developments was in line with the Cambridgeshire
Structure Plan, the Cabinet

RESOLVED

that Council be recommended to approve the proposed
preferred approach for affordable housing targets as
outlined in the appendix to the report now submitted as a
basis for public consultation.

ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN

The Cabinet received and noted a report by the Head of Legal and
Estates (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) on the
Council's management of assets against National Property
Performance Indicators for 2004/05.



114.

115.

Having been acquainted with four new performance management
initiatives dealing with maintenance, environmental property issues,
suitability and accessibility, the Cabinet

RESOLVED

(@)

(b)

that the contents of the report be noted and the
performance indicator information contained in
Appendix A to the report approved; and

that the Executive Councillor for Resources and Policy
be designated as “Champion” to promote efficient and
effective asset management in respect of all District
Council land and property.

LICENSING ACT 2003 - IMPLEMENTATION

Further to Minute No.03/70 and by way of a report by the Head of
Administration (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) the
Cabinet were acquainted with progress in implementing the Licensing
Act 2003. Members were reminded that the Act had abolished
several existing licensing regimes administered by the licensing
justices and district councils and replaced them with a new licensing
regime administered by the District Council for the supply of alcohol,
regulated entertainment and late night refreshment. Members were
advised that the transfer had been successfully completed with over
550 applications for premises licences and club premises certificates
and 600 applications for personal licences being received by the end
of October 2005.

Members were reminded that two additional members of staff had
been employed on temporary two year contracts in the Central
Services Licensing Section to deal with the associated workload and
an assessment was given of anticipated income levels and the
ongoing work required in administering and enforcing the Act. In
addition it was reported that the Government had now announced that
the Gambling Act 2005 would be implemented with effect from
September 2007 which would transfer further licensing responsibilities
to the Council. Under the circumstances it was

RESOLVED

(@)

(b)

that progress on implementation of the Licensing Act
2003 be noted; and

that the preparation of a Medium Term Plan bid in
respect of the estimated additional income and the
cost of making permanent the existing temporary posts
CNO70 and CNO76 in the Licensing Section be
approved.

ST NEOTS LEISURE CENTRE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Having been advised of the resignation of Councillor | P Taylor from
the St Neots Leisure Centre Management Committee and in
considering the nomination from the Liberal Democrat Group, the

Cabinet



116.

117.

118.

RESOLVED

that Councillor Mrs D E Collins be appointed to fill the
vacancy on the St Neots Leisure Centre Management
Committee for the remainder of the Municipal Year.

POLICE FORCES RESTRUCTURING

(The Chairman announced that he proposed to admit the following
item in accordance with Section 100 (4) (b) of the Local Government
Act 1972 given the need for the Council to respond to a proposal on
the future restructuring of police forces in England and Wales by 5th
December 2005.)

Further to Minute No. 05/99 and following receipt of a letter from the
Chairman and Acting Chief Constable of the Cambridgeshire Police
Authority (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book), the
Chairman updated Members on possible options for the future
restructuring of police forces in England and Wales and in particular
East Anglia.

Members expressed concern over the potential impact of a larger
force comprising either three or six county constabularies both in
terms of the level of service provided and loss of local accountability.
It was suggested that any savings from the reorganisation would be
minimal and it was therefore

RESOLVED

that the Chief Executive, after consultation with the
Chairman, be authorised to reaffirm the District Council's
representations for the retention of the Cambridgeshire
Constabulary as a stand-alone force.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC
RESOLVED

that the press and public be excluded from the meeting
because the business to be transacted contained exempt
information relating to an employee of the District Council
and the terms proposed for the supply of goods and
services.

HEADQUARTERS AND OTHER ACCOMMODATION - FINAL
TENDER EVALUATION

Further to Minute No.05/77 and with the assistance of a report by
Chief Officers Management Team (a copy of which is appended in the
annex to the Minute Book) the Cabinet were acquainted with the final
tender evaluation for the Council’s future office and other
accommodation requirements.

Having considered the deliberations of the Office Accommodation

Members Advisory Group and the Overview and Scrutiny Panels on
the matter and in noting that Councillor Guyatt’s request that his

6



119.

120.

participation in the debate and voting would be undertaken without
prejudice to the subsequent consideration and/or determination of any
relevant planning application by the Council’s Development Control
Panel, the Cabinet

RESOLVED

that the recommendations of the Office Accommodation
Members Advisory Group arising from their meeting held on
21st November 2005 be endorsed and forwarded for
consideration by the Council at their meeting to be held on
7th December 2005.

PATHFINDER HOUSE RECEPTION

By means of a joint report by the Heads of Administration and of
Personnel Services (a copy of which is appended in the annex to the
Minute Book) the Cabinet considered a proposal to make redundant
post ref CN.046 in the Central Services Directorate arising from the
transfer of the Council’s switchboard facilities to the call centre in
September 2005 and to grant the post holder early retirement.

Having been acquainted with the recommendations of the
Employment Panel on this matter, it was

RESOLVED

that a supplementary estimate be approved to enable the
early retirement of the holder of ref CN.046 as set out in
paragraph 5.2 of the report now submitted.

COUNCILLOR D P HOLLEY

In view of his decision to resign from the position of Leader of the
Council with effect from 7th December 2005, the Deputy Leader on
behalf of the Cabinet paid tribute to the contribution made by
Councillor Holley during his 16 years as Leader of the Council and for
his commitment to Huntingdonshire. Members extended their best
wishes to Councillor Holley for the future.

Chairman



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee Report Agenda Item 3

COMT 22"° NOVEMBER 2005
CUSTOMER FIRST ADVISORY GROUP 29™ NOVEMBER 2005
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (PLANNING AND FINANCE) 12™ DECEMBER 2005
CABINET 15™ DECEMBER 2005
COUNCIL 22"° FEBRUARY 2006

IMPLEMENTING ELECTRONIC GOVERNMENT STATEMENT 2005
(Report by the Head of Information Management)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to submit the IEG 5 statement by the OPDM
deadline of 19" December 2005.

2. SUPPORTING / BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2.1 The Council is required to submit a statement of progress against e-government targets to
the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) each year. Statements were submitted in
2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004. In return the Council received capital grants of, respectively,
£200k, £200k, £350k and £150k.

2.2 In this final year the ODPM has instigated a monitoring exercise, hence the requirement to
submit a mid-term report (IEG 4.5 submitted in June 2005) and ongoing updates
throughout the remainder of the IEG Programme (to the end of March 2006).

2.3 The ODPM has set key dates for Local Authorities to help meet the deadlines. These
include:

e 19" December 2005 deadline for IEG5
e April 2006 deadline for IEG6 end of programme return.

From this year through to 31 March 2006, all authorities will be able to input and maintain
IEG data in real time via the ESD toolkit*. This will allow them to sign off and complete the
IEG self-assessment “traffic lights” as projects are actually implemented. This statement is
again based on self-assessment and is designed around the National Strategy for e-
Government.

2.4 The submission is again informed by the ODPM'’s “Defining e-government outcomes for
2005 to support the delivery of priority services & national strategy transformation agenda
for local authorities in England”. This document sets out “Priority Outcomes” which each
local authority is expected to deliver by March 2006 as part of its e-Government
investment programme.

2.5 The final guidance notes “Priority Outcomes: Explanatory Notes for Practitioners” from the
ODPM have only been made available recently (September 2005). In order to meet the
December deadline and to progress the IEG through the Council’'s consultation & approval
process, the document has undergone final modification during the approval process.

2.6 The colour indications and dates given in sections 1 and 2 refer to the status of the Priority
Outcome/Transformation Area and should be interpreted as follows:

' The ESD Toolkit is a website which allows collection of Electronic Service Delivery Data across all Local
Authorities.

Prepared by: Chris Hall Page 1 of 2
Date: 15" November 2005 Version: 1



Where Status reads Date means

Red Date implementation planning/assessment began
Amber Date started to implement

Green Date implementation complete

The IEG statement has been generated from the ESD toolkit and the dates cannot be
easily removed.

2.7 In addition, there are two sections which contain the same data as in previous
submissions:

Section 3 BVPI 157

There is no statutory requirement to re-assess this data until March 2006. Therefore this
section remains the same as the projections given in IEG 4.5 in June 2005.

Section 4 Access Channels

The information contained within this table is last year's estimates, as the BVPI 157 data
from the services generates the access channel figures as well. The document was
compiled by the Customer First Team and input has been sought from a number of
services within the Council.

2.8 As for previous IEG statements, successful implementation will depend on timely and
sufficient input from all parts of the Council.

2.9 The Council has permission from the OPDM to submit a Cabinet-approved IEG5 by the
19™ December provided this is followed by the approval of the full Council in February.
ODPM’s late provision of the guidance has forced this approach.

3. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that:

e Cabinet approves the submission of the attached Implementing Electronic
Government (IEG) statement.

e Council confirms the submission of the attached Implementing Electronic Government
(IEG) statement.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The National Strategy for eGovernment
(http://www.Iocaleqov.qov.uk/Nimoi/sites/ODMP/resources/20021127%20FinaI%ZONS%ZOWith%ZOcover.pdf)

Defining e-Government Outcomes for 2005 to support the delivery of priority services & National

Strategy Transformation Agenda for Local Authorities in England
(http://www.localegov.gov.uk/en/1/priorityoutcomes.html )

Contact Officers:
Chris Hall, Customer First Programme Manager 01480 388116
Deborah Ratcliffe, Programme & Project Support Office Manager 01480 388309

10



Huntingdonshire

ccccccccccccccc

IMPLEMENTING
ELECTRONIC GOVERNMENT
RETURN 2005 (IEGYS)

"Meeting the targets for e-government”

11



Name of Authority: Huntingdonshire District Council
IEG Contact Name: Chris Hall
Email: Chris.Hall@Huntsdc.gov.uk

Telephone No: 01480 388116

Local Context

The six local authorities in Cambridgeshire are continuing to work together towards
achieving the target of being 100% e-enabled by the end of 2005. We are working jointly
and sharing knowledge on a wide variety of projects, the nature and degree of participation
depending on each Council’s local circumstances.

The main projects in which all six authorities are involved are:

e The Cambridgeshire Community Network (CCN), a Public Private Partnership to
provide broadband infrastructure across the County.

e The Cambridgeshire Community Portal, which provides a single access point to each
authority’s information and services. The Portal went live on May 14th 2004 and is
linked to the Police and NHS. Some town and parish councils and local voluntary
organisation have also been brought on board.

e The Cambridgeshire Smartcard project, which is at the pilot stage and which is
bringing together transport, library and leisure services.

HDC’s e-government programme, Customer First, is on track to deliver all our objectives. As
well as the three projects listed above, the main elements of the programme are:

e A call centre, which went live in September 2005. We are sharing the County’s
technical infrastructure and signed a contract with them in March 2005. We are also
leasing space in their call centre building but have employed our own staff and
adopted different opening hours.

e A customer service centre (CSC) in Huntingdon for face-to-face contact. We have
just completed tendering for the provision of a new headquarters, a CSC and an

operations centre. Members decided on the preferred solution on 7t December
2005 and, early in 2006, we will be developing the timetable for introducing the CSC .

e A transactional website. We implemented a content management system in July
2004 and are continuing to develop the site. We are also introducing an online
payments system.

Underpinning all of this work are:

e Sound governance principles. We have a programme board and employ PRINCE 2
project management methodology.

12




e Effective change management processes - all Directors and managers have received
three days’ change management training.

e A communication plan designed to ensure that members, staff and, in due course,
customers understand what we are doing and why, and have the opportunity to
provide input into the process to ensure that everyone’s needs are met.

e A thorough review of our business processes. While committed to the 2005 deadline,
we have taken a measured approach to implementation. We are placing great
emphasis on business process review and improvement to ensure that we increase
our efficiency and effectiveness rather than simply making our existing processes
electronic.

We are confident that, as befits an authority assessed as Excellent in CPA, our
implementation of e-government will result in:

e Significant improvements in levels of customer service which are already high
e Greater efficiency through streamlined processes and better use of information
e More effective and joined-up working with our partner organisations.

The call centre implementation has already resulted in improved call-handling performance
due to the increased resources being deployed and the use of a Customer Relationship
Management system. Lost call rates are down, the average time to answer a call has
reduced significantly, and the percentage of calls dealt with first-time by our advisors is
already exceeding our targets.

Our e-Government Strategy is driven by our customer service strategy, and the focus is on
improving customer service rather than reducing costs. However, we are implementing
measurement mechanisms to capture efficiency savings in order to meet the requirements
of ‘Delivery Efficiency in Local Services’.

We are confident that take-up of Electronic Service Delivery will be high because:

e Our approach is customer-driven rather than technology-driven

e Huntingdonshire is a relatively affluent area with a high level of IT literacy and home
computer ownership

e We have high take-up of existing electronic services — for example 70% of Council
Tax payers pay by direct debit

e Much customer usage is driven by us, for example by implementing a call centre to
deal with customer contact by telephone and introducing mobile technology to take
services to the customer rather than having them come to us

We also have plans to ensure that we provide the benefits of e-government to those least
able to access technology themselves.

13




e We were a Beacon Council for Social Inclusion through ICT in 2003/4 and are
continuing to support the provision of e-learning points in rural locations throughout
the District

e Having provided an ICT centre in the Oxmoor area of Huntingdon, one of the
District’s most deprived wards, we have moved on to set up Customer Information
Centres in Yaxley and Ramsey and are scheduled to provide one in St Neots

Note : Please note that the date for the implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary
and is only included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of IEG 5 unless a
date is present. The Council will make a decision on whether to implement Government
Connect based on an assessment of local priorities and needs at a later date.

14




Section 1 - Priority Outcomes (self-assessment)
Satisfactory progress towards delivery of the listed priority outcomes listed below is
required within the remit for achieving e-government by 2005

Outcome And Transformation Area Description Current Status Anticipated status |Anticipated status
at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006

R1 Parents/guardians to apply online for school places Green Green Green

for children for the 2007 school year. The admissions 30/09/2005 30/09/2005 30/09/2005

process starts about a year before the beginning of the
school year, e.g. September 2006 for 2007 entry.

Comment: The County Council are leading on this. As soon as the
information is available on their website we will provide a deep link
from our website to the relevant information.

R2 Online access to information about educational
support services that seek to raise the educational
attainment of Looked After Children.

Green Green Green
31/07/2004 31/07/2004 31/07/2004

Comment: The implementation of the Content Managment System
(CMS) has ensured that we offer links from our website to
County’s. Our education website pages provide deep links to the
http://www.camlearn.net/home.php on Cambridgeshire County
Council website.
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Adult+and+co
mmunity+education

G1 Development of an Admissions Portal and / or
e-enabled telephone contact centre to assist parents,
carers and children in their choice of, and application to
local schools

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: The implementation of the Content Managment System
(CMS) has ensured that we offer links from our website to
County’s.

If already 'green’ on R1, R2 & G1 above please comment
on

E1 Agreed baseline and targets for take-up of online
schools admissions service and educational attainment
of Looked After Children.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC) do not have
any targets for this service as this is the responsibilty of the
Cambridgeshire County Council.

R3 One stop direct online access and deep linking to
joined up A-Z information on all local authority services
via website or shared telephone contact centre using the
recognised taxonomy of the Local Government Category
List (see www.laws-project.org.uk).

Green Green Green
31/03/2005 31/03/2005 31/03/2005

Comment: LGCL tags are now in place. This information will be
available to the public and call centre agents via our website, which
contains an A to Z of services. This in turn links to the County
Council where appropriate.

R4 Local authority and youth justice agencies to
co-ordinate the secure online sending, sharing of and
access to information in support of crime reduction
initiatives in partnership with the local community.

Amber
04/05/2005

Green
31/03/2006

Amber
04/05/2005

Comment: As a consequence of the anti-social behavior initiative
we will have to share data with the Police and other partners. The
Police require this to be via the Government Secure Intranet (GSI).
HDC has recently been selected as a pilot site by the Department
for Work and Pensions (DWP) for trials of a Closed User Group
(CUG). This CUG will allow transmission of e-mails through the
Governments Secure Intranet (GSI) by investigators employed by
the DWP and those based at HDC. Currently there are no
confirmed dates for implementation. One reason for this is that
funding for the trials will be provided in full by the DWP, but the
department dealing with this matter has not yet received any
funding to finance the initiative. However, we anticipate a go live
date before the end of the current financial year.

15




Outcome And Transformation Area Description Current Status Anticipated status |Anticipated status
at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006

G2 Empowering and supporting local organisations, Green Green Green

community groups and clubs to create and maintain their 28/02/2003 28/02/2003 28/02/2003

own information online, including the promotion of job
vacancies and events.

Comment: Hunts Electronic Learning Points project empowers and
trains local people to use PCs, provides local websites and access
to online learning and services. Our Leisure website,
www.huntsleisure.org, allows local groups and clubs to list events
and contact details.

If already 'green' on R3, R4 & G2 above please comment
on

E2 Agreed baseline and targets for customer satisfaction
and efficiency savings between the supplying
organisations on shared community information
initiatives.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: We do not ask this question to residents at this point in
time but we are planning an annual consultation with residents to
establish whether they feel they have good access to the councils
services.

R5 Public access to online reports, minutes and agendas
from past council meetings, including future meetings
diary updated daily.

Green
15/03/2003

Green
15/03/2003

Green
15/03/2003

Comment: Democratic Services’ information, including public
access to minutes, agendas, reports and a future meetings diary, is
updated dynamically and is available on the Council’s website.
Modern.gov delivers access to all this information plus Councillor
details.

R6 Providing every Councillor with the option to have an
easy-to-manage set of public web pages (for community
leadership purposes) that is either maintained for them,
or that they can maintain themselves.

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: The Content Management System gives us the ability
to allow each Councillor to have a page to maintain.

G3 Citizen participation and response to forthcoming
consultations and decisions on matters of public interest
(e-consultation), including facility for citizens to sign up
for email and/or SMS text alerts on nominated topics.

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: Consultation surveys are available on our website now.
Citizens can sign up for mailing lists on www.huntsleisure.org
website and we are currently evaluating expanding this service.

G4 Establishment of multimedia resources on local policy
priorities accessible via public website (e.g. video &
audio files).

Green Green Green
31/07/2004 31/07/2004 31/07/2004

Comment: We have the facilities, equipment and technical
experience to do this and we have available on our website a
Huntingdonshire in Perspective video.

If already 'green' on R5, R6, G3 & G4 above please
comment on

E3 Agreed baseline and targets for e-participation
activities, including targets for citizen satisfaction.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: We are currently reviewing how best to survey those
customers who use e-Services and we hope to introduce
measurement in the future.

R7 Online public reporting/applications, procurement and
tracking of environmental services, includes waste
management and street scene (e.g. abandoned cars,
graffiti removal, bulky waste removal, recycling).

Amber
26/06/2003

Amber
26/06/2003

Amber
26/06/2003

Comment: Online delivery of Streetscene services will form part of
our Citizen Portal channel of HDC's Customer Relationship
Management System. It is anticipated that these services will be
available online in 2006.

16




Outcome And Transformation Area Description Current Status Anticipated status |Anticipated status
at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006

R8 Online receipt and processing of planning and Green Green Green

building control applications. 31/03/2003 31/03/2003 31/03/2003

Comment: Online submission and payment of planning
applications has been implemented in conjunction with the
Planning Portal. In addition, Planning Public Access enables
customers to view, comment on and track the status of planning
applications online via the Council’s website. Initial research
conducted with Building Control customers indicates no desire for
web-based receipt and processing of applications. However, we
can implement a Uniform module to meet this requirement if
necessary.

G5 Public access to corporate Geographic Information
Systems (GIS) for map-based data presentation of
property-related information.

Green Green Green
31/03/2003 31/03/2003 31/03/2003

Comment: Planning Public Access, available via HDC's website,
provides customers with the ability to query the LLPG to identify a
property and then zoom to a map of the property, and display
additional property-related information. The delivery of Streetscene
services will meet many of these requirements.

G6 Sharing of Trading Standards data between councils
for business planning and enforcement purposes.

Green
01/09/2005

Green
01/09/2005

Green
01/09/2005

Comment: We have set up a procedure so that information, which
maybe relevant to Trading Standards, is passed on to them via an
electronic form.

G7 Use of technology to integrate planning, regulation
and licensing functions (including Entertainment
Licensing and Liquor Licensing) in order to improve
policy and decision-making processes around the
prevention of anti-social behaviour.

Green Green Green
31/03/2003 31/03/2003 31/03/2003

Comment: HDC has implemented an integrated business system,
which includes planning, building control and licensing. In addition,
integration with the LLPG enables staff to have an holistic view of
permit and regulatory information relating to any property and
improve policy and decision-making. We will also be able to
securely share information with partner organisations such as the
Police via secure e-mail.

If already 'green’ on R7, R8, G5, G6 & G7 above please
comment on

E4 Agreed baseline and targets for take-up of planning
and regulatory services online, including targets for
customer satisfaction and efficiency savings.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: There are currently no targets for take up of planning
services on line.

R9 Appropriate online e-procurement solutions in place,
including as a minimum paperless ordering, invoicing
and payment.

Amber
28/06/2005

Amber
28/06/2005

Green
31/03/2006

Comment: We have carried out a procurement card trial.
Identification of significant entry costs to ESPO’s e-marketplace
have resulted in a re-appraisal of the e-procurement strategy. Plan
remains to implement paperless ordering and payment by year
end.

G8 Establishment of a single business account (i.e. a
cross-departmental ‘account' run by the local authority
whereby businesses are allocated a unique identifier that
can be stored and managed via a corporate CRM
account facility supporting face-to-face, website and
contact centre transactions).

Red Amber Green
30/06/2004 30/12/2005 31/03/2006

Comment: HDC's CRM supplier is currently reviewing the options
of including this functionality in the CRM system and they will
communicate results to us when they know more.

17




Outcome And Transformation Area Description Current Status Anticipated status |Anticipated status
at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006

G9 Regional co-operation on e-procurement between Amber Amber Green

local councils. 01/06/2005 01/06/2005 31/03/2006

Comment: We are an active participant in a regional procurement
group. Development to a regional e-procurement solution is
underway with a view to a collaborative solution. Already engaged
with the Regional Centre of Excellence.

If already 'green' on R9, G8 & G9 above please comment
on

E5 Access to virtual e-procurement 'marketplace’;

Comment:

E6 Inclusion of Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) in
e-procurement programme, in order to promote the
advantages of e-procurement to local suppliers and
retain economic development benefits within local
community;

Comment:

E7 Agreed targets (please specify) for efficiency savings
by December 2005, including the % of undisputed
invoices paid in 30 days (BVPI 8).

Otherwise you may leave these rows blank.

Comment:

R10 Online facilities to be available to allow payments to
the council in ways that engender public trust and
confidence in local government electronic payment
solutions (e.g. email receipting/proof of payment, supply
of automatic transaction ID numbers).

Amber Amber Green
09/06/2003 09/06/2003 31/03/2006

Comment: Roll out of corporate e-payments will meet these
requirements. The e-payments solution that is being implemented
has been delayed due to software errors.

R11 Delivery of 'added value' around online payment
facilities, including ability to check Council Tax and
Business Rate balances online or via touch tone
telephone dialling.

Red
01/06/2005

Amber
31/12/2005

Amber
31/12/2005

Comment: Delivery of added value services is not a priority for us
at present. Dependent upon suppliers providing suitable web
enabled products.

G10 Demonstration of efficiency savings and improved
collection rates from implementation of e-payments.

Amber Amber Green
09/06/2003 09/06/2003 31/03/2006

Comment: Roll out of corporate e-payments will meet these
requirements.

G11 Registration for Council Tax and Business Rates
e-billing for Direct Debit payers.

Amber
01/03/2005

Amber
01/03/2005

Amber
01/03/2005

Comment: This has been postponed - there has been no customer
demand for the facility and the cost of the software was too high to
merit implementing it.

If already 'green' on R10, R11, G10 & G11 above please
comment on

E8 Provision of facilities for making credit or debit card
payments via SMS text message for parking fines
(mobile phone).

Comment:

E9 Adoption of smart cards as standard for stored
payments (e.g. replacing swipe cards).

Comment:

E10 Agreed baseline and targets for reductions in unit
costs of payment transactions.

Otherwise you may leave these rows blank.

Comment:

18




Outcome And Transformation Area Description

Current Status

Anticipated status

Anticipated status

at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006
R12 Online renewal and reservations of library books Green Green Green
and catalogue search facilities. 31/03/2005 31/03/2005 31/03/2005

Comment: The implementation of the Content Management
System has ensured that we offer links from our website to
County’s. Our website deep links to the Cambridgeshire County
Councils library system pages both from our education and online
services pages. http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Online%20Services
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Adult+and+co
mmunity+education

R13 Online booking of sports and leisure facilities,
including both direct and contracted-out operations.

Amber Amber Green
09/06/2003 09/06/2003 31/03/2006

Comment: A bookings and payments module will deliver this
functionality. Implementation requires an upgrade to the leisure
business system which is currently being installed. Once this is
complete the module will be implemented.

G12 Integrated ICT infrastructure and support to ensure
the consistent delivery of services across all access
channels (e.g. web, telephone, face to face) based on
e-enabled back offices and smart card interfaces for
council library, sports and leisure services.

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Comment: CRM is now operational and we are working on
integration of Back Office systems and use via the web and
Customer Service Centre Cambridgeshire County Council are
carrying out a trial of smart cards; we anticipate that we will
implement smart cards for multiple District services following this
trial. Currently use swipe cards and shared customer database
between our 5 Leisure Centres.

If already 'green' on R12, R13 & G12 above please
comment on

E11 Agreed baseline and targets for take-up of library,
sports & leisure services online, including targets for
customer satisfaction and efficiency savings.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment:

R14 Online facilities to be available to allow the public to
inspect local public transport timetables and information
via available providing organisation, including links to
'live' systems for interactive journey planning.

Green Green Green
31/07/2004 31/07/2004 31/07/2004

Comment: Cambridgeshire County Council provide this facility via
their website. We have a direct link to this information from our
transport planning pages, village database and tourist information
kiosk.

R15 Online public e-consultation facilities for new
proposals on traffic management (e.g. controlled parking
zones (CPZs), traffic calming schemes), including
publication of consultation survey results.

Green
28/02/2004

Green
28/02/2004

Green
28/02/2004

Comment: We already carry out online consultation surveys and
publish the results on our website.

G13 E-forms for parking "contravention mitigation" (i.e.
appeal against the issue of a penalty charge notice),
including email natification of form receipt and appeal
procedures.

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Comment: As we are a rural district we do not issue enough
parking tickets each year for this to be a priority for us at the
moment.

G14 GIS-based presentation of information on roadworks
in the local area, including contact details and updated
daily.

Green Green Green
31/07/2004 31/07/2004 31/07/2004

Comment: County provide mapping of roadworks on their website.
The implementation of Content Management System has ensured
that we provide links to these pages.

19




Outcome And Transformation Area Description

Current Status Anticipated status

at 31/12/2005

Anticipated status
at 31/03/2006

If already 'green' on R14, R15, G13 & G14 above please
comment on

E12 Agreed baseline and targets for customer
satisfaction and efficiency savings.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: HDC does measure customer satisfaction on Transport
issues. However, we do not measure against BVPI 103 as we are
not a Transport authority.

R16 E-enabled "one stop" resolution of Housing &
Council Tax Benefit enquiries via telephone, contact
centres, or via one stop shops using workflow tools and
CRM software to provide information at all appropriate
locations and enable electronic working from front to
back office.

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Comment: Revenues and Benefits have an Electronic Document
Managment system incorporating workflow (Anite@work), and we
will be looking to integrate into the CRM during 2006. In the
meantime these enquiries are taken within the service itself in an
e-enabled manner. Call Centre advisors will receive notifications of
change relating to Housing & Council Tax Benefits early 2006 -
these will be entered into the corporate CRM.

R17 Online facilities to be available to allow citizens or
their agents to check their eligibility for and calculate their
entitlement to Housing & Council Tax Benefit and to
download and print relevant claim forms.

Green Green Green
28/02/2002 28/02/2002 28/02/2002

Comment: We already have a Benefits calculator and all the
relevant claim forms on the HDC website.

G15 Mobile office service using technology to offer
processing of Council Tax and Housing Benefit claims
directly from citizens homes.

Amber
01/06/2005

Amber
01/06/2005

Green
31/03/2006

Comment: The pilot commenced in June 2005 and will end in
March 2006. We will then make a decision on how we want to
deliver this service.

If already 'green' on R16, R17 & G15 above please
comment on

E13 Agreed baseline and targets for turnaround in
processing of Council Tax and Housing Benefit claims
(BVPI 78) and renewals.

Comment: HDC monitors its performance against this BVPI and
the implementation of new ways of working will be quantified
against this measure.

E14 Pre-qualification of Council Tax and Housing Benefit
claimants for other eligible entitlements (e.g. school
uniform grants, free school meals), including pre-filling of
relevant claim forms.

Otherwise you may leave these rows blank.

Comment: We currently have no plans to meet this outcome but
this position will be reviewed in the future.

R18 Comprehensive and dedicated information about
access to local care services available over the web and
telephone contact centres.

Green Green Green
31/07/2004 31/07/2004 31/07/2004

Comment: HDC does not provide care service it is the
responsibility of the County Council. A deep link is provided to their
Care Services Page.
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Health.htm

R19 Remote web access or mediated access via
telephone (including outside of standard working hours
availability) for authorised officers to information about
individual 'care packages', including payments, requests
for service and review dates.

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: HDC does not provide care service it is the
responsibility of the County Council. A deep link is provided to their
Care Services Page.
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Health.htm

10

20




Outcome And Transformation Area Description

Current Status

Anticipated status

Anticipated status

at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006
G16 Systems to support joined-up working on children at Red Amber Green
risk across multiple agencies. 01/01/2004 31/12/2005 31/03/2006

Comment: The County Councils's plan to reengineer the children's
services continues and is beginning to move to a more detailed
implementation. In respect of the system element, the County
Council have just approved the business case for the introduction
of the Children's Information System. This system will pull together
the information from various bodies and sources. However, this is
currently about establishing the processes and policies not an
electronic system. This next stage is still dependent on the actual
systems being available on the market for us to purchase. We will
wait for the County Council to lead on this outcome.

G17 Joint assessments of the needs of vulnerable
people (children and adults), using mobile technology to
support workers in the field.

Red Amber Amber
31/03/2005 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Comment: HDC has received funding from the Department of
Work and Pensions to enable piloting of home visits by benefit
assessors supported by mobile technology. If this is successful this
may be extended to include other services both within the Council
and in co-operation with other agencies. A deep link is also
provided on the Health pages of our website to the Cambridgeshire
County Council's care services page.
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Health.htmhttp:
/lwww.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Health.htm

If already 'green' on R18, R19, G16 & G17 above please
comment on

E15 Agreed baseline and targets for customer
satisfaction, including improvement in numbers of
users/carers who said that they got help quickly (BVPI
57).

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment:

R20 Email and Internet access provided for all Members
and staff that establish a need for it.

Green
01/10/2005

Green
01/10/2005

Green
01/10/2005

Comment: All members and most employees have e-mail and
internet access, although internet access for staff is subject to
approval from their line manager. The ICT helpdesk manager has
now developed the 'Computer Usage Policy Document' which
addresses this objective.

R21 ICT support and documented policy for
home/remote working (teleworking) for council members
and staff.

Green Green Green
30/06/2005 30/06/2005 30/06/2005

Comment: This will be addressed as a Council wide policy in the
near future. It will address all factors such as Health and safety as
well the IT aspects. Still ongoing.

R22 Access to home/remote working facilities to all
council members and staff that satisfy the requirements
set by the Council's published home/remote working
policy.

Green
01/11/2005

Green
01/11/2005

Green
01/11/2005

Comment: All members currently have the technology to work from
home and dial-up for online access. 200 employees also have
home working capability. Still ongoing.

G18 Establishment of e-skills training programme for
council members and staff with recognised basic level of
attainment (e.g. European Computer Driving Licence,
British Computer Society Qualification "e-Citizen").

Green Green Green
30/09/2003 30/09/2003 30/09/2003

Comment: We have now established ECDL as part of our
corporate training programme and it is open to staff and members.

11

21




Outcome And Transformation Area Description

Current Status Anticipated status

at 31/12/2005

Anticipated status
at 31/03/2006

If already 'green' on R20, R21, R22 & G18 above please
comment on

E16 Agreed targets for baseline and efficiency savings
arising from the introduction of new ways of working.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment:

R23 Self-service or mediated access to all council
services outside standard working hours via the Internet
or telephone contact centres (i.e. available for extended
hours outside of 9am-5pm Monday to Friday).

Amber
01/02/2004

Amber
01/02/2004

Green
31/03/2006

Comment: Our Call Centre opened on 22/09/05. The openin hours
are extended to 8am-6pm Monday to Friday and will be further
extended to open on 9am-1pm on Saturdays after the public launch
in early 2006. Services will continue to be migrated over the
subsequent months. The Content Management System went live in
Summer 2004.

R24 Implementation of a content management system
(CMS) to facilitate devolved web content creation and
website management.

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: The Content Management System went live in Summer
2004.

G19 Adoption of ISO 15489 methodology for Electronic
Document Records Management (ERDM) and
identification of areas where current records
management policies, procedures and systems need
improvement to meet the requirements of Freedom of
Information (FOI) and Data Protection legislation (see
www.pro.gov.uk/about/foi/map-local.rtf).

Amber Green Green
31/01/2005 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Comment: EDM - Electronic Document Management system is
being rolled out corporately. A request tracker is currently being
used for FOI and an information audit is planned for Mid 2005.
Record Management procedures are currently being put in place.

G20 Conformance with level AA of W3C Web
Accessibility Initiative (WAI) standards on website
accessibility (see www.w3.org/WAI).

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: Our new website conforms to AAA level of accessibility
and the CMS enforces this conformance.

G21 Compliance with Government Interoperability
Framework (e-GIF), including the Government Metadata
Standard (e-GMS) (see www.egifcompliance.org &
www.govtalk.gov.uk).

Amber Amber Amber
01/01/2003 01/01/2003 01/01/2003

Comment: This is a requirement in all our specifications. We will
purchase e-gif compliant business systems as existing systems are
replaced and new ones are acquired. Our website currently
conforms to the Cambridge standard for metadata which draws
upon the e-GMS standard . We are currently tagging our website
pages with specific e-GMS and LGCL tags in addition to those
mentioned above.

If already 'green’ on R23, R24, G19, G20 & G21 above
please comment on

E17 Agreed baseline and targets for efficiency savings
based around improved accessibility of services and
information.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment:

R25 Online publication of Internet service standards,
including past performance and commitments on service
availability.

Green
01/03/2005

Green
01/03/2005

Green
01/03/2005

Comment: Usage plus availability information is now available.

12

22




Outcome And Transformation Area Description

Current Status

Anticipated status

Anticipated status

at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006
R26 Monitoring of performance of corporate website, or Green Green Green
regional web portal, between 2003/04 and 2005/06 in 01/12/2000 01/12/2000 01/12/2000

order to demonstrate rising and sustained use, as
measured by industry standards including page
impressions and unique users.

Comment: We currently analyse website usage including page
impressions and unique users. These have shown a steady
increase in usage over the last 4 years from 400 visits a day to over

1300.

G22 Establishment of internal targets and measures for
customer take-up of e-enabled access channels.

Green
30/11/2005

Green
30/11/2005

Green
30/11/2005

Comment: The Customer Service Strategy sets out a range of
targets that will be developed as Customer First Programme rolls
out. The performance targets for our Call Centre are as follows:
Average speed of answer = 80% answered in 20 seconds 5%
abandoned rate 80% service level average

G23 Adoption of recognised guidelines for usability of
website design (see www.laws-project.org.uk).

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: Our new website meets all recommended usability
standards/guidelines including use of access keys, navigation
positioning and content styling. Work is in progress to educate
contributors in Plain English standards.

If already 'green' on R25, R26, G22 & G23 above please
comment on

E18 Agreed baseline and take-up targets for migration of
local authority business to e-access channels (e.g. web,
telephone contact centres, Interactive Digital TV, mobile
telephone) by 2005/06, including efficiency savings.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: HDC will fulfil this requirement as our business process
improvment methodolgy ensures we capture the benefits.

R27 Systems in place to ensure effective and consistent
customer relationship management across access
channels and to provide a 'first time fix' for citizen and
business enquiries, i.e. using a common database, which
holds customers records, to deliver services across
different channels, and enabling joined-up and
automated service delivery.

Green
22/09/2005

Green
22/09/2005

Green
22/09/2005

Comment: The Customer Relationship Management (CRM) was
deployed in September 2005 with some integration to the back
office, and includes elements of workflow. Systems have been
implemented and roll-out of processes is being controlled. Roll-out
of further services and processes will take place over time.

R28 All email and web form acknowledgements to
include unique reference number allocated to allow
tracking of enquiry and service response.

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Comment: As part of the deployment of Customer First
Programme and the current enhancement of service delivery
channels, we intend to develop a forms processing feature
designed to improve the customer experience. It is anticipated that
as part of this feature, unique response identifiers will be included.

R29 100% of email enquiries from the public responded
to within one working day, with documented corporate
performance standards for both email
acknowledgements and service replies.

Amber
09/06/2003

Green
31/12/2005

Green
31/12/2005

Comment: We are in the process of developing response
standards and will implement appropriate processes and
monitoring and reporting mechanisms in the next 12 months.

G24 Integration of customer relationship management
systems with back office activity through use of enabling
technology such as Workflow to create complete
automation of business process management.

Green Green Green
01/06/2005 01/06/2005 01/06/2005

Comment: The Customer Relationship Management (CRM) will be
deployed in June 2005 with some integration to back office, and will
include elements of workflow (e.g Anite@work and Biztalk).

13

23




Outcome And Transformation Area Description

Current Status

Anticipated status

Anticipated status

at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006
G25 Facilities to support the single notification of a Green Green Green
change of address, i.e. a citizen should only have to tell 01/06/2005 01/06/2005 01/06/2005

the council they have moved on one occasion and the
council should then be able to update all records relating
to that person to include the new address.

Comment: Change of address is a service in Phase 1 of the call
centre, to be implemented from September 2005 onwards.

If already 'green’ on R27, R28, R29, G24 & G25 above
please comment on

E19 Agreed baseline and improvement targets for the
percentage of public enquiries about council services
resolved at first point of contact and efficiency savings
resulting from investment in customer relationship
management and workflow technology.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: HDC will fulfil this requirement. A key element of
implementing our CRM and associated technology is to capture

these measures.

14

24




Section 2 - Change Management (self-assessment)
Authorities are asked to provide information on advisory good practice outcomes
relating to the internal organisation and management practices of the council that

are required to help deliver the people,

systems and service management changes

necessary for e-government. Information supplied here will be used to inform
national policy, but does not fall within the remit of the December 2005 target.

Change Management Area

Current Status Anticipated status | Anticipated status

at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006
e Appointment of people to the following key local
e-government functions in your Council (see
http://www.idea-knowledge.gov.uk/idk/aio//206757):
i) Member & officer e-champions Green Green Green
01/09/2001 01/09/2001 01/09/2001

Comment:These positions have long been established within
Huntingdonshire. In addition there is a Members Customer First
Advisory Group.

ii) e-government programme manager

Green
01/09/2001

Green
01/09/2001

Green
01/09/2001

Comment:This position has long been established within
Huntingdonshire.

iii) customer services management

Green
30/11/2004

Green
30/11/2004

Green
30/11/2004

Comment:We have recruited a Call Centre Manager and anticipate
a subsequent re-organisation of management roles and
responsibilities to reflect the focus on all customer service delivery
channels.

o Inclusion of competency development of the above key
functions and training for staff affected by e-Government
projects, within the Council's workforce development
planning (for more information about the e-capacity
Building Programme see
http://www.lamip.org/MicroSites/eCapacityBuilding/Pages
/TemplateUser.aspx?PageType=StandardContent&XSL=
standardcontent&Key=1)

Green Green Green
30/11/2001 30/11/2001 30/11/2001

Comment:We have planned, resourced and recruited staff with the
necessary project, change and technical skills (Business Analysts,
Project Managers and Support roles). Relevant front-line service
staff are involved in delivering the projects. These staff, along with
the Customer First, have attended a tailored Business Process
Improvement course. The Council also ran a corporate Change
Management training course for all Directors and Managers in
2004.

e Establishment of an e-delivery programme board

Green Green Green
01/09/2002 01/09/2002 01/09/2002

Comment:Established at start of the Programme. Membership
includes Directors and representatives of partner organisations.

e Use of formalised programme & project management
methodologies (e.g. PRINCE2, MSP) to support
e-delivery programme

Green Green Green
30/11/2001 30/11/2001 30/11/2001

Comment:The Customer First team is trained in PRINCE 2 and
MSP methodologies. Team tools include the use of a bespoke
Intranet issues and risk management system.

15

25




Change Management Area Current Status Anticipated status | Anticipated status
at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006

e Documentation/agreement of corporate risk Green Green Green

management strategy for roll-out of local e-government, 30/10/2003 30/10/2003 30/10/2003

including regular review of risk mitigation measures

Comment:The Customer First team developed and uses a
bespoke Intranet issues and risk management system, which is
regularly reviewed and updated. Risks are also managed through
the programme governance structure that is in place. The Council’s
risk manager and internal audit are also consulted where
appropriate.

e Use of customer consultation/research to inform
development of corporate e-government strategy

Green Green Green
30/06/2003 30/06/2003 30/06/2003

Comment:Members approved the Customer Service Strategy in
2003. Customers were consulted during the writing of this
document, including phone and face-to-face surveys to evaluate
service needs. The development of longer-term plans for future
consultation is required.

e Establishment of policy for addressing social inclusion
within corporate e-government strategy

Green
30/06/2003

Green
30/06/2003

Green
30/06/2003

Comment:Addressing the needs of different types of customers
and communities has been a key consideration in developing the
corporate e-Government Programme. More specifically, the Council
has played a key role with the County Council in the development
of a network of broadband access points across our villages. This
resulted in a Beacon Council award in 2003/4 for ICT and Social
Inclusion.

o |dentification of the specific needs of the most
disadvantaged groups and exploring how Information
Communication Technologies (ICT) can help to address
these needs (see
http://www.socialexclusion.gov.uk/page.asp?id=583)

Green
27/03/2003

Green
27/03/2003

Green
27/03/2003

Comment:Huntingdonshire is a relatively affluent District. However,
we have identified the need for access to ICT in rural areas and
have implemented several Learning Points which give general
access to IT and IT learning to disadvantaged groups. This is
supported by tuition from the Library Service. As part of a
partnership initiative, we have also implemented a Community
Learning Centre on the Oxmoor estate which gives residents
access to IT technology which they can use to develop their skills
for work or further education.

e Appointment of officer(s) to lead on corporate Green Green Green
governance of information assets and information 30/06/2005 30/06/2005 30/06/2005
!eglslathn (eg. I_=reedom of Informatlon ACt)’ including Comment:An Information Manager has been recruited.
information sharing and data quality audit procedures

e Establishment of Public Services Trust Charter re the Green Green Green
use of personal information collected to deliver improved 30/06/2005 30/06/2005 30/06/2005

services, including data sharing protocol framework (see
http://www.dca.gov.uk/foi/sharing/toolkit/lawguide.pdf &
http://www.govtalk.gov.uk/documents/eTrustguidegovtalk.
rtf) and designation of an Information Sharing Officer

Comment:This is a focus for the Information Manager who is: -
Working on information and data sharing protocols across the
council and also for use in the call centre. - Developing a fair
processing statement to be communicated to the general public
about how the council process their data in fair manner.

e Establishment of partnerships for the joint (aggregated)
procurement of broadband services

Green Green Green
30/05/2004 30/05/2004 30/05/2004

Comment:The Council is a partner to the County Council on the
development and roll out of the Cambridgeshire Community
Network.The Council will be procuring CCN connections from the
County and has also helped to ensure that its rural access points
(HELP) are linked to CCN.

16

26




Change Management Area

Current Status

Anticipated status

Anticipated status

at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006
e Engagement with intermediaries re addressing issues Green Green Green
of take up and efficiency in the delivery of e-government 30/06/2005 30/06/2005 30/06/2005

services (e.g. Citizens Advice Bureaux) and including
intermediaries component of Government Connect (see
http://www.govtalk.gov.uk/documents/intermediaries_poli
cy_document.pdf &
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/portal)

Comment:The Council has already stated its intention to consider
joining up with local partners / agencies in a main Customer
Service Centre. Broadband access points have been or are
planned to be installed in Council community shops shared with
other agencies such as the CAB and Connexions.The Council is
keen to promote the use of e-services to all partners in the
community. Through working with Parishes, County, Community
Groups and others, the Council will be looking to join up the
promotion of e-services with all of its rural broadband access
points.

e Compliance with BS 7799 on information security
management

Green Green Green
30/06/2005 30/06/2005 30/06/2005

Comment:The council recently commissioned external consultants
to review our ICT Strategy and a report was produced which
addressed information security. As a result we have now set up
security forums with different parts of the organisation to consider
the recommendations from the review. The Council will seek to
comply with this policy as far as is practical. We have also recruited
an Information Manager who is responsible for information security
and he will reviewing the Council's processes.

e Implementation of Benefits Realisation Plan for
delivery of local e-government programme strategic
objectives

Green
30/06/2005

Green
30/06/2005

Green
30/06/2005

Comment:The Programme is committed to undertaking Benefits
Realisation Management. External consultants have been used to
help advise on and pilot an appropriate methodology, and the
benefits to be delivered from Customer First will be built into our
new corporate performance management framework.

e Completion of mapping of Local Government Services
List transactions against approved security levels (0-3)
(see http://www.esd.org.uk/standards/Igsl/Igsl.doc &
http://www.authentication.org.uk/levels.asp &
http://e-government.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/assetRoot/04/00
/22/40/04002240.doc)

Green Green Green
30/06/2005 30/06/2005 30/06/2005

Comment:This will be applied in the future to all online
transactions on our recently re-launched website (to include online
payments by early 2005). It will also be addressed as part of the
implementation of the new call centre and associated processes.

e Planned compliance to HMG Security and
authentication frameworks through commitment to
citizen, employee and volunteer account registration in
Government Connect (see
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/portal)

Red
30/11/2004

Red
30/11/2004

Amber
15/01/2006

Comment:The Council has recently commissioned an independent
review of its Information Security framework, including the
establishment of an information asset register, risk analysis and
BS7799 gap analysis. These areas will, in future, be regularly
reviewed and as part of the review process the development of
Government security and related policies will also be monitored.
The Council will seek to comply with these policies as far as is
practical and when a proven business case and/or potential service
improvements have been identified. We are also monitoring
developments in Government Connect/Authentication.

e Compliance with an independent trust scheme
approval process designed to provide assurance for
individuals and companies using or relying upon
e-business transactions (see www.tscheme.org) and
which will work with Government Connect (see
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/portal/)

Red Red Amber
30/11/2004 30/11/2004 15/01/2006

Comment:For e-payments the Council will be using reputable third
party Payment Service Providers (PSPs). The security credentials
of the supplier will form part of the Council's decision to use them or
not. Compliance with trust schemes could form part of the selection
criteria in the future as more online services are deployed. Our
website uses SSL technology to verify it as trusted by an
independent verification company.

17

27




Change Management Area Current Status Anticipated status | Anticipated status
at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006
e Use of Government Connect (see
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/portal/) to support:
i) personalisation & registration for services Red Red Red
categorised at security levels '0' and '1' through the 31/12/2005 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

citizen account Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the

implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

ii) adoption of Unique IDentifiers (UIDs) and Red Red Red
associated standards, as designated in 31/12/2005 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Government Connect Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the

implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

iii) the bereavement journey & closing of accounts Red Red Red
(see 31/12/2005 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

http://www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/regulation/pst/proje

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
cts/mad/bereave.asp)

implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

iv) citizen & business authentication for services for Red Red Red
services categorised at security levels 0-3 31/12/2005 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

18

28




Change Management Area

Current Status

Anticipated status

Anticipated status

at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006
v) registration & authentication of employees for Red Red Red
internal and cross-agency services 31/12/2005 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

vi) corporate approach to collection of e-payments

Red Red Red
31/12/2005 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

vii) cross agency secure transactions (Government

to Government)

Red Red Red
31/12/2005 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

viii) account structures for citizens, businesses,
property, voluntary & community bodies, schools

and parishes

Red Red Red
31/12/2005 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

ix) common XML schema and frameworks for
performance management, Local Strategic
Partnerships and Local Area Agreements (where in

Red
31/12/2005

Red
31/12/2005

Red
31/12/2005

place)

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

19

29




Change Management Area

Current Status

Anticipated status

Anticipated status

at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006
x) GC Register (see Red Red Red
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/woss-demo/the- 31/12/2005 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

programme.en)

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

xi) GC Exchange (see
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/woss-demo/the-
programme.en)

Red Red Red
01/09/2005 01/09/2005 01/09/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

e Government Connect (see
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/portal/) back office
connection in place (Department Interface Server)

Red
01/09/2005

Red
01/09/2005

Red
01/09/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely
monitor the development of Government Connect and its growing
relevance to local authority services. As and when a sound
business case and/or service needs that align with Government
Connect are identified, then we will adopt Government Connect
services as appropriate.

e Enable Directgov (see www.direct.gov.uk) to deeplink
into service pages on local authority websites, by
providing & maintaining URL data, based on Local
Government Service & Interaction lists, standard
schemas and formats, as directed by the Local Directgov
programme (see
http://www.localegov.gov.uk/localdirectgov/ieg5)

Amber Amber Green
01/11/2005 01/11/2005 31/03/2006

Comment:We are actively co-operating with Local Directgov and
will provide reciprocal links from our website from the end of March
2006.

e Reciprocal connection to Directgov (see
http://www.direct.gov.uk) from corporate website and
partnership portal(s)

Green
31/01/2002

Green
31/01/2002

Green
31/01/2002

Comment:We are actively co-operating with Local Directgov and
will provide reciprocal links from our website from the end of March
2006.

e Introduction of Digital Interactive TV services (see
http://www.digitv.org.uk)

Red Red Red
01/09/2005 01/09/2005 01/09/2005

Comment:At this stage this is not a priority for the Council as there
is no evidence of local demand for this service. We are monitoring
the outputs of national projects and our use of Content
Management System should allow us to re-present this data via
digital TV if required. Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG4.5 unless a date is supplied.

20

30




Change Management Area Current Status Anticipated status | Anticipated status
at 31/12/2005 at 31/03/2006

e Establishment of dedicated telephone contact centre(s) Green Green Green

services 22/09/2005 22/09/2005 22/09/2005

Comment:A dedicated call centre has been implemented and now
handles over 25% of all Huntingdonshire District Council calls.
Further processes are due to be rolled-out in a staged plan.

e Compliance with Freedom of Information Act 2000,
including responding to requests for information from
individuals within a reasonable time period (see
http://www.lcd.gov.uk/foi/foidpunit.htm &
http://www.pro.gov.uk/recordsmanagement/access/defaul
t.htm)

Green
01/01/2005

Green
01/01/2005

Green
01/01/2005

Comment:We are now complying with the Freedom of Information
Act 2000 and have a process in place for responding to requests
within the statutory timeframe. We have also recruited an
Information Manager who is responsible for this process.

e Regularly-maintained link from Local Land & Property
Gazetteer (LLPG) to National Land & Property Gazetteer
(NLPG) (see http://www.nlpg.org.uk)

Green Green Green
11/07/2002 11/07/2002 11/07/2002

Comment:We are a level 1 LLPG and link to the NLPG on a daily
basis. Our streets are maintained to level 3. The LLPG underpins
or is directly linked to 15 datasets within HDC. The LLPG has been
used as one of the pilot local authorities for the ODPM Valuebill
National project.

e Local Land & Property Gazetteer (LLPG) linked to
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) systems

Green
22/09/2005

Green
22/09/2005

Green
22/09/2005

Comment:Data is currently updated from the NLPG on a regular
basis. We are currently implementing an improved process to
provide daily updates from HDC's LLPG.

e Connection to National Land Information Service Red Red Red

(NLIS) at Level 3 (see http://www.nlis.org.uk) 31/01/2004 31/01/2004 31/01/2004
Comment:Integration of software in progress.

e Introduction and maintenance of an online service Amber Green Green

directory for Children's services for professionals working 31/03/2003 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

with children & young people, and allowing public access
where possible (for further information see
http://www.dfes.gov.uk/isa)

Comment:We will provide deep links to Cambridgeshire County
Council's web site from our web site once the information is
available. Also Cambridgeshire Portal will provide a one stop
source of information.

21

31




Section 3 - BVPI 157

Councils are asked to complete the following table using the definition of Best Value
Performance Indicator (BVPI) 157 for Electronic Service Delivery (Corporate). You
are required to validate your local list of interactions against Version 2.01 of the
Local Government Services List (LGSL) developed by local authority members of
the esd-toolkit (www.esd-toolkit.org). All totals and percentages shown should be

cumulative.
Actual Forecast
BVPI 157 Interaction Type Forecast 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06
average |[EG3 B B B B B
% e-enabled . . . . .
position in
2004/05 (i.e.
at 31 March
2005)
Providing information:
o Total types of interaction e-enabled 99 % ) 0 °12 ° 97 e 102
® % e-enabled ® 0.00 % ® 0.00 % ©1121% |090.65% |e95.33%
Collecting revenue:
o Total types of interaction e-enabled 97 % 0 0 e 0 o1 o1
® % e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % © 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % e 100.00 % | 100.00 %
Providing benefits & grants:
e Total types of interaction e-enabled 96 % o0 o0 o0 o0 o0
® % e-enabled ° ° ° ° °
Consultation:
e Total types of interaction e-enabled 97 % o0 LX) e9 ® 26 ® 26
® % e-enabled ® 0.00 % ® 0.00 % ©3462% | 100.00% |e 100.00 %
Regulation (such as issuing
licenses): 94 % 0 0 0 ® 10 e 10
e Total types of interaction e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % ® 0.00 % ©83.33% |083.33%
® % e-enabled
Applications for services:
o Total types of interaction e-enabled 97 % e0 0 e 10 °62 73
® % e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % © 0.00 % ©1351% |083.78% | 98.65%
Booking venues, resources &
courses: 93 % 0 0 ) o1 o1
e Total types of interaction e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % ¢ 100.00 % |e 100.00 %
® % e-enabled
Paying for goods & services:
o Total types of interaction e-enabled 95 % 0 0 0 8 o9
® % e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % © 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % © 80.00% |e90.00 %
Providing access to community,
professional or business networks: 97 % o0 o0 o0 ® 6 * 6
e Total types of interaction e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % © 0.00 % ® 0.00 % ©8571% |08571%
® % e-enabled
Procurement:
e Total types of interaction e-enabled 95 % o0 LX) o0 e3 o3
® % e-enabled ® 0.00 % © 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % e 100.00 % | 100.00 %
Total:
o Total types of interaction e-enabled 98 % 0 0 e 31 ° 214 ° 231
e % e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % ©1286% |(088.80% |e95.85%
22

32




Section 4 - Access Channel Take-Up
In order to demonstrate public take-up of the main e-access channels that you are
investing in, you are asked to complete the table below detailing actual and forecast
figures for numbers of e-enabled payment transactions and change of address
notifications. Planning authorities should also complete the Local Service Website
line for planning applications. It is important that e-access channel investment and
rollout also facilitates accompanying improvements in the corporate management
capability required to monitor and collect such statistics. Click on the light bulb icons
for industry definitions of page impressions and unique users.

Actual Forecast
E-enablement & Main E-Access Channel 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08
Take-Up
Local Service Websites
e Page impressions (annual) 2,192,000 6,734,135 7,000,000 7,500,000 8,000,000
e Unique users, i.e. separate individuals visiting | 127,000 112,903 120,000 125,000 135,000
website (annual)
o Number of e-enabled payment transactions 0 0 5,000 10,000 15,000
accepted via website
o Number of change of address notifications 0 0 1,000 1,000 1,000
accepted via website
o Number of planning applications accepted via |26 42 65 95 130
website (including through the Planning Portal)

Comment: We take payments for planning applications through the
planning portal. Data for 2003/2004 includes Huntsleisure.org, HDC's

website for leisure and events.

Telephone

(i.e. telephone interactions where officers can
access electronic information and/or update
records on-line there and then, including
interactions in contact centres)

o Number of e-enabled payment transactions 9,000 15,000 25,000 27,000 30,000
accepted by telephone
e Number of change of address notifications 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000

accepted via telephone

Comment: From 2005/2006 staff in our Call Centre will be able to deal

with payment transactions.

Face To Face

(i.e. front-line operations where officers can
access electronic information and/or update
records on-line there and then, including
interactions at reception desks, One Stop Shops
&amp; home visits)

o Number of e-enabled payment transactions 1,100,000 1,250,000 1,350,000 1,400,000 1,450,000
accepted via personal contact
e Number of change of address notifications 2,000 1,000 1,000 0 0

accepted via personal contact

Comment: High volume for payments includes leisure centres. We
anticipate face to face notification of change of address decreasing as
other channels become more popular.

23

33




Actual

Forecast

E-enablement & Main E-Access Channel
Take-Up

03/04

04/05

05/06

06/07

07/08

Other Electronic Media
(e.g. BACS, text messaging)

e Number of e-enabled payment transactions
accepted via BACS

524,000

600,000

700,000

750,000

800,000

o Number of e-enabled payment transactions
accepted via text message or other electronic
form

o Number of change of address notifications
accepted via other electronic media

Comment: High volumes includes Direct Debit payments for council tax.
We not accept payment transactions via text messages or other electronic
forms and this is not a priority for HDC at the moment.

Non Electronic
(e.g. cash office, post)

o Number of payments accepted by cheque or 116,000 120,000 125,000 125,000 125,000
other non-electronic form

o Number of change of address notifications 2,000 2,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
accepted via non-electronic form

Comment: We anticipate that the number of payments by this channel will
plateau as other channels become more popular. We also accept that
certain customer groups will still continue to prefer non electronic
transactions.

24

34




Section 5 - Local e-Government Implementation Expenditure
Councils are asked to provide a summary of current and forecast expenditure on
implementing electronic government up to 2007/08. This should include the
standard elements in the table below and brief commentary on the use of IEG
money. For 2005/6 onwards, please include best estimates of revenue and capital
expenditure even though the council may not yet have officially approved the
budgets. (Please note that implementing e-government expenditure refers to
investment designed to e-enable local services and to transform their accessibility,
quality and cost-effectiveness in line with the 2005 target. Cyclical spend related to
the maintenance of the existing ICT infrastructure should not be included):

Backward Look (£) Forward Look (£)
Programme Resource 01/02 to 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08
03/04
e |[EG capital grant 400,000 350,000 150,000
Comment:
o ODPM Local e-Government Support & 0 0 0 0 0
Capacity Programme capital grant
Comment:
e your council's nominal pro rata share of ODPM |40,000 0 0 0 0
Local e-Government Partnership Programme
capital grant allocated in your area
Comment:
e financial contribution from public-private 0 0 0 0 0
partnerships
Comment:
e resources being applied from internal revenue |2,220,000 1,069,000 2,087,000 452,000 46,000
and capital budgets to implement e-government
Comment:
e other resources (e.g. training) (please specify) |0 |0 |O |0 |0
Comment:
o ODPM e-Innovations Fund capital grant 0 |0 |0 |0 |0
Comment:
o financial contributions from other sources of 656,000 0 129,333 0 0
Government funding, such as the Invest to Save
Budget (ISB), EU funding
Comment:
TOTAL 3,316,000 1,419,000 2,366,333 452,000 46,000
25

35




9

Juswwo)
0] 0| 0] of 0| 0] 0| 0 oyoads soInISS @
“UOIYM JO ‘awi} SAIONPOId
‘Juswwo)
9A0QE PaJaA0D JOU SBIOUBIDIYS
o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ 0 juswainooid-a BuNo-ssoi) e
Juswwo)
0] 0| 0] of 0| o] 0| 0 oyoads soInISS @
:ydIym Jo ‘Juswaindoid-9
Juswwo)
SAOQE PaJonod
0 _ 0 _ 0 _ 0 _ 0 _ 0 _ 0 _ 0 JOU SaI0UBIdIYS SBJINIBS ®”_.N,_OQ,_OO ]
Juswwo)
o] 0| o] of o] o] 0| 0 sjuswAed-o o
;Juswwo)
o] o] 0| o] o] o] o] 0 JuBWINIOBI-o @
:y2IYM JO ‘sa9IAIaS ajesodio)
a|qeyses uieb a|qeysed uieb a|qeyses uieb a|qeyses
yoIym Jo--: [enuue pajoadxg yoIyMm Jo - |enuue pajoadxg yoIym Jo - [enuue pajoadxg YoIym Jo - uieb [enuuy suiesy Aousiyg
80/L0 £0/90 90/50 S0/t0

(3) o017 premioy

(3) oo piemyoeg

‘sainbly Bunenojes ul yoddns Jo 821n0s Aoy e JaYo OS|e S8J0N 9|qel 8y} Ul S8}ISqam palsi| 0] SHUIT
"JUBWIUIBA0S) |B007T 4o} (NLT) 810N |eoiuyoa] Aouaio3 go0z Atenuepr ay) ul jno 18s 10bue) suieb Aousiolye ayj jsuiebe juswanaiyoe
Bulnsesw 03 yoeoidde ay} yum ubije o} paubisap usaq sey juswularob-a |Boo| wouy suieb Aousiolys Jo uonenojes ay |

suiec) Aouaioiy)g swwelbold JUsWuUIdA0D)-3 |B20T - 9 UOI}IIS

36




LC

000°9v- 000°2SP* €€€°99¢€2- 000°62€L-

13N - SNIVO ADN3ID1443 V1Ol

“ainjipuadxa [ejded jau jo jJoedwi SNUSASI SY} SSO| SpPEW SSIOUSIOIYS SNUSBASI S} 89 PjNOM Spew 8q 0} Uole|ndjed

pl[eA Ajuo ay] "S}SOD SnudAal pue s}so9 [e)ded usam)ag UONJOUlSIP OU SaxeW }I 8snesaq ssajbuluesw si}| “dpew aq 0} Sa1oudIIYs 10} saniunuoddo Jofew
juasaid os|e pjnom swwelboid ay) jeyy pasiubooal osje sem 1 ybnoyyje ‘pus jey} 0} Juswisanul ue Buiag se HOH Ul Udas uaag sAemje sey pue ‘9oIAIes
Jawosnd ul sjuswaaoldwi Juediiubis ayew 0} alisap e AQ USALIP SEM }| "SBM JOABU pue ‘@sed ay) Jou si siy| Aoualoiys Jo auo si swwelbold Juswuianob-a
8y} Jo} ajeuonel ay) jey; saldwi ) 8snedaq Buipesisiw si }| “ssajbuiueaw pue Buipeajsiw yjog si JON — sules) Aouaiolyg [ejo],, JO uolendjed sy :juawwo’)

alnyipuadxa

00091 000°¢sY €€€°99¢€°C 000'6L¥'L| uonejusws|dwi juswuianob-e SS37

SSO¥UO

0 0 0 0 0 0 000°2L 00006 - SNIVO AON3ID1443 V10l

Huswied SA0QE paJon0d

o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ 0 JOU S8I0UBIDIYS SNOBUEB|IBDSI
JUawwon

o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ 0 suolnoesuel|

"9/500z Buunp syysusg ui joiid ABojouyosy
a]Iqow 1no ALied £4dqg / Idg @AIsuaxa Buimol|o) Jaquiaydag ul a1jusd [j|ed mau juswaldul| :suonoe Ay “Bujiom ajiqow pue YD Buipnjoul ‘ABojouyos)

mau BuinopoJjul pue sassaooid Buioey Jawoisnd (4dg / 1dg) Puuesuibua-al / Buinoidw Aq 891A18S JBWO0SND pue AjAionpold aaoidw| ;Juswiwio)

9A0CE PaJoA0D JOU SBIOUSIOIYD

0 0 0 0 0 0 000°¢. 00006 auwy aAponpoud Buino-ssoi e
a|geyses uieb a|qeysed ureb a|geysed uieb a|geyseo
UoIym Jo-** |enuue pajoadxg UoIym Jo - lenuue pajoadx3 UoIym Jo - lenuue pajoadx3 UoIym Jo - uieb |enuuy sules) Aouaio3
80/20 £0/90 90/S0 G0/v0
(3) %007 piemioy (3) %007 premsioeg

37



This page is intentionally left blank

38



Agenda ltem 4

COMT 22"° NOVEMBER 2005
CUSTOMER FIRST ADVISORY GROUP 29™ NOVEMBER 2005
SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE DELIVERY & 6™ DECEMBER 2005
RESOURCES)

CABINET 15" DECEMBER 2005

CALL CENTRE PERFORMANCE AND PROPOSED
CHANGES TO CALL-HANDLING ARRANGEMENTS
(Report by Director of Commerce & Technology)

1. PURPOSE

11 The purpose of this paper is to report to Cabinet on the performance of
the call centre in its first month of operation and to seek approval for
certain changes in call-handling arrangements as a result of our
experience in that month.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Cabinet approved the setting-up of a call centre at its meeting on 9" June

2003. Since then:

e A contract was signed with Cambridgeshire County Council on 21%
March 2005 for the provision of various support services, including
hosting call centre software on their Cambridgeshire Direct hardware
platform and providing maintenance and technical support.

e A call centre team, comprising a Call Centre Manager, a Business
Support Manager, two team leaders and fourteen full-time and part-
time Customer Service Advisors, has been appointed.

e The call centre went live on 22" September 2005.

2.2 In accordance with members’ wishes, when the call centre went live it did
so without many of the features which are standard in the vast majority of
call centres, namely the use of queuing systems, recorded
announcements and menu options®. The only recorded announcement
used is an out-of-hours message advising callers of the centre’s opening
hours and providing the Council’'s emergency number.

2.3  The exception is the use of recorded music, which members also
expressed unease about. Where the customer is being transferred to the
back office, a few seconds’ music is played. This is a function of the way
the underlying system has been set up, and is not something we can
change.

3. PERFORMANCE TO DATE

3.1 The centre’s performance to date — the period from 22™ September to
11™ November 2005 - is as follows:

! Examples of some of the more highly-regarded local government call centres, including a
number which have won customer service awards, are attached at Annex A.

% This period applies to calls received on 388388 aswell as Streetscene calls. Streetscene calls
were transferred into the Call Centre on 12 October 2005, so statistics for these calls are for the
period 12" October to 11" November.

39



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Number %
Total calls received 20756 | 100.0
Calls answered 19950 | 96.1
Lost calls® 806 3.9
For calls answered 19950 | 100.0
Calls answered within 20 seconds 19451 | 975
Average time to answer a call (seconds) 4.0 | N/A
Streetscene calls received® 2501 | 100.0
Streetscene calls resolved first time by the advisor® 2101 | 84.0

The key performance statistics compare to our targets as follows:

Actual Target

Calls answered within 20 seconds (%) 97.5 80.0

Lost calls (%) 3.9 5.0

While this is a limited sample based on the first month of operation (5
weeks in the case of switchboard calls), it is a very encouraging start.
There have been some inevitable teething problems, but the knowledge
needed to deal efficiently and effectively with customers’ requests is being
captured within the system, and such problems will have been largely
eradicated by the time the call centre officially launches early in 2006.

Now is a good time to reconsider the way the call centre operates, having

had its “soft launch® but before its official launch. Customers’ feedback has

shown that they:

e are pleased to be getting through to the Council more often and more
quickly than previously; and

o would like to be able to leave a message when no-one is available to
take their call quickly, rather than hang on the line indefinitely or have to
ring back later.

There are ways to improve the service further, but these would require us

to change the way the telephone system is set up.

Customers occasionally still get an engaged tone, and this is increasingly
likely to occur as more services are transferred into the call centre. We
could avoid the need for this, except at exceptionally busy times. We have
many more lines than we are currently using, but the system is currently set
up for 10 advisors, the maximum who will be on any one shift. If all 10 are
busy, the 11" caller will get an engaged tone. An advisor will probably
become free in the next few seconds, but someone else is then likely to
have got ahead of the unlucky 11™ caller, who will have to ring back later to
get through. Queuing, a well-known and widely-accepted British pastime,
seems fairer.

If we introduced such a system, OFCOM regulations would require us to
have a recorded announcement to advise customers that they were in a
queue, because they would be paying for holding. However, we could use

3 Calls abandoned by the caller before getting through to an advisor.

* Streetscene calls are those relating to refuse collection, assisted collection, car parks, notification
of change, assets, grounds and maintenance, etc, as opposed to switchboard calls. The expectation
isthat the customer service advisors should be able to deal with the majority of Streetscene calls,
whereas they will generally hand on switchboard calls.

> Without having to hand the call off to the back office.

® Meaning the Call Centreislive, but no publicity has been given to the service.

40




3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

52

that as an opportunity to allow people to remain in the queue or to leave a
message asking us to call them back.

Having such a announcement would provide another benefit. The Call
Centre Manager and team leaders would like to be able to record calls
routinely’ for training purposes. To do this, the Data Protection Act requires
us to advise the customer beforehand. The only way to guarantee that we
give that announcement to our customers every time is to do it by way of a
recorded message.

PROPOSED CHANGE

Bearing in mind members’ reservations, the following is proposed as a 3-

month trial:

e We increase the number of operational lines at the call centre from 10
to 30

e We introduce a recorded announcement advising customers that their
calls may be recorded for training purposes. This message will play
immediately before a customer service advisor takes the call.

e We introduce a separate recorded announcement, which would play if
the customer had been waiting for 30 seconds, asking if they wanted to
be held in a queue, and asking them if they would prefer to leave a
message. If they choose to stay on the line they will continue to hear a
tone. If they want to leave a message they will have to dial 1 to do so.

Carrying out a trial will enable us to minimise the risk that customers
perceive a reduction rather than an improvement in the level of service. We
will make a further report to members after the trial, setting out the results
in terms of:

¢ the performance statistics set out in paragraph 3.1 above;

¢ the customer feedback we have received; and

e the impact it has had on advisor training.

Should we choose to revert to our current arrangements, we have been
advised by the County Council, who are responsible for setting up the
system, that it can be changed back at no cost.

The Members Customer First Advisory Group has received this report and
been consulted on these proposals. Members welcomed the performance
figures and indicated that they would be prepared for the trial to go ahead
as proposed.

CONCLUSIONS

The call centre has got off to a good start. Customers are experiencing a
better level of service than they did previously, understandably given the
Council’'s investment in increased resources, and are generally happy with
the service.

There is scope to improve the service further, by virtually eliminating the
engaged tone, by providing customers a facility to leave a message when
we are busy, and by recording calls for training purposes. All of these
improvements require us to use a recorded message.

’ At the moment, customer service advisors can only record individual calls, for exampleif a
customer is being threatening or abusive.

41



6. RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1 Cabinet is recommended to approve the trial use of call queuing for a 3-
month period as set out in paragraph 4.1.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985
Cabinet report and decision dated 09/06/03

Contact Officers:

David Oliver, Director of Commerce & Technology @® 01480388309
Chris Hall, Customer First Programme Manager ® 01480388116
Helen Berry, Call Centre Manager @ 01480375931

42



(suondo nuasw + abessaw paplodal) asuodsay 3210/ dANJRIBIU| = HAI - « ;910N

sasodind A A N N A 0S8 LTV S6.10 9ems

Buluren loy papiodal s|ed
alinbai Aayy A N A A A TT9 9./ €26T0 SIanly 831y ]

Jaquinu uoIsualxa ay) Ja1ug

1o abfessaw e anes| ued Aayl|
sasodind A N A N A GG9 9tV 6/.2T0 mojreH

Buluren 1o} papiodai s|ed
911ua? [[ed A A N N A 000 T68 £5¢10 I

ay1 01 paliajsuel] s1ab s|ed ay)

uay) 1S4 pseog Yolms 0] Sa09)
sasodind N A N N A 858V TV ¥8V10 SEETNIN

Buiuren 10y papliodai s|ed
sasodind A N N N A 000 ¢g/ ¢/€10 [leM3 % wosd3

Buluren loy papiodal s|ed
sasodind A N N N A GeY GEV 81210 loowsabpasg|

Buiuren 1o} papiodai s|ed
A N A N A GGE8 ¢¥E T9T0 apisawe ]|
A A N N A 000€ €€¢ TSTO |oodianI
pauonuaw aiem sswi Buiuado A N N N A 0009 687 TSTO Aajsmouy
A N N N A 6E6 €6 ¢8Y10 Buipry 1se3

STEN e} ananQ® ul uonIsod | aIsnw p|oH | ¢x8Al | @uol pabebu3|anand |eD | 1aqunu sauoydajal Aioyiny

S3ILITIOVL FHLNID T1VI STIONNOD J3HLO 40 NOSIHVdNOD

Vv Xauuy

43



This page is intentionally left blank

44



Agenda Iltem 5

CABINET 15 DECEMBER 2005

BLACK AND MINORITY ETHNIC (BME) HOUSING STRATEGY
(Report by the Head of Housing Services)

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To consider the second draft Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) Housing
Strategy.

2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2.1 The Council has a legal duty under the Race Relations Act 1976 and
subsequent amendments to eliminate unlawful racial discrimination; promote
equality of opportunity between persons of different racial groups; and
promote good relations between persons of different racial groups. The
Council's work in this area is the subject of regulation and inspection, for
example, under the CPA regime.

2.2 The Commission for Racial Equality have released a draft Code of Practice in
Housing which gives advice on how housing organisations can avoid unlawful
racial discrimination and promote good race relations. It covers nine areas of
housing. The document confirms that BME households are more likely to
suffer disadvantage in housing, for example, they are more likely to live in the
social rented sector than other people, to live in poor housing, to live in
deprived areas, and /or to live in over-crowded conditions.

2.3 When the Audit Commission inspected the Council in 2004, they found that
one of the areas for improvement was the Council’'s work on assessing the
housing needs of BME groups. Therefore, Housing Services undertook the
following:

1. Analysis of census data

2. Analysis of the users of the Council’s Housing Services

3 Commissioned a specific study into the housing needs of BME
groups in Huntingdonshire

4, Jointly commissioned some research into the needs of
Gypsies and Travellers (not yet concluded).

The findings of these strands of work have been brought together in a draft

BME Housing Strategy (Appendix 1). The document has been the subject of
consultation with partners and stakeholders, and the local Diversity Forum.

3. IMPLICATIONS
3.1 The main findings of the research are set out in the Executive Summary.

There is an action plan at the end of the Strategy which will be achieved
within current resources.

45



4. CONCLUSIONS

4.1 The strategy has been prepared using a range of data sources. The Strategy
will strengthen the Council’'s work in this area and will address the
weaknesses identified by the CPA Inspectors.

5. RECOMMENDATION

5.1 That Cabinet endorse the draft Black and Minority Ethnic Housing Strategy.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

e Commission for Racial Equality, Draft Code of Practice on Racial Equality in
Housing, 2005

o The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000
¢ Huntingdonshire District Council, Equality and Inclusion Strategy, June 2005
e CPA Inspection Report
e BMG, Housing Needs and Preferences of BME groups in Huntingdonshire,
2005
Contact Jo Barrett, Housing Strategy Manager
Officer:

& (01480) 388203

46



Agenda Iltem 6

COMT 15 NOVEMBER 2005
CABINET 15 DECEMBER 2005

NUISANCE VEHICLES
(Report by Public Health Manager)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members about the availability
of devolved powers from DVLA to remove untaxed vehicles from the
public highway, to explain how these powers could enhance our
service for dealing with nuisance vehicles, to seek adoption of the
devolved powers and delegated authority for authorised officers to
use the powers in the manner described.

1.2 Huntingdonshire District Council has a good track record in dealing
with abandoned vehicles and this devolved power would provide a
useful additional tool for combating nuisance vehicles on the street in
certain circumstances.

2. SUPPORTING/BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2.1 Devolved powers were introduced in 2002 and are available to local
authorities and police forces wishing to act as agents of the Secretary
of State within the regulations set out in the Vehicles Excise Duty
(Immobilisation, Removal and Disposal of Vehicles) Regulations 1997
(as amended).

2.2 The DVLA has advised that there are currently 65 local authorities
operating these powers and a further 41 are in discussion about
adopting them.

2.3 If the powers are adopted by the Council they have to be operated in
accordance with a code of practice drawn up by the DVLA and the
Council has to sign up to that code which is attached as an annex to

this report.
3. IMPLICATIONS
3.1 Untaxed vehicles on the highway are frequently unregistered and

uninsured and can fall into the category of nuisance vehicles that
blight communities and attract anti-social behaviour and vehicle
crime. The removal of untaxed vehicles that fall into the category of
nuisance vehicles will make a positive contribution to the
maintenance of clean, safe environments in our communities.

3.2 It is not envisaged that the Council would necessarily act as agents
for the DVLA in respect of every report of an untaxed vehicle on the
public highway but there are occasions when, for instance, several
vehicles are kept by a single householder and these generate
complaints of nuisance from neighbours and from town and parish
councils. As such vehicles are not abandoned they cannot be dealt
with under the abandoned vehicles powers.

47



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

If the powers are adopted, the Council can retain all clamping,
impounding and storage fees. If a vehicle is clamped, the motorist
has 24 hours to claim the vehicle before it is removed to a vehicle
pound. Payment at this point is £80 to de-clamp, plus evidence of a
valid tax disc. If no disc is present, £120 surety fee must be paid.
Once the vehicle is impounded the release fee becomes £160. If a
vehicle is instantly removed, the release fee remains at £80 for the
first 24 hours.

As the Council uses an independent contractor to remove abandoned
vehicles it is envisaged that the same contractor could operate this
scheme on behalf of the Council, once an authorised officer of the
Council has carried out the necessary checks with DVLA online and
issued the instructions to the contractor. In return for this service, the
contractor would retain the fees.

By adopting devolved powers, the Council will not be entering into a
contract with the DVLA. The powers can be used as and when the
Council sees fit and there are no fixed targets. The only requirement
is to comply with the DVLA code of practice. Later, if the powers are
adopted, the Council could expand the use of the powers if dealing
with untaxed nuisance vehicles became a local priority. In such
circumstances a further report would be required as the resources
presently available for dealing with abandoned and nuisance vehicles
would be inadequate to serve an expanded service.

Although the legislation provides for the clamping of vehicles,
immediate removal is an alternative. Immediate removal is the
preferred alternative within Huntingdonshire for nuisance vehicles
which, by definition, have been on the public highway for some time.
Vehicles of value have to be stored for a minimum of 14 days and
vehicles of no value have to be stored for a minimum of 8 days. No
vehicle can be disposed of without authority from DVLA and if
vehicles are authorised for disposal at auction the Council can only
keep sufficient funds to cover reasonable expense, the balance being
returned to the DVLA.

There will be no additional costs to the Council in adopting these
powers which will be administered by the Abandoned Vehicles officer;
neither would significant revenue be generated. The contractor will
accept the fees in recompense for removing, storing, returning or
disposing of nuisance vehicles as instructed. The Council will have
no involvement in debt recovery.

The DVLA will undertake any prosecutions that are deemed
necessary for offences under the regulations and appeals against the
Council's actions are also handled by the DVLA; whose decision is
final.

CONCLUSION
It is concluded that this scheme would be a useful addition to the

existing powers available for dealing with abandoned and nuisance
vehicles.

48



5. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is RECOMMENDED that:

5.1 DVLA devolved powers for dealing with, clamping and removing
untaxed vehicles from the public highway be adopted by the Council;

5.2 delegated authority is given to the Director of Operational Services to
appoint authorised officers to enforce the provisions of the DVLA
devolved powers;

5.3 the Head of Environmental Health Services be authorised to sign up
to the DVLA code of practice on behalf of the District Council; and

5.4 the Head of Environmental Health Services be authorised to enter
into an agreement with the existing abandoned vehicles contractor to
collect, store, destroy, return, sell or otherwise dispose of untaxed
nuisance vehicles in accordance with the DVLA code of practice in
return for the fees set out in the Vehicle Excise Duty (Immobilisation,
Removal and Disposal of Vehicles) Regulations 1997 (as amended).

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Vehicle Excise Duty (Immobilisation, Removal and Disposal of Vehicles)
Regulations 1997 (as amended)

DVLA Code of Practice/Agreement for Dealing with Untaxed Vehicles

Contact Officer; John Allan
=2 01480 388281

49



Annex A

CODE OF PRACTICE / AGREEMENT TO PARTICIPATE IN THE
WHEELCLAMPING OF UNLICENSED VEHICLES

1. The Council will act as partners with DVLA and will operate within
the regulations set out in the Vehicle Excise Duty (Immobilisation,
Removal and Disposal of Vehicles) Regulations 1997 (as amended).

2.  The council officers will spot untaxed vehicles and use the online
abandoned vehicles web link to authorise unlicensed vehicles 24 hours
per day, as per the instructions in Annex B.

3. If the online link is not available, the Council can contact DVLA to
seek authorisation to clamp. This information will be returned in the
form of four messages:

a. Authorised to clamp or instantly lift

b.  Not authorised to clamp but issue CLE2/6
c.  Not authorised

d. Stolen Vehicle

4. In order for the offender to be prosecuted it is essential that the
council official issues a CLE2/6 on the vehicle and sends a copy to
DVLA'’s Local Office for prosecution action to be taken forward.

5. When authorisation to clamp is given, then the Council will
immobilise or instantly lift the vehicle and issue a CLE2/6. An
information leaflet and warning notices should be placed on the
windscreen of the vehicle. Ideally, the authorisation of clamping and
the actual clamping of a vehicle must take place as one action to
reduce the risk of the owner returning to the vehicle and driving away.

6. DVLA should be informed of all actions taken on a vehicle at the
end of the day. This information must be passed to DVLA in
accordance with the instructions in Annex B.

7. If payment is made to release the vehicle, then the Council should
undertake to de-clamp the vehicle within two hours.

8. When payment is made at the pound or via the telephone, the
appropriate paperwork should be completed.

9. If payment is not made within 24 hours of clamping, the vehicle
should be soft-lifted and removed to the pound within the next 24 hours.

10. The vehicle pound must be secure, well lit and reasonably
accessible.

50



11. The Council should inform DVLA, Police and Trace-Line of the
impounding of the vehicle.

12. When the vehicle is lifted, a detailed inspection of the vehicle
should be undertaken and a vehicle inspection report completed and
signed off when the vehicle is impounded.

13. Each vehicle will need to be evaluated and the information sent to
DVLA to enable the vehicle to be categorised, ie of value or not. This
information must be passed to DVLA wheel-clamping section in
accordance with the instructions in Annex B.

14. Vehicles of value will need to be stored for a minimum of 14 days
and vehicles of no value will need to be stored for a minimum 8 days.

15. A full pound inventory of vehicles stored must be provided to
DVLA at the end of each week.

16. No vehicle can be disposed of without authorisation from DVLA.
All vehicles disposed of by crushing should be disposed of within 7 days
of the Council receiving the authorisation. Once disposal is completed,
the Council should return the V876 that accompanies the authorisation
of disposal to DVLA. This information updates the vehicle record.

17. All disposals via crushing should be completed on a licensed
vehicle disposal site, and should reflect the current legislation.

18. Vehicles valued at over £5000 are to be disposed of at auction
and when authorised for disposal must be submitted to a reputable
auction house for auction.

19. The Council will provide a telephone number for the payment line
and this should be manned from 8am — 6pm Monday to Friday.

20. Any problems or disputes will be resolved within 24 hours.
21. The Council will be responsible for any damage to a vehicle whilst
it is lifted on to their removal vehicle and during transportation to the

pound.

22. The Council will be responsible for all vehicles whilst in their
custody in their vehicle pound.

23. The Council will be able to instantly soft lift all vehicles, ie remove
the vehicle to the pound, within the first 24 hours after authorisation:

e On agreement with DVLA
e On police advice

e If the officers are in danger

51



e |If the clamp has been previously stolen or there has been a
high percentage of stolen clamps in a particular area.

24. The Council will retain all wheel clamping fees:

De-clamping £80
Impounding £160

Storage £15 per day
Unclaimed £120 surety fee

25. It will also retain all auction fees to the value of the Council’s costs.

26. A surety payment of £120 is payable against getting a valid tax
disc. This money is refundable if a tax disc is produced. Any unclaimed
surety payments are retained by the council on the 15" day after the
payment is made.

27. After a vehicle has been impounded for 24 hours, DVLA will write
to the registered keeper giving notification of where the vehicle is held
and instructions on how to obtain possession.

28. DVLA will inform the Associations ABI HPI and FLA of all vehicles
impounded, and respond to their instruction on any interest by their
members.

29. There will be occasions when the de-clamping or release of a
vehicle will be made free of charge or when a refund is to be made to
the keeper of a vehicle. Only the Agency will make these decisions and
each case will be assessed on its merits.

30. All training will be provided by DVLA. On-site support will be
available during the start of the scheme, and will continue thereafter by
consultation via telephone and periodic visits by a member of DVLA
staff.

31. DVLA will provide the authorisation to dispose of the vehicle after
all actions have been taken.

32. All stationery will be provided by DVLA.

33. The regulations state that an appeal against wheel clamping can
be made. All appeals will be dealt with by DVLA and its decision will be
final.

34. All disputes over private land will be dealt with by DVLA. The
Council will be expected to provide detailed maps of what land is
maintained at public expense. Again DVLA'’s decision will be final.

33. Any publicity entered into should be first agreed with the DVLA to
ensure that a consistent message is being put forward.

52



ANNEX B

Before seeking authorisation check the following:

SAESR SN

The vehicle is not displaying a valid tax disc.

There is no valid blue disabled badge displayed.

The vehicle is not historic — registered before 1/1/1973 (L suffix or older).
The vehicle is stationary on the public highway.

Complete wheel-clamping checklist.

Input Vehicle Registration Mark for an enquiry using “Unlicensed Vehicle” from
the dropdown menu.

Request
Authorisation
Check
Make/Model/Colour
Correct / Incorrect
Check Date of Refer To DVLA
Liability
o Liability less than
Liability over 28 14 Days
days Liability between 14
and 28 days
Clamp/Impound and \
Issue CLE2/6 Issue CLE2/6 No Action

Where an unlicensed vehicle is clamped

A daily log and download must be sent to DVLA on the day of clamping
(Day 1). Where this is not possible, the fax/download must be sent by
9.30am the following morning.

A fax must be sent on Day 2 advising what action has been taken in
respect of each vehicle. This must include impounded vehicles, de-
clamps and stolen clamps. Where the vehicle has been impounded a
valuation must be included.

Where an unlicensed vehicle is impounded (Instant Lift)

DS

7 7
0’0 0‘0

A daily log and download must be sent to DVLA on the day of
impounding (Day 1). The daily log must include an evaluation for each
vehicle. Again, where this is not possible, the fax and download must be
sent by 9.30am the following morning.

DVLA fax number is 01792 765151

E-mail address is Wheelclamping.dvla@gtnet.gov.uk

The Spreadsheet must be sent in the correct format and must not be
amended. If you require instructions on completing the spreadsheet or a
blank spreadsheet, please contact Steve Jones on 01792 765325.

53



This page is intentionally left blank

54



Agenda Iltem 7a

CABINET 15TH DECEMBER 2005

MEMBERS’ ADVISORY GROUP FOR PUBLIC CONVENIENCES
(Report of the Advisory Group)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Advisory Group was re-constituted by the Cabinet at its meeting on
15th September, 2005 to consider the present position in relation to the
Council’'s public conveniences and proposals for their improvement and
continuing maintenance (Minute No. 74).

1.2 A meeting of the Advisory Group took place on 24th November 2005
and Councillors | C Bates, Mrs J Chandler, N J Guyatt and Mrs P J
Longford were present. Councillor Mrs K P Gregory also had been
invited to attend to contribute her views on the condition of facilities in St.
Neots.

1.3 Councillor I C Bates was elected Chairman of the Advisory Group for the
remainder of the Municipal Year and declared a personal interest by
virtue of his membership of Cambridgeshire County Council and the
County’s potential involvement in a solution to the relocation of the
public conveniences at South Street, St. Neots.

1.4 To assist their deliberations, Members referred to a report by the Head
of Environment and Transport which had drawn together recent
decisions and which contained additional information in respect of issues
previously discussed by the Group. (Enclosed with the Cabinet Agenda
at Item No 7(b)

2. BACKGROUND AND UPDATE

2.1 In accordance with the instructions of the Group, it was reported that
discussions with St. Neots Town Council had not achieved agreement to
public use of facilities in the Priory Centre in the event of the disposal of
South Street and that with the exception of St. Neots Town Council, no
other town had expressed an interest in assuming responsibility for
maintenance of public conveniences in their towns.

2.2 As requested at their previous meeting, information was presented to the
Group on the financial implications were the Council to bring public
conveniences up to an agreed standard and quality within existing
configurations and, where necessary, with structural alterations to
overcome particular issues at some locations.

3. STANDARD OF FITTINGS

Further to discussions at their previous meeting (Item No. 5 of the report
of the meeting held on 2nd February 2005 refers), the Advisory Group
endorsed the basic and enhanced level of provision for public
conveniences in the District as described in paragraph 3 of the report of
the Head of Environment and Transport.

55



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.2

5.3

SITE EVALUATION

The Advisory Group proceeded to assess the requirements of each of
the nine facilities in the District.

In terms of the public conveniences in New Road, Ramsey and in view
of the proposals for development of the Grand Cinema site which could
incorporate new externally accessed facilities (still under the control of
the District Council) Members were of the view that the existing facilities
should be refurbished to the basic standard but only if the development
of the Grand Cinema site does not proceed. For this reason, the Group
suggested that work to New Road, Ramsey should be scheduled later in
the programme of improvements. In the meantime, the Project and
Assets Manager undertook to ensure that some minor re-painting work
was undertaken.

Given the potential for redevelopment of Huntingdon and St. Ives Bus
Station, the Advisory Group concluded that facilities at both locations
should be refurbished to basic standard.

In view of the location of facilities at St. Neots and Huntingdon Riverside
Parks, Godmanchester and West Street, St. Ives, the Advisory Group
concluded that these facilities should be refurbished to an enhanced
standard.

As the facilities at South Street, St. Neots were in poor condition, out of
character with their surroundings and required significant investment to
upgrade to an acceptable standard, the Advisory Group were of the view
that they should be replaced but relocated elsewhere in the town.
Following further discussions with the town/county councils. It was the
view of the Group that the public conveniences at South Street should
not be removed until replacement facilities were made available.

Mindful of their previous deliberations in this respect, the Advisory Group
RECOMMENDED

that the Head of Environment and Transport be authorised to
commence the programme of improvements to bring public
conveniences in the District up to a basic or enhanced standard as
determined in paragraphs 4.2, 4.3, and 4.4 ante.

PROPOSED PROGRAMME OF IMPROVEMENTS

Members considered a proposed three year programme for improvement
works compiled to avoid more than one facility in any town being out of
use at any one time. It was reported that works could commence with
the public conveniences at Tebbuts Road, St. Neots given recent fire
damage at that location. It was anticipated that the cost of
improvements would be part met by insurance cover.

It was confirmed that basic improvements could involve internal re-
structuring, new fixtures and fittings as well as re-decoration.

In terms of the programme, it was proposed that this should be
progressed in three phases and appropriate funds released at the
commencement of each phase. For clarification, the Advisory Group
requested that the estimated cost of improvements proposed to be
undertaken in 2007/08 should be identified separately for each location
and that funding for alternative arrangements at South Street, St. Neots

56



5.4

equivalent to improvements of a basic standard at a cost of £38,000 be
allocated.

Accordingly, the Advisory Group
RECOMMENDED

that Phase 1 of the programme of improvements to public
conveniences in 2006/07 comprising work to Tebbuts Road and
the Riverside, St. Neots, West Street, St. lves and Godmanchester
be progressed at a cost not exceeding £447,000.

FUTURE MAINTENANCE

Given the response by the town councils to the suggestion that they
assume responsibility for maintenance of public conveniences in their
towns and the preference expressed by Members for a uniform standard
of cleaning and quality of facilities across the District, the Advisory
Group

RECOMMENDED

that the Head of Environmental and Transport be authorised to
make the necessary arrangements to secure a single contract for
the cleaning and maintenance of all public conveniences district
wide for a minimum period of three years.

AUTOMATIC PUBLIC CONVENIENCES

In view of the low level of use of the automatic public conveniences in
Huntingdon and St. Neots vis-a-vis the cost of their provision, the
Advisory Group

RECOMMENDED

that the Head of Environment and Transport be authorised to
serve appropriate notice on JC Decaux to terminate the leases for
the remaining four APCs in Huntingdon and St Neots and the
Head of Financial Services advised of the opportunity this decision
might present to identify Gershon efficiency savings

CONCLUSION

The Cabinet is requested to endorse the recommendations of the
Advisory Group contained in paragraphs 4.6, 5.4, 6 and 7.

Councillor I C Bates
Chairman of the Advisory Group

57



This page is intentionally left blank

58



Agenda Iltem 7b

CABINET 15 DECEMBER 2005

PUBLIC CONVENIENCES — IMPROVEMENT PROPOSALS
(Report by Head of Environment & Transport)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 At their meeting on 17 March 2005 Cabinet considered
recommendations by the Members’ Advisory Group for Public
Conveniences in respect of the future provision and standard of
public conveniences. The Advisory Group’s recommendations are
reproduced at Annex A.

1.2 Cabinet also gave, in principle, approval to the proposed disposal of
the site of public conveniences located at South Street, St Neots,
subject to consultation with St Neots Town Council.

1.3 The Advisory Group met again on the 24 November 2005 and
endorsed the recommendations of this report.

1.4 This report provides Cabinet with the latest position and provides
detailed proposals for the improvement and ongoing maintenance of
town centre public conveniences.

2. TOWN COUNCILS

2.1 The Chairman of the Advisory Group has met with representatives of
the St Neots Town Council to discuss the disposal of the South Street
public conveniences. The Town Council considers the retention of
public conveniences, which are easily accessible from the Market
Square, as essential. They do not consider that the public
conveniences at Tebbutts Road or Riverside fulfil this criterion.

2.2 Consideration has been given to the use of the existing toilets in the
Priory Centre and the provision of new, externally, accessible public
conveniences as an adaptation of the existing Priory Centre building.
Neither approach was acceptable to the Town Council. Technical
difficulties also meant that any adaptation would have been
prohibitively expensive.

2.3 It is understood that the St Neots Town Council remains interested in
the transfer of the three St Neots public conveniences to the Town
Council.

2.4 With the exception of St Neots, no further dialogue with town councils

has been held.

3. FUTURE SERVICE STANDARD
3.1 The decision of Cabinet on 17 March 2005 required consideration to

be given to bringing the facilities up to an agreed standard, within
existing configurations, but to maintain some flexibility. This required

59



3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

consideration as to whether there is a particular problem to
overcome, or it would be cost effective to vary the structural
configuration in a specific location.

Good practice guidance suggests the following as an appropriate
basic standard —

. standard fittings be used in all public conveniences to
facilitate easy maintenance and repair;

. at least one fully disabled facility per location, to comply
with the Disability Discrimination Act;

. baby changing facilities in male and female toilets; and
easily maintainable internal finishes

In addition to suffering vandalism public conveniences often are
misused by drug addicts and others. Where there is a perceived
community safety concern the following enhanced standards also are
proposed:

. timed locks to control out-of-hours access to a restricted
level of service;

o reduction or removal of communal areas to prevent
groups of people associating in the public convenience;

. replacement of existing provision with less easily abused
purpose made units; and

. charging for entry.

The standards proposed for cleaning and maintenance are:

° establish a common standard throughout the district for
the quality of service provided;

. establish a performance specification that can be
monitored and enforced; and

. combine the cleaning and maintenance in one contract to
avoid separation of responsibilities.

POSSIBILITIES FOR EACH SITE

Each of the nine sites have been evaluated to assess their condition,
short and long term development possibilities, and present
community safety problems. The evaluations are detailed in
Annex B.

The outcome of the evaluation is summarized in the table that follows:

Location Proposed | Estimated
Standard Cost
Ramsey, New Road Basic £38k
Huntingdon, Bus Station Basic £38k
Huntingdon, Riverside Park Enhanced £132k
Godmanchester Enhanced £88k
St Ives, Bus Station Basic £38k

60



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

51

Location Proposed | Estimated
Standard Cost
St lves, West Street Enhanced £116k
St Neots, Riverside Enhanced £205k
St Neots, Tebbutts Rd Basic £38k
St Neots, South Street Replace £86k

The total capital cost of these improvements is £779k. This assumes
the replacement of the South Street public conveniences on an
alternative site and on land currently owned by the District Council as
the estimate does not include for any land purchase.

A three-year, phased programme of improvements is proposed such
that —
e only one public convenience in any town is out of
commission at any time; and
e work on sites likely to be included in redevelopment
proposals is undertaken last, by which time there may be
greater certainty about their future.

The proposed programme follows —

Public Convenience Costin
year
2006/07 | St Neots — Tebbutts Rd £447k

St Neots — Riverside
St lves — West St
Godmanchester
2007/08 | St lves - Bus Station £256k
Huntingdon — Riverside

St Neots —South St (New site)
2008/09 | Ramsey — New Road £76k
Huntingdon - Bus Station

Subject to approval of the above programme it is proposed that a
contract be tendered for the 2006/07 schemes. The contract could be
framed to allow for a negotiated extension to encompass schemes in
subsequent years subject to the Council being satisfied as to the cost
and quality of the work delivered under the initial contract.

Because of a recent fire to the Tebbutts Rd site, urgent work is
needed. It is proposed that this is brought up to the new standard at
this time. This may require some monies to be brought forward to
2005/06 to enhance the insurance money.

FUTURE MAINTENANCE

At present the cleaning and minor repair of public conveniences in St
Neots is undertaken by St Neots Town Council on an agency basis.
The cleaning of all other public conveniences, excepting automatic
public conveniences, is undertaken by a contractor engaged by the
Operations Division. Minor repairs to sites outside of St Neots, and

61



5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

all major repairs, are commissioned by Environment & Transport
Division.

The discussions with Town Councils on future maintenance
arrangements were abandoned following the decision of Cabinet in
February 2005 as, at that time, it was unlikely that any coordinated
service was likely to be available from the councils. Only St Neots
and Huntingdon Town Councils retained an interest in providing a
service within their own towns.

The letting of a single contract for the cleaning and
maintenance/repair of all public conveniences is still considered most
likely to provide a consistent district-wide service standard and the
most cost effective service. The present budget for this is around
£100k per year, and it is hoped that a new contract for this work will
be similar, but this will depend on the standards required. An extra
contingency of £20k per annum is proposed to allow for increase in
the service cost. This contract would need to be let for a minimum of
three years and would, therefore, be subject to EU procurement
regulations.

AUTOMATIC PUBLIC CONVENIENCES

At the meeting of 12 October 2004, the Cabinet approved the removal
of the village APCs. However, the intention was to retain two APCs in
Huntingdon (Trinity Place and the disabled unit in St Germain Street
Minor Car Parks)

Although not identified during the negotiations with JC Decaux it was
subsequently confirmed that any notice of early termination would
have to apply to all APC units, or retain a minimum of four units. An
agreement now has been reached that the Council will retain the
three APCs sited in Huntingdon together with the APC at
Coneygeare, St Neots until their leases expire in October 2008, or the
Council serves twelve months notice of early termination on all four.

There is a financial implication on retaining these APCs above the
present MTP budget and this is shown in Annex C. The usage of the
APCs from January to September 2005 is:

APC location Total visits in | Usage per
period day

Huntingdon- St Germain 789 2.9

Huntingdon — St Germain Disabled 1684 6.2

Huntingdon — Trinity Place 1433 5.2

St Neots - Coneygeare 709 2.6

The table shows that the use of the units is minimal.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The full details of the financial implications are given in the table in

Annex C. The table compares the existing MTP capital provision
and that proposed in paragraph 4.4 and 5.3 above.

62



7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

The revenue impact on the MTP of retaining four, rather than two
APCs, as detailed in paragraph 6.2 above is also shown in Annex C
as Option A. For the purpose of comparison the cost if the APCs are
removed in 12 months time are also given as Option B. The
contractual position with JC Decaux is such that either Option A or
Option B must be proceeded with and for MTP purposes the variation
must be regarded as unavoidable.

The consequential revenue changes to the MTP of the proposals
contained in this report, and detailed in Annex C, are summarized in
the table below —

2005/06 | 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Revenue -£10k -£18k -£9k -£1k -£12k
impact of
capital
Cleaning £20k £20k £20k £20k
contingency
Option A — £24k £8k £62 £15
retain APCs
Option B — £24k -£9k
terminate
APCs

A revised MTP bid will provide for the reduction and rephrasing of the
capital expenditure and the possible additional cost of cleaning. The
extra costs identified in 2005/06 for the APCs, either Option A, or B,
can be met from existing revenue budgets.

CONCLUSIONS

Cabinet at their meeting on 17 March 2005 agreed that public
conveniences should be provided in the towns at a set standard.

Some of the existing buildings can be modified to reach the required
basic standard for about £38k for each site. Others have community
safety problems which mean that they require an enhanced standard
costing between £88k and £205K. These works can be phased over
a number of years to accommodate potential impact of
redevelopment on some sites.

The review has confirmed that it is impractical to make the required
improvements to the St Neots South Street conveniences at their
present location. Furthermore the setting is considered inappropriate
in the context of adjacent redevelopment and the demolition of the
site is recommended. An alternative site, therefore, needs to be
found as it is felt that public conveniences near the Market Square
are required.

The St Neots Town Council retains an interest in taking over the
public conveniences in the town. However, to achieve consistent
standards, it is considered that the district council should retain
control of all the public conveniences and have a single
cleaning/maintenance contract for the whole area.

63



8.5

8.6

9.1

Although it will result in the reduction of public convenience capacity
in the town of Huntingdon, the retention of APCs to the end of their
current contracts imposes an unreasonable cost on the Council. In
the circumstances termination at the earliest date compatible with the
contract is desirable i.e. after 12 months notice.

The financial implications of these proposals are compared to the
existing revenue budget in the Annex C and summarized at
paragraph 7.3 above. The appropriate release of funds request is
attached at Annex D for the refurbishment programme proposed in
2006/07. It assumes approval of the MTP bid required to reschedule
the capital expenditure and provides the contingency for possible
increases in cleaning costs.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Cabinet:

e Approves the programme of improvements at paragraph 4.4
and their financial implications as detailed in Annex C;

e Agrees to the replacement of the South Street conveniences
on an alternative site;

e Authorise the Head of Environment & Transport to seek
tenders for the building and cleaning/maintenance works
contracts

e Authorise the Head of Environment & Transport to serve 12
months notice on JC Decaux for the removal of the four
remaining APCs; and

e Approve the release of funds requested at Annex D to
facilitate design work and the preparation of contracts for the
first phase of improvements for 2006.

Background papers:

Environment and Transport files

Contact Officer:  Chris Allen, Project and Assets Manager

@ 01480 388380

64



ANNEX A

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MEMBERS’' ADVISORY GROUP FOR
PUBLIC CONVENIENCES APPROVED BY CABINET AT THEIR MEETING
ON 17 MARCH 2005.

1. that the District Council's commitment to the provision of public
conveniences in Town Centres be continued.

2. that the outcome of their review of provision in the towns be endorsed

3. that the Head of Environment and Transport be requested to assess
and report to a future meeting of the Cabinet on the financial
implications of the decision to bring facilities up to an agreed standard
within existing configurations but to maintain some flexibility by
considering, should there be a particular problem to overcome,
whether it would be cost effective to vary the structural configuration in
a specific location

4. that the current arrangements with St. Neots Town Council and Turner
Industrial Cleaning System Limited for the cleansing and maintenance
of public conveniences in St. Neots and other town centres
respectively be retained pending the outcome of further discussions on
agency arrangements; and

5. that, in light of the foregoing discussions, on the future arrangements
for public conveniences in the District, the proposal, submitted to a
meeting of the Cabinet to be held on 3™ February 2005, to consider
agency arrangements with Huntingdon and St. Neots Town Councils
be deferred.

[NB — The report by the Head of Environment & Transport, considered
at their meeting on 3<February 2005, was deferred.]

65



000'88F 1S0D

asnge aonpaJ 01 pabireyd aq 0] SS9V

000'8€F 1SOD
papuawwodal jou uondo
sanioe}
Buibueyo Ageqg 1o sanioe] pajgesip

'SS929® IN0Y g 9ABY 0] Iun auQ | ueldwod aAIb jouued siyl 310N prepuels
uun BuiBueys Ageq pue nun pajgesip uonelodapal [eulaiu] | Mojaq sanlioey pajgesiq
YuM Sa|I1gnd Xasiun g apinoid 0] UBAU0D sBumiy pue salnixiy mau |[eisu| sanjioey Buibueys Ageq oN 1a1sayouewpo
0002€TF 1S0OD 000'8€F LSOO
papuawwodal jou uonindo
‘Juswabuerre
wasaid ul Jnoineyaq [e1d0S-iue 1o
asnge aonpal 01 pabreyd ag 01 SS9y | WSIEPURA 82NpaJ JOU |[IM pue Sanljioe}
'SS890k IN0Y 2 aAey 0] Jlun auQ | bulbueys Ageq aAIb 1ouued siyl ;310N sanioe) Builbueys Ageq oN
nun BuiBueys Ageq pue nun pajgesip uonelodapal [eulaiu| wisirepueA ybiH yled

UM S3]0Ignd Xasiun { apinoid 0] USAU0D

sBumiy pue sainixij Mau |eisuj

pauodal Inoineyaq [B100S-uy

apisianly ‘uopbununy

"awin SsIy1 1e s19|101 ay) 01 pasodoud
10u aJe sabueyd Jofew ‘sreaA ainny ul
‘panoidwi aq Aew eale uonels snq ayl AduIS

000'8€F 1S0OD
uoIeI023pal [eulalu]
sBumiy pue sainixiy Mau [[eisul
lo1191x8 alelodapay

Bumy pue sainxy p|O

sng

uonels
‘uopbununy

sBuipjing mau ay) ojul 3jing aq
pinom s19]101 Mau pue juswdojoAsp ewauld
ay1 Jo ued se paysijowap aq Aew S19101 3y L

000'8€F 1SOD

uonelodapal [eulau]

sBumiy pue sainixij Mau |[eisu|
sani|ioe] pajqesip anoidw|
wools BuiBueyd Aqeq a1eal)
101I9]1Xa 81el0d8pay

palodal Inoineyaq [el10s-nuy
prepuels

sanioe} pajgesiq
sanioe) builbueys Ageq oN

MOJaq

peoy maN ‘Aaswrey

ddvAanNvlis
d3ONVHN3 133N O1 NOI1LdO

SAJVANVLS
JI1Sv4d 133N OL NOILdO

SINF1d0dd INIS3dd

a1IS

S3ON3INIANOD J11dNd 40 NOILVNTVAI

g X3INNV

66



000'50¢F 1S0OD
asnqe aanpaJ 01 pabreyd aq 0] SS90y

'SS920® IN0Y {2 9ARY 0] lun auQ
*dljewolne-1Wwas a( 01 S9|2IgNI ||V

‘sanioe] Buibueyos Ageq pue pajqesip

yum  Buipping bBunsixa sy ul papiaoid
9Qq p|noys s9aIgnd mau 9 “ed syl pue
umol ayl Buinids uonedo| Asng e SI SIYl Sy

1noAe| pue ubisap peq
Bumy pue sainxiy p|o
sanioe) builbueys Ageq oN

ApISISAlY ‘S109N 1S

000°9TTF LSOD

asnge aonpal 0} pabreyd aq 01 SS9y
'SS920® IN0Y g 9ARY 0] llun auQ
"JllewoINe-1Was ag 01 S{|2IqNd ||V

'SS900®

pajgesip pue Builbueyos Ageq Buipnjoul
s9|21gn2 € apinoid 01 Buipjing apew asod.ind
yum aoejdas pue Buipjing Bunsixa ysijowag

000'8€7F 1S0OD
papuawwodal Jou uondo

"Inoineyaq [el1nos-nue
sobeinoous noAe7 -919|dwod uaym
uane plepuels ybiy e aAIb jou |Im pue
sonioe) abre| A1oA ale 9sayl JIoAIMOH

uonelodapal [eulau|

sBumiy pue salnixyy mau |[eisu|
saniIoe} pajgesip anoldw|
woou BuiBueyds Ageq a1eal)
loLIB1Xd 91el0d9paY

Bumiy pue sainxi pjo
saniioe) buibueys Ageq oN

19911S 1S9\ ‘SaA| 1S

uasaid Je wre ue Jou ale sprepuels
laybly ey aloaIBYL ‘padojanapal
aq Aew ®easje a8yl Se umoudun Si S)a|i0]
pue uonels sng ay) 10} aimny wia) Buoj ayl

000°8€F 1SOD

uonelodapal [eulau]

sBumiy pue salnixyy mau |[eisu|
saniIoe} pajgesip anoldw|
wood BuiBueyds Ageq a1eal)
lolIB1Xa 91el0d9paY

Bumyy pue sainixiy pjo

prepuels

MOJ|9( oaJe sanoe] pajqesig
saniioe) buibueys Ageq oN

uollels sng ‘san 1S

ddvANVvLs
d3ONVHN3 133N OL1 NOILdO

SAJVANVLS
JI1Sv4d 133N OL NOILdO

SINF190dd LNIS3dd

31IS

67



%987
1S0OJ 13AN— X20179 M3IN HLIM 3DV1d3d

"UMO) 83U} JO eale
1Sea yuou ayl pue arenbs 1931\ 8yl aAISS
uayl p|noa syl Jed red Aloud ayi ul Jo yied
Jed aue Alold uo paredo] aq 01 djge ybiw
SIYL 20|q Mau Yum ais Jayjoue uo aosejdal
10 UMO]l Byl Ul S3lIS dANeuUIdl® Z Byl uo
AjaJ1 J1ayne pue sasiwaid Bunsixe ysijowaq

'uonoNJIsuUodal dofew 1noyum anosdwil
01 ynoyyp A1sa st 11 ‘inoke| su 01 anQ

10d

awdojanap se p|os ag pinod
sBuipunouins

yum Jaroereyd Jo no Buipjing
Bumyy pue sainixiy pjo
prepuels

sanijioe) pajgesia
saniioe) buibueys Ageq oN

MoJaq

193811S Yinos ‘slosN 1S

"awi sIyl 1e Aressasau 10N

000°8€F 1SOD

uonelodapal [eulau]

sBumiy pue salnixyy mau |[eisu|
saniIoe} pajgesip anoldw|
wood BuiBueyds Ageq a1eal)
lolIB1Xa 91el0d9paY

prepuels

Mo[aq aJe sanloe) psjqesig
Bumiy pue sainixi p|o

saniioe) buibueys Ageq oN

PY sInqgal ‘s1oaN 1S

ddvANVvLs
d3ONVHN3 133N OL1 NOILdO

SAJVANVLS
JI1Sv4d 133N OL NOILdO

SINF190dd LNIS3dd

31IS

68



ANNEX C FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Public Conveniences and APCs - Proposed Revision To The MTP

2004/05 | 2005/06 | 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Public Conveniences

Existing Capital Programme 400 350 0 0 500
Revenue effect 10 29 38 38 51
Proposed programme 0 447 256 76 0
Revenue effect 0 11 29 37 39
Extra cleaning costs 20 20 20 20
Total revenue impact 0 31 49 57 59
Change to MTP -10 2 11 19 8

Automatic Public Conveniences

Revenue Base 153 153 153 153 153 153
Approved MTP 56 -121 -99 -153 -153 -153
Carry forward -80 80

Total 129 112 54 0 0 0
Proposed

Proposed programme Option A

Retain 4 APCs 129 136 62 62 15 0
Change to MTP 0 24 8 62 15 0
Proposed programme Option B

Terminate all APCs 129 136 45 0 0 0
Change to MTP 0 24 -9 0 0 0

69




‘9002 10} 18] pue mou parenofisu aq ued SYI0M 3y J0j 19.1U0D aY) 1By] 0S 900Z WO} paiinbai
SISyl "S1S02 8yl 198w 01 palinbai sI sanuanal enxa ‘dredas pue ssauljuea|d Jo prepuels YyBiy e 1e saousiuaAuod dljgqnd ay) urejurew o1 JapJo uj

ybnos S10eNUOD BY) U0 pauels aq ued ubisap ayi eyl os palinbal si leaoclddy

‘wisirepueA Buionpal pue A1ajes Buisealoul ‘sanljioe) Buibueys
Ageq ‘sanijioey pajgesip ueldwod Buipinoid sapnjoul }Jom ay] ‘Sa2uslusAuo) d1lignd ay) Jo A1ajes pue aosuereadde ayl anoidwi 03 S| sWBYIS

asea|ay JoJ uoneaynsne

paisanbal mou

YA44 [4% [4% [4% 1€ asea|al yalym l1oj junowy

paseajal Apealy

0¢ 0¢ 0¢ 0¢ S1S09 Bulues|d pasealou|

9/ 9G6¢ Ly 6€ LE 6¢ TT 196png papuswy

00S 0SE | oot TS 8¢ 8¢ 6¢ oT 196png panoiddy

000F | 000F | 000F| 000F| 000F | O00F| 000F| 000F | O00F | 000F | 000F | 000F| 000F | 000F
0TOZ | 600 | 800C | L00C| 900Z | S00C| ¥0OC | OTOC| 600C| 800C | ZL00C | 900c | S00cC | t00C
/600¢ | /800¢ | /200¢ | /900¢ | /S00¢ | /¥00c | /€00¢ | /600¢ | /800¢ | /200¢ | /900¢ | /S00¢ | /¥00¢ | /€00C

rende) 19N 10edWw| anuanay 19N 1oedWw| [eI1OURUIH

1aBeue|y s1assy pue 193loid — U3V SHUYD S90USIUBAUOD 21|qNd MAN  VZOE/E0

SANN4 40 3ISV313y ad X3INNV

70



Agenda Iltem 8

CABINET 15 DECEMBER 2005

RELEASE OF FUNDS FOR HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION OFFICER
(Report by the Head of Housing Services)

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To request the release of funds to appoint to the Homelessness
Prevention Officer post.

2. INTRODUCTION

2.1 The funding, on a permanent basis, for a Homelessness Prevention
Officer post was approved by Council in 2003/4 as part of the Council’'s
MTP process.

2.2 Cabinet approved the release of funds (March 2004) to appoint on a two
year contract, to the end of March 2006.

2.3 The post holder has now left the Council’s employment. The post has
been a success with the role needed into the future.

3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The table below shows the continuing high rates of homelessness within
the district and the number of households where the Council has a duty
to help with permanent rehousing. The prevention of homelessness has
always been the main focus of local authority housing advice teams
although the effectiveness of this is limited where insufficient early
warning of potential homelessness is given and/or other realistic housing
options are not available. The table also shows the number of
prevention cases that have assisted since 2004/05 and that this area of
work is increasing. The majority of these are through assisting
households into private sector tenancies via the help of the Rent Deposit
scheme although it may also include resolving issues that allow a person
to remain in their current home and so avoid homelessness.

Numbers of Households Applying/Accepted as Homelessness and the number of households where
homelessness was prevented including those helped into private tenancies through the Rent Deposit
scheme

01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06
(first half
year)

Total Applied 304 367 293 361 195
Of which Accepted 192 251 233 254 139
Cases where - - - 65 51
homelessness
prevented *
Of which helped 20 25 32 50 35
through Rent Deposit
scheme

* Not recorded prior to 04/05

71



3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

51

The post holder:

¢ Introduced the Home Choice Scheme, a service that helps
homeless households find and access private sector
tenancies. At the same time helped landlords resolve issues
that may otherwise lead to them not offering a tenancy to a
homeless household. This has led to an increase in the
number of Rent Deposit loans.

¢ Extended this service to offer advice and help to landlords who
may be considering evicting their tenant in an attempt to
resolve any issues. Landlords ending tenancies in the private
sector is the second largest cause of homelessness in the
district.

¢ Increased links with the Anti Social Behaviour problem solving
groups in an attempt to resolve issues that may lead to
homelessness.

¢ |Increased the proactive approach to Court advocacy as a
means of preventing homelessness as a result of rent arrears
and introduced early warning systems with housing association
partners that flag potential homelessness cases so that action
can be taken.

IMPLICATIONS

Prevention has taken a much higher profile over the last 2 years and
prevention measures are flagged as good practice and a way of slowing,
and in some areas even reducing, the rate of homelessness.

New Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs) have been introduced
this financial year to monitor Councils’ success at preventing
homelessness and in particular repeat homelessness.

The prevention of homelessness leads to a reduction in the number of
households having to be placed in temporary accommodation. The
government has set all Councils the target of reducing the use of
temporary accommodation by 50% by 2010. The prevention measures
we have implemented and need to develop further will help us achieve
this target.

Failure to successfully implement and resource prevention measures are
likely to result in:
i) the loss of potential for limiting the growth, or reducing the
rate, of homelessness within the district;
i) increasing demands on temporary accommodation from
homeless households together with increasing costs;
iiiy  greater demand on the limited social rented stock within the
district as a result of lost opportunities to help household
resolve their housing needs through other options; and
iv)  poor outcomes in the new BVPIs covering this service area.

CONCLUSIONS

The Homelessness Prevention Officer introduced initiatives and made
positive links with other agencies as well as taken on individual
casework, providing a range of prevention measures. Although this has
not yet seen a reduction in the number of households becoming
homelessness it has stemmed the flow and prevented homelessness

72



5.2

5.3

6.1

increasing at a sharper rate. This in turn leads to fewer households
being placed in temporary accommodation and fewer households
requiring social rented housing than would otherwise have been the
case.

This post contributes directly to the Council’s priority of providing homes
that meets local needs via the intensive casework that it undertakes.
The success of this is monitored through the Council’'s performance
against new BVPIs introduced this year and the government target of
reducing the use of temporary accommodation.

Council has previously approved the funding of this post on a permanent
basis but Cabinet initially released the funding for 2 years only.

RECOMMENDATION
The Cabinet is recommended to approve the release of future years’

funds so that the Homelessness Prevention Officer post can be
appointed on a permanent basis.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

ODPM P1E Homelessness Returns
Achieving Positive Outcomes on Homelessness, ODPM, April 2003

Contact Officer:  Steve Plant, Head of Housing Services

= 01480 388240

Jon Collen, Housing Needs & Resources Manager
= 01480 388220

73



This page is intentionally left blank

74



Agenda Item 9

COMT 29™ NOVEMBER 2005
CABINET 15" DECEMBER 2005
DESIGN BRIEF
ALFRED HALL MEMORIAL FIELD / EYNESBURY ROVERS FC
(Report by PLANNING POLICY MANAGER)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This Design Brief examines the redevelopment opportunities on the
Alfred Hall Memorial Field, currently the home of Eynesbury Rovers
Football Club.

1.2 Cabinet is asked to consider the draft Design Brief and comments

received, and adopt the document as Interim Planning Guidance,
once representations have been reported and considered.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Alfred Hall Memorial Field is included in the Urban Design
Framework (UDF) for the area around St Neots Community College.
This UDF was adopted as Interim Planning Guidance by the District
Council in May 2005.

2.2 The UDF suggests that the Memorial Field should be considered for
residential development, with the football club relocating to fields to
the west.

3.0 THE DESIGN BRIEF

3.1 The purpose of this document is to present the design parameters,
opportunities and constraints to the site; and provides clear guidance
to any potential housing developer of what would be required on the
site if this land if redeveloped.

4. CONSULTATION RESPONSE

4.1 A public exhibition was held in the college in January 2005 to display
the draft proposals for the whole of the Ernulf Urban Design
Framework, for which this area is part. A public meeting followed.
Letters were posted to all neighbours on 9" September 2005
informing them of the start of the consultation period for this Design
Brief. A public notice was placed in the St Neots local press on 15"
September as well. The expiry date for comments was 6™ October
2005.

4.2 All comments made and the Council's responses to them are
presented in Annex 1.

75



5.1

6.1

6.2

CONCLUSION

Production of a Design Brief is best practice and will help to secure
the most appropriate form of development over this area if this land is
redeveloped. If Cabinet approves the document in draft form, there
will be a period of consultation with the local and statutory bodies.
Any comments or changes will be brought back to the Cabinet before
it is adopted.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Cabinet authorises the revisions to the document as
presented in Annex 1.

That the Cabinet delegates adoption of the revised document,
incorporating minor consequential amendments, as Interim Planning
Guidance, to the Executive Member for Planning Strategy, in
consultation with the Head of Planning Services.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations June 2002

Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPG Sept 2004

Huntingdonshire Landscape & Townscape Assessment SPG Sept 2004
St Neots Community College Urban Design Framework May 2005

Contact Officer:  Mike Huntington

= 01480 388404

76



T EEYY
8q p|nod Aurenb 1noge juswalels ay |
‘'sbuidnolb |rews
Jajald pjnom | ‘suun [enpiaipul g moys noA
T 9316V | (ao1my uonuaw noA yaiym) ueid uoredo| 8y} 10
g Buimoys ue|d v “parelsodiosul
ag os|e Aew syun diysiaumo palteys
BWos ‘JoABMOH "ainua} siy} 01 papinoid ag [jIm
snun ay1 jo Aiofew ayy 1eys A9y al1oja1ayl si i
pue Buisnoy pajual [e120S 10) S| paau 1salealb
ay) Je) Aq Teyl moys 01 senunuod AsAINg
spaaN buisnoH InQ "Buisnoy a|geploye
T 8albV | se peapinoid aq 1snw Buisnoy €101 Y1 JO %62,
ERINVELS
peas 01 Apybljs puswy g9 ered T | BuisnoH DaH
‘ou
1usp :Aq
uonoy asuodsay juswWwo) JO ainleN | uodsay juswwo)
paiinbai uonoe oN e
OdI J0 HwaJ ulyum JoN c
uae] uonoy T
:9p0D uoNIYy

‘saireuuonsanb a1gnd ay) WoJy SjUSWIYILNR J0 SIUSLULIOD WOoJ) pue Sians| [elsauab ul paAiadal SJUSLIWOD ay) S|re1sp Mojag a|gel ayl

SJUBWIWOYD UBNLMA Jo Arewwins

Jang ubisaq D SIaA0Y ANGSaUAT / pjaid [eoWs N [[eH pally

T Xauuy

77



"ul paubisap aqg p|NoYs Yuou sy} Wody S syl oul
ssa20e Aguahiswa ue ey Ing ‘syiom Buusauibua Jouiw
01 103lgns jusawdojanap Buisnoy mau aAlas 0} ajenbape
S| peoy |leH 1ey s1sabbns skemybiH DQH Wol} a2IApY

Aq pasn aJe siej} ayl YIm pareloosse
sobeleb ay) pue ‘arenbapeul

S| peoy |feH ui steyy oy Bunired (2
"oljjel) pasliolow 10} als ayl

01 SS822€ 8U0 uey] alow ag pjnoys (T

€ 'SUJa2U09 Urew i G peoy |leH ¢
‘peaye ob 01 lJuswdo|aAsp 8y} 1o} B1S ayl
uo a|ge|reae uonesuadwod urejdpooyly arenbape
S alay)] 1eyl paysl|geisa uaag sey 1 [nun
uoleoo| siyl 1e Juawdojanap Jo ajdiouud ayl
01 9aibe 0] 9|qeun 'paonpold S| JUBWSSISSY
YSIY POO|4 € [lun uolewloul Jayuny
‘'sayew Jaumopue| ay) uonedidde Aue apinoud Jouued 1ng ‘Jauq Juswdojaaap Aouaby
€ | Buluueld auino Aue jo Led ag [|IM JUBWISSASSE XSII Poo|d 8y} ul paurejuod sajdiound yum aaiby 7 JjuswUOJIAUg
"‘apIm saBw T v ‘yrediooy) e wea |
pue Aem 9]9A2 © Jo BunsIsuod ‘peoy MoimpreH uodsuel|
T 90.by 01Uo SSa929e Aouabilawsa ue ayeald 0] pasN e DJaH
sRemybiH
€ SuaWIWOoD ON 2z 20D
Slela1eW pue ubisap ul rejiwis - a1 Buiylswos
Aes 01 Bupjeam) spaau siy1 yuiy | (sreaud
3y} Uey] 1anag aq ||oM pPINod spepuels
aords pue uonealyioads) pajaidiauisiw
‘ou
1usp :Aq
uonoy asuodsay juswwo) JO ainleN | uodsay juswwo)

/8



‘asuodsal shoinaid aas

Ajareq si peoy |eH ul bunired (g
‘sjuiod uonsabuod Je S[aAg)
a|geabeuew aiow 01Ul S|AS| d1fel BY)
aleledas pue 11xa Jo 9210y9 e ajdoad
aAIB pINOM 1IX8 pu09as SIyl "peoy
MoimpJaeH olul Juswdojaaap ayi jo doy,

BY} 1e adueIUS puoIss e aq pjnoys (g
‘obe sieak maj e 19xrewadns
e 10} [esodold snoinaid ay) s181unod
peoy [feH ybBnouy) wawdojanap

MaUu ay] Ja1ua 0] [esodold (T

swuiod

peoy IleH ¥

‘paJapisuod si uonealdde Buiuue|d auipno usym spunolb
|[ooyas ybnoy: als ssadde 01 Aunuoddo arebnsanul

‘passalppe uaaq
aney swa|qo.d oauel] ayl JBAO SUISIU0I
JIaYy} JO auou Jeyl pue ‘Alunwiwod [eao] ayl
10 sBuljaay) ay1 1an0 aduapadaid pey sey
juawdojanap ay1 10} pasau ay] 1ey] SUasSSY

&oljel] syiom
3yl |[e o) pasn aq 01 buloh peoy
IleH s 1o ‘aoe|d saxel )l Is|iym a)s

3} SS999® S3|2IYaA 32IAISS |IM MOH (¢
"eaJse ay} ul Buiwpes el ag pjnom
alay) 1eyl painsse ‘Aejy ul laquey)d

[19uno) ay: ul pjay Punssw ey (£
's}@ans Agreau Jayio woly ajidoad

uonoY

asuodsay

USWIWOo) Jo aimeN

‘ou
Jusp
uodsay

:Aq
uLaWIwo)

79



‘aney Aew siy; sjuswanoidwi Aemybiy

Joj suonedidwi Aue 1e 00| pue ‘8IS ay} 10} JUBISSSSSE
uodsuel] B apnjoul ||Im SIY} ISPISUOI 01 [IDUN0D 1011SIg Byl
01 pajuasaid si uonealddy Buluue|d aulpnO ue uaypp "aus
siy Joy so|diound ubisap sassalppe Ajuo Juswnoop siyL

‘uoneolddy Buluue|d auipnO Aue uo JUBWWO9
Aay1 uaym Jarepn uelbuy Aq passalppe aq [|IM SIyL

‘uoireljddy Buiuueld auipnO Aue uo Juswwod Aayy
uaym Aouaby Juswuoliaug ay) Aq passalppe ag |[IMm SIYL

pue| Alosjndwod apnjoul Aew yaiym
Aressadau aq ||IM YIpIm pasealoul
‘Jou JI pue ybnoua apim siyl S| "Ajluo
peoy |leH eiA pauueld sI S9|21YaA JO
JUSWIBSAOW B)IS — Juswanow Jendlyap (g
‘'swig|qoud
asned saop WaIsAs Jamas ay) ul
uoneajyul ures Aneay Buing ‘swajqoud
Buidwnd abelamas sey eale
33 Jeyl umouy ||om s1 1| — abelamas (g
'splal4 Buike|d [00ydS Jnui
SJI21U3 1l 3layM Pa||I} USaQ Sky 1l dIaym
Buneisulal spaau 1] ooig Aemabpiy
0] 9pew a(q 0] pasau [|IM suswanoidwl
— abeurelq Jo1ep\ @9euns (T

Jlempeolg
9yl ¢S

"AIUIDIA S1eIpawiwI

ay1 ul Buinlp ajdoad ays Jo sbBuiea) ayp
uonelapisuod ol Bupjel Inoyum ybnoayy
pa2io} Usaq aney 0} SWaas Juawdolanaq

¢80 9IS 3yl 01 S3IJIYaA

,S1010B.1U0D By} JO a1n0J 3y} [Im 3ty (v
"pauspIM Uaaq sey Jeyl peol ay)
JO YIpIm 8y} Buionpal snyy pajeulwi|d
[l sAeq Bupjred uay) pauspim
8(Q 0] Spasau peoy |eH J| ‘arenbape

uonoY

asuodsay

USWIWOo) Jo aimeN

‘ou
Jusp
uodsay

:Aq
uLaWIwo)

80



'sodA1 Jouiw
pue sdew ‘uswnoop 0} sjuswanoidwi INoAe| [esauab os|y

‘AemybBiy pardope
10 1UBIXa 8y} MOYS 0] paJdle uaaq sey Jaug ubisaq ayL

‘peoy plopeg pue
peoy oImpieH usaamiaq pue ‘peoy
MOIMpJeH pue peoy |leH usamiaq
paubisap ag 0] paau OS[e pjnom
juswabuelre uonounl paaoidwi uy

"'Slaumo arealld awos woly aseyaind

‘ou
1usp :Aq
uonoy asuodsay juswwo) JO ainleN | uodsay juswwo)

81



82



83



This page is intentionally left blank

84



Agenda Item 10
AGENDA ITEM NO.

COMT 22"° NOVEMBER 2005
CABINET 15™ DECEMBER 2005

RAMSEY CONSERVATION AREA: BOUNDARY REVIEW, CHARACTER
ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT PLAN
CONSULTATION DOCUMENTS
(Report by Planning Policy Manager)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Cabinet of the responses to
the draft Ramsey Boundary Review, Character Assessment and
Management Plan Consultation Documents and to consider the
Council’s response.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Ramsey Conservation Area Boundary Review: Section 69 of the
above Act imposes a duty on local planning authorities to designate as
conservation areas any “areas of special architectural or historic interest
the character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or
enhance”. Planning Policy Guidance 15 (4.2) makes it clear that it is the
quality and interest of areas, rather than that of individual buildings,
which should be the prime consideration in identifying conservation
areas.

2.2 Part of Ramsey was designated a conservation area on the 24"
November 1975. Under Section 69 local planning authorities also have a
duty to review their areas from time to time. This review is part of the
ongoing programme previously approved by Cabinet and has been
conducted according to the Council’'s Review Policy adopted in January
2003.

2.3 Ramsey Conservation Area Character Assessment: This
assessment covers the area included within the proposed conservation
area boundaries. Section 71 of the 1990 Act places a duty on local
planning authorities to formulate and publish proposals for the
preservation and enhancement of its conservation areas. This document
fulfils this requirement and links policy for Ramsey to other existing Local
Planning Guidance for Huntingdonshire, notably the Huntingdonshire
Design Guide SPG (2004) and the Huntingdonshire Landscape and
Townscape Assessment SPG (2004).

24 Ramsey Conservation Area Management Plan: The Management
Plan flows from the requirements of Section 71 and presents a series of
proposal which, once implemented, will bring enhancement of the
Conservation Area. The Plan makes suggestions for a number of
projects which will be taken forward in conjunction with appropriate
groups of officers and local people.

2.5 Cabinet approved these documents for a period of consultation on 30™
June 2005. This period expired on 19™ August 2005. During this time, in

85



2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

addition to the consultation with statutory organisations, public
exhibitions have been held in Ramsey and Bury and public notices were
posted.

The designation of the revised boundary for Ramsey’s Conservation
Area and the adoption of the Character Assessment and Management
Plan as material considerations in planning decisions would be important
steps in protecting the historic environment. The guidance contained in
the Character Assessment and will ensure that any forthcoming
development will be of a high architectural and urban design quality.

THE CONSULTATION RESPONSE

18 written responses have been received from statutory agencies, local
organisations and members of the public, containing 57 separate
comments for consideration. A summary of the respondents and their
comments is contained within Appendix 1.

Most of those who responded were concerned with the proposed
boundary, rather than the nature of the Character Assessment or
Management Plan. The majority of the respondents were in favour of the
new boundaries, although three asked for modifications to be considered
(responses 3; 7; &10). Two of the respondents objected to the extension
of the boundaries where this was perceived to adversely affect their
clients’ property (responses 8 & 9). All responses from local residents
were in favour (responses 11 to 17).

Most responses, where justified, have lead to modifications of the
boundaries as proposed in the Boundary Review Document and a
revised draft of this document has been prepared for consideration by
Cabinet (Appendix 2). There have been two significant modifications to
the boundaries as originally proposed. The first, after representations by
English Heritage, has occurred to tighten the boundaries to the east and
west of the Great Whyte. The second is an extension south of Bury
church to include an area of archaeological significance related to the
early history of that place, which is supported by the Cambridgeshire
Archaeological Service.

Limited comments were received in relation to the Management Plan,
which was generally considered to indicate a positive approach to the
enhancement of the Conservation Area. Some respondents questioned
the limited information provided behind each project heading. In fact, the
Plan is, at this stage, only a list of proposals that will be developed in
conjunction with local groups. Where appropriate, further project work
within the Management Plan will be subject to separate consultation and
approval by Cabinet.

On 25th July 2005, the Development Control Panel supported, in
principle, the proposals set out in the original draft Boundary Review
Document, Character Assessment and Management Plan.

If Cabinet agrees to adopt the revisions to the boundary, appropriate

notices will be advertised in accordance with the provisions of section 69
of the Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

86



4.1

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet considers the responses to comments presented in
Appendix 1 and agrees to:

1.

Designate the proposed Ramsey Conservation Area according to
the boundary in the revised Ramsey Boundary Review document,
incorporating the specified changes (Appendix 2);

Adopt the revised Ramsey Conservation Area Character
Assessment (as previously circulated) with the amendments
contained in Appendix 3 of this paper, which will become a
material consideration in planning decisions.

Adopt the Ramsey Conservation Area Management Plan as a set
of proposals for the enhancement of the Conservation Area and as
a basis for further discussion and project work.

Authorize the Head of Planning Services to make any minor
consequential amendments to the text and illustrations necessary
as a result of these changes, after consultation with the Executive
Member for Planning Strategy.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1. Conservation Area Boundary Review Policy Document, Huntingdonshire
District Council, January 2003.

Contact Officer: Louise Brown

Conservation Team Leader
=2 01480 388476

87



This page is intentionally left blank

88



yore
‘ealy uonealasuo) pasodoid ayl uiyum peoy plojred
e paloN PaA|OAUI SBIpOQ abeurelp INoJ JO SUO SI UOISSILIWOD 3y 0] SJIBUOoISSIWWOD
[9A37 3IPPIN €
'salnyes)
adeospue| 7 adeaspue| ayl Jo uonodajoid JSA0D 01 pauapIm
80 0] paau ||IM 8Say] "Sainjea) pue Sainjonis ying
01 J9jal Ajuo Ajpuauina eyl (2g) saloljod ealy uoleAlasuod
T | uonoe Joj Ja21o JUBA3|a) 01 U0 passed ay) 01 abueyd e asinbal |im ABarens 810D apim-19LasIg ()]
[1PUN0D dVv0 €90
‘(smouabpay pue saain se sque)
yons) sainiesa} adedspue| pajeloosse pue adeaspue) [ein. [I'H apse)
3y} apnjoul 1eyl suoisualxa ayl Ajenanted ‘salepunoq IleH aiys
e paloN BaJY UONBAISSUOD 3] JO M3IADI Y] SWOoI[am [elauab u) 0] 0TOT.L3 Xod
Auno) aaysabpuque)d Z
"81AyM real ayp Jo
Bumas ayi pue 1sixa 1eyl asuedyiubis
[ein1oa1ydJe pue JL0ISIY JO SJUSW|D
ay) 19adsal |m Juswdojaaap mau
Aue Tey] ainsua |IM BaJe UOBAISSUOD uawdojanag Aemares) ulayuoN ayl ul papnjoul
pasodoud ay) uiyum Aemares os[e sI Aaswey Jo pua ulayliou ay) e ealy UoRAIaSUOD
Z uJayuoN ayi jo ued Jo uoisnjou| 3Y1 Ul papnoul pue| eyl 1o pajulod SI0jjiounod ()
‘9oueolIubIS [eanjoslyole
JO S0y} Se ||am Sse aduealyiubis ouolsIy [19UN0D UMO] MAT 923d
JO seaJe Jo asueuodwi ay) urejdxs 01 "1salaul sque)
G00Z 19qWdAON ,0T UO [IDUN0D UMO L pue 1aW [eiN10a)lydJe JO Seale 0] pPalollisal 9 0} ealy Aeswey
T 3yl YM Iayuny passnasip anssi siyl uoIeAIBSUOD 8] 10} ddualajald e paredipul S10||Iounod 0] usalo yoinyd /2
[1oUN0D UMO | Aaswey T
uonoy asuodsay uswwo) wapuodsay

uael uonoe ou — g
1USINJOP SIY} JO NWSJ BY} UIYIM 10U — 2
uael uonoe — T

INO XIONIddVY SIASNOCSIY 40 AYVININNS NV 1d LNIJWIDVNVYIA 2 INFWNSSISSY YILOVHVYHO ‘MIINTH AYVANNOE AISNVY

89



‘anss|
sIy) uo asuepinb Jivy) 1oy abeiisH
ys1ibu3 o1 pargapul ale sIado
"JUBWINJ0P JUBWISSASSY Jajoerey)d

31 Ul SaNI[ed0] 8y} U0 SUONI8S

ay1 ul sabed Jayun; om Jo uonippe ayl
Aq preog uo usye) usaq sey uiod sy

-uiod

SIY} 9lepowiwiodde 0) peoy uoneis

pue peoy umomaN Buoje Arepunoq ayl
paubije-al aney SI92140 UoIRIBPISUOD
Jayuny Jayy ‘umelp ag p|noys

aul| Buipiaip syl a1aym o3 se suadxa
usamia( Juswaalbe yoeal 01 noiyip

S1 1}l Se 9Nnss| SNONUSIU0I B SI SIY L

{Ire1ap Buipjing pue sisAfeue eneds
yum Buieap pappe sabed [euonippe
3U} Ul pappe uoiewlIoul 310N

‘uonewiIoul siow apiaoid
0] JUBLUSSASSE Jalorreyd ay JO 1Xa]
3y} 01 8peW Uda( aARY S)UBWPUBWY

"1910B.1RYD 3|qRUlap B Seale UoIeAIasu0d aAIb

Teys (‘019 spunons mopuim ‘sjuoly doys se yans s|relap pue sjelsrew
[e20] Ajreaioads uo uoirewloul Buipnjoul) sainyes) adeasumol Jaylo
pue saoeds ‘shulp|ing 0} psebal yum palinbai si |reiap alow Ajgenbliy

JUBWISSasSSsY Jajdeley) 'd

‘INoAe| 10 s[elarewW ‘BAIS JO SSBUBANDUNSIP

[290] 40 swi} ul Buiyiou ugiyxe pue Aimusd 0z are|
8y woJy ale sasnoy ay) Jo Allofew ay) a1aym suonodas
asoy) ul Buissasse-al pasu seale ainsojoua-1sod ay L

‘uonenis [eadde ue ul djay pjnom uonduosap pajrelap
aI0W Y "uoisn|oul salisnl Jsuuew ueipedly ue ul sadeds
ul paurejuod sbuip|ing ay3 Ing Jajoeleyd [eao| [eloads

J0 Jou suouiAuz Asqay aur ulyum Buisnoy Ainuad 0z SYL

“1xa1 ay1 ul ABojoaeyoJe felsnpul

ayl Jo Mopeys, ay} INoge Uonewloul 10w Spasn
‘[ein)o81Iyase uey) Jaylel oL0ISIY SI uonels Aemjrel uiayuou
a1 punoJe eale ay) Jo uoisnjoul 1o} uoneaynsnl urew ayl

()

()

0}

MaInay Alepunog v

‘sjuawWwnNoop ay1 01 sabueyd 0] yoeolidde
ue aaibe 01 Jaqualdes ylc uo abellloH
ysibu3 yum pay sem bunssw v

:SJUBWILIOD 21J109ds BWOS aXew 01 31| PINOM SIUBWNJ0P
ay1 peal pue Aaswey pausia BuineH “Jsuuew Buiyoesi-ie) pue
p|Og B Ul MaIABI 81 paydeoidde sey [1DUN0D By} Tey) 9as 0] pases|d

nge ¢gao

sque)d

anuany spuepjoolq ¢
spuepjoolg

abellaH ysibug

p3lON

"Juswinoop Aemales) Aaswey yelp ayl Buiuiasuod

¥00g aunc 0T palep Jana| e ul pasres asouy} A|fesauab
urewsal (pJeog abeurelq [eusaiu| Asjaney 1eals) 7 poomdn
‘Aaswey ayl J0 SIBUOISSILIWOD 3yl JByla Jo jeyaq

uo) Ajuo g ealte uiyum juswdojaasp BuluIadU0I SJUBWIWOD

()

d4v8 GT3d
sque)

90



!
uoddns pue siyi asiubodal syuspuodsal
Jay1o ay) Jo Auolew ayl -Buons A1aA sl
peoy Alng Jo uoisnjoul 3y} 10} ased ayl

‘'sjuapuodsal
Jo Alofew ayj Jo [1DUNOD By} JO SISO
Aq pateys 1ou si reyy uoluido ue si siyl

"Juswalinbal

Aloinmels e jou si siyl ybnoyy

U3 ‘uayeuapun uaaq sey olgnd ayy
UlIM uoie)nsuod GT asuepins Adljod
Buluue|d Aq 1no 18s aanoeld 1589 Yum
aul| u| ‘Juapuodsal ay} Jo uoluido ayy
yum puodsaliod 1ou Saop SIYL [1ouno)
3Y1 JO s1821J0 AQq pamojjo} usaq sey
yaiym ‘066T 19V (Sealy uonealasuo)
pue Buipjing paisi) Buluueld

ay1 Ag malnal Arepunog Joj umop

pre| ssado.d Aloinjels Jeajo e si aiayl

"JopeaT Wea) uoneAlasuo) ayl Aq
juspuodsal ay) 01 1Uas aq ||IM asuodsal
USNLIM B ‘JOABMOH ")NdIYIp alow pasiel

sanss| a8y} 0} asuodsal ||ny e sayew
yoiym ‘pareaol si Auadoud s,ualfo siy
8J8ym paJejdap jou sey juspuodsal ay |

‘ybnous eroads,, si 11 Jaylaym suonsand)
" peoy Aing ay) Buofe uoisuaix3,  'ON Se paglLoasap
BaJe ay) Jo uoisnjoul ay) 01 s19algo Ajreaiioads uaid ()

‘Aing Joj eale uoieAIasuod
aleledass e J1ajaid pjnopn “pue| uado Buluasiaul
ay) pue yainyd Aing jo uoisnjoul ayl yum saalbesiqg (i

‘panjenap
pue paulwiapun S| Base UoieAIasuod e Jo 1daosuod ay}
Teys Jabuep ayl 1l yum saled ealte pajeubisap ayl asealoul
01 Tey) SaA3I|aq pue Baly uoieAlasuo) Aaswey Bunsixa
ay1 abuejua 01 paau Jenanted Aue aas Jouue) Hiomawel
swdojanag 8207 8yl BIA S| Seale UoeAIaSU0d

0} sabueyo Japisuod 0} Aem Jadolid sy reyl Jalaq v 0]

:siseq BuiMoj|0) 3yl Uo Baly UoRAIBSUOD Aaswey ay] 0] UOISUalIXad
pasodoud ay1 01 uonaalqo sjesodoid ayl Aq pa1oaye Ajenualod
Sl yaoiym ‘Aaswey ul Auadoud pue pue| umo oym sjual) bunuasaiday

1XT T3d
ybnoiogiarad
S10UID3Id JBISUIN
Buibpo sbury ayl
9109 synws

109loud ay) Jo 10adse

SIY} JO SS822NS 3} 0 [B1IUSSSD Sk
uaas SI AJUNWWOD 8y} JO JUBWSA|OAUI
ayl ‘1vuno) ayr Aq reaoidde uodn ueld
wswsabeuew sy uswsdwi 0} sug|d
3y ul premuoy uayel Buiaq sl anssi siyl

‘ue|d Juswabeuew ay) Jo uedsay|

ay1 ul uawaAjoAul Allunwiwod yum) s1oaload uswasueyus Jo s1oalgns
3yl 8g p|N02 aiNjuiny 19a11S JO SJUNOWE dAISS9IXd woly Buisue Jannjo
8y} pue Bupjred Jo aoueuIIOp 8yl Sk Yans s10adsy uoneayinuapl
JuelieM Salnjea) [ed0] BulnIAINs may ayl wieal d1gqnd ayl o1 prebal Yyl

ue|d Juswsabeuew ay]l D

91



‘Alepunog eaJe uoleAlasuod Bunsixs ay) Jusdelpe ‘umol
8y} ol yoeoudde siyy uo 10edwi [eluswinep e aney ybiw
yoiym uawdojansp |njwiey wolj € ealy 199101d 01 aoe|d ul

anoge sy Apealfe ae spienbajes Juaioiyns 1eyl saAaljag 1uald ayL )]
‘g ealy
‘U Ulyum sjuswiale [eduolsly syl
J0 aouenodwi ayl pasiubodal aney oym "'GT 9dd Ul palels Se eale uoleAIasSuod
abejaH ysibu3 yum passnasip usaq 3y} Jo 1daouod ay) anfeAsp pINOM UoISNjoUl Jeyl pue
sey Aleoao| siys Jo anfea ayL “uoluido 1saJ81ul 21I0ISIY B|qIbue] pauwil| pue 1salaiul [eJnosuydse
SIY1 yum uawaalbe ul jou ale s1ad1o [e10ads Jo seale ou sey g ealy eyl uoluido sjualo aylL (1))
‘ajoym e se ‘umol ay3 Jo ued siyx ul Arepunog ease uoieAIasSu0d
BaJe uoieAIasuod ayi jo Aubaiul ay) o} Bunsixa ay) 01 . doipoeq, 8yl pue umo) ayl 0} adueud
juenodwi 8q 0} paJapIsuod sl eale siyl | ayl buoueyus pue Buiniasald 1sjiym ‘Aem layem apo ybiH
"Baly UOIBAIBSUOD 3yl woiy Aljedo| 31 se yans sainyesy [eaolsly juenpodwi pabpsimouoe
SIY1 JO uoIsNjoxa Joy uoneoynsnl aq | maj ayl prenbajes pue prepuels ybiy e 0] 1o paLed ag o0}
01 paJapIsuod jou si sasodind 1ay1o Jo} | Z ealy jo Juawdojanap ayl ajqeus 01 spienbajes jusioins
‘Ajrewinid ‘paubisap sainseaw Jo yel yum aoejd ul Apealfe sI sainseaw Jo Yel e eyl jalaq v )]
Z eoly

"Japean
wea] uoneAlasuo) Agiuas aq 03 sy}
Bulure|dxs asuodsay "uoISnjuOd swWoS
0] p9| sey SIy} reyi 101691 s1a2140 pue
‘Ja1Sea SisAleue ayew 0} Sem Ssalledo|
01Ul UMOP B3Iy UONBAIBSUOD Byl Yealq
0] UOISIoap ay] ", Seale UoleAIasuoD,
aleredas se bl umo Jiayl ul pabpnl

aq 01 paubisap 10u ate Aay] ‘sjoym ayl
uIylIm sjuswg|d ate uodn pajuswiwod
Sa1}I[e20] OM]} BY "UOIIRIBPISUOD

OJul BaJe UOITBAISSUOD 8joyMm 8y} Jo
Spasu ay) ayel 0} pa|ie} Sey Juspuodsal
3y Teyl 118} s 3l swal [esauab u)

:SMOJ|0} Sk ale uonoalgo

3y} 1o} suoseay ‘malnal Arepunog pasodoud ay ul (sayoeoiddy
uia1se3 yuoN) € eale % (91AyM\ 18219 ayl Jo YUON) g eale

O uoisnjoul sy 01 Bunosalgo 1snil AjiweH samojo4 ayl Jo jjeyag up

191SayouRWpPOD
19911S 1S9M

‘S9IO [[eH Wied
S8JeI20SSY % Ul uyor

SUENTEIES
SIYl yum aalibe ued sI1aodlyo ‘alojaiayl
‘poalbe usaq aney sialawered

ay1 aouo ue|d [euonelsado ||ny

e oI padojonap aq 01 seyoeoidde pue
suoneo0| BuiAuapl JUswNIop aulno
ue ‘abels siyl 1e ‘sl ue|d Juswabeuew
ay) Buiulaouod uswnoop aylL

"9A1109Yd 1l aXew 0}
|re1ap Jarealb spasu ue|d uswabeue|y ayl ey sisabbng

(n)

92



palou SMaIA 'smalnal rejnbal 1no Aired 0] Aressadau
ag ||Im 11 0s ssadoud Buiajons Ajlenunuod e aq |Im SIyL (nn)
‘pasodoud s1oaloid Jo abuels ay) yum
palou SMBIA 9albe pue umo)l syl 1BUSQ ||IM 1l eyl ‘eale UOIBAIaSU0D
Mau 8y} Jo} ueld Juswabeuew e jo eapl ay) Woddnsg ()
palou SMaIA ‘Aaswey Jo Jajoeseyd duoIsly 8yl
Buipueisiapun 1o} |NJash JUBWSSaSSY Jajoeleyd ay) pulq ()
palou SMaIA 110921109 S| Arepunog mau ayj 1eyl pue eale UoieAIdSU0D
ay1 Jo Arepunog ay1 abueyd 01 eapl poob e sI 11 juiyL 0] 1uapIsay Aaswey
‘leusrew [eaibojoaeydle 1saq
9y} Urejuod ydiym ‘spjay omi reuonippe
ue apnjoul 01 pasodoud siI 11 adusapInS
ay1 paJapisuod BuineH "Aing jo Aloisiy
Alrea ay) 01 agueAs|al Sl pue alIs ‘abe||IA [eAsIpaW palIasap pue 8lIS palilio) uoxes
3y} Jo 8ouedlIubIS Byl pawluod sey 1o uewoy 9|qissod e Bulureuod yainyd Aing Jo yinos
92IAIaS [ealbojoarydly aliysabpuquwe) | aus [ealbojoaeyale Jueoiublis e Jo uoisnjoul ayl pasodoid )
@1Aym
1eal9) 8yl Ul ¥20|D 8y} pue [eowaw Jem ayl punoJte
sbBuijrel ayy jo uonelolsal ‘8b1099 ayl puiyag oolg
anoge sy | Aing pue |IH S.8y100g e sawayds juswadueyua suoddns Q)]
"UMO] 3U3 UIyim
‘ue|d 1uawabeuey ay) 1o} a|qisuodsal ymolb o1wouods abeinoous 0] ade|d 1ybu ayl ul Bunjred
132110 8y} 0] paiajal uiod sy alenbape apinoid 0] paau ay) 01 uonuane Malp os|y ()
"paurelal si Aeemales) UIdYLION ayi 1e ainjoniseul
pP3aloN [ednjoaMyose pue dUOoISIY 3yl Jey) pauiaduod Auenonied ()
‘Arepunoq winasni [einy Asswey
pal1oN ©Bale UoBAIBSUOD 8] JO UOISUBIXS 8} SBWOIIDM )] Ao|pre\ auer
‘ST 9dd

Ag palinbal se sjuawa|a 1uaiayIp ayl
usamiag sdiysuoine[al ayl J0 1UNOIE
1UBI01NS 8¥e] 10U S30p SisAjeur
sauapuodsai ay] ‘spuadap snieis

BaJe UoNBAISSUOD 1noge Juswabpnl
yolym uodn JUsWaMas ajoym ay}

JO swua) ul JuswnBie a|qelA e 10U SI SIyL

‘sSnyels eale UOITeAISSUOI JURLIBM 10U S90P apISAIIUN0D
uado ay ul puejwuey Jo asuedxa abie| ay) ‘sbulpjing pailsi|
[esanas Bulurejuod audsap ‘reys si uoluido s, usi ayL

()

93



paalby ‘pasodoud sjoaloid Jo abuel ay) uo |relsp aiow pasN n)
‘Buiwrem eqol|b o1 ppe sisinwwod Buo 'sassauisng
% sdoys Jama} 7 sasnoy aJow Bumeb aldap\ jfenuassa si
JuswdojdaAap J1IWOUO09T "UMO] 3} 01 Siiyauaq Buug |im ueld syl
pPaloN | Jaylaym urenasun Ing ued juswabeuew e jo vapl ay) woddng (A1)
Aaswey Jo Jajoereyd ouolsIy
paloN ay1 Buipuelsiapun 10} |NyBSN UBWISSASSY Jajoreieyd ayl puld ()
“(sw
10U PINOM 11 Y2IYM ‘UMO S)I UO eale
UOITeAISSUOD [[eWS B 19348 Ul) J3IjINo
ue Buireald INOYIM JNJIIP 39 pjnom
uoisnjoul Ing ‘peoy pjal4 Buiuiasuod
jusawnBire ay) Ul WBW SI 3I8Y] ‘aA0ge
abelllaH ysi|bu3g Aq apew Sjuswwod
0] sasuodsal ay) Japun pauonuaw usaq
sey umoj ay} jo ued siyr ul Arepunog ipeoy pjai4 ui sbuipjing
ays Jo Buioeld ay1 1noge uoIsioap ay L p|O ai0W — UBIpJEMPI/UBLIOIIA YI10g ¢peoy pIald 1ou pue
peoy umoimaN Aym 1ng ‘1981109 Apsow si Arepunoq mau ay L ()
fU9319 YainyD puiyaq uswdojpaAsp ai04aq
1SIX3 LUPIP SIY} dweys — papn[oul SMaIA Buo| 88s 0} Bapl po09
paloN “Bale uoileAIasuod ayi Jo Arepunoq ayl abueyd 0} eapl pooo 0]

JuapIsay Aaswey

94



*AIUNWIWOo9 ay) Yim
uoNB)NSU0d Ul ‘Sanssi asay] ssalppe

"UMO] Juswialilal e Bulwosaq Jo
Jabuep ul Aaswey ‘018 Buisnoy ajgep.ioye :Bunok ayj 1o}
papaau uoisinoid 810\ JUBIU0I 8yl OS[e INq Jaloereyd ayl

0] Spuaul ue|d uonaoy Aaswey ayl | 1snliou ‘sanijioey jo uswdojanap ssalppe pjnoys uejd ayL )
[19uno) ayl Aq paonpoud

u9ag sey als BWAUID puels ay) o} ‘ewiauID puel Jo apede) daay

Joug wawdojanaq aresedas e — pajoN 0] uaay A1 Ajresauab s1osloid Jo abues ay) yum aa1by (nn)
‘Juawdojanap anayredwAsun dois Aew 7 umol ay) 0}
sujeuaq Buug [im ue|d Byl quiyl ‘[elosswwod 7 [enuspisal
‘lelnsnpul — Buipjing pasealoul pue JuswdojaAap Jo areme

pa1oN daay 01 pasN ‘ue|d Juswabeuew e Jo eapl ay) woddng ()
:Aimuad Tz 0} sawn
[enaipaw-aid wouy Juswdolanap Jo uoneue|dxa aney 0}
[njasn ‘Asswey Jo Ja1oereyd duoisly ayl Buipuelsiapun 1o}

paloN |njasn pue Alojeue|dxa-}|9S S| JUBWISSASSY Ja1oeleyd ay | ()
11091109 S| Arepunoq mau ay| ‘eale
Japeolq Ul aye) 0] SPasu pue |[ews 00} Ajuannd — eale

paloN uoneAIasuo9 ay Jo Arepunog ayl abueyd 01 eapl poos 0] 1uapIsay Aaswey TT

"apeJ)/[enuapisal 7 19yJew 10} SSadde
3[o1IyaA paniwiad yum uelnsapad se peol Jo eale 1n0 aned
uonoe 1o} 19210 ‘Alddns Aloo9)9/181em oy plb/saolnias punolbiapun

arendoidde 01 uo passed uonsabbng | Aeq [enpiaipul aney pjnoys a1AyM 1eals uo 18x4eN aiua)d ()
SJUl| red aininy :aus

UBWINJ0pP SIY} 10} BNSSI Ue 10U S| SIY | Aem|res apnjoul asea|d '1981102 Jou S| Arepunog mau ay | ()
‘Juswdojanap aunonuawdolaaap aining
pasodolid Aue apnjoul pue Yyliou ay} 0} eale asealou| eale

paloN uoeAIaSUO09 3y} Jo Alepunoq ay) abueyd o031 eapl poos) 0] apisay Aaswey 0T

95



P31ON

‘pasodoud s1oeloid Jo abues syl yum aaibe pue
UMO} 8y} 01 sliyauaq Buug [|Im 1l Teyl ‘ease UoIBAISSUOD
Mau ay) Joj ueld Juswabeuew e Jo eapl ay) yoddns

()

P3lON

‘Aasuiey 1o Jarorreyd ouolsIy ay)
Buipueisiapun 10} |NjasN 1UBWISSASSY Jalorreyd ayl pul

()

P3iON

11091109 SI Arepunog mau 8y} Teyl pue eale UoNeAIaSU0D
ay Jo Arepunoq ayy aBueyo o1 eapl poob e si 1l yulyl

0]

uapIsay Aaswey

14

P3iON

P3loN

‘Buiddoys
8J1UB2 UMO] X28iM [|IM Teyl siuswdojanap abre| pioay

‘pasodoud

s109(0id Jo abues ayl yum aaibe pue umol

9y} 0] S)auU( |[IM 11 Tey)l “eale uolfeAIasuod msu
ay1 1o} ue|d Juswabeuew e Jo eapl ay) uoddng

(n)

(1)

P31ON

‘Aaswrey Jo Ja1oeleyd 2uolsIy
ay) Buipuelsiapun 1o} [NJBSN JUBWISSaSSY Ja1oeley)d ayl

()

P31ON

‘aJIip|im 1o} pabeuew AjjeanayredwAs eare uado ue
awWwo02a( ||IMm uonels N Aaswey punole eale ay) eyl adoy
| "1081102 S| Alrepunog Mau ay) Jeyl pue eaJe UoeAIasuod

ay1 Jo Arepunog ay) abueyd 01 eapl poob e U JulyL

(1)

JuapIsay Aaswey

€T

P31ON

‘pasodoud s1oaloid
Jo abuel ay) yum aaiby "umol ayl 01 suyauaq Bulg [im
11 7eyr quiyl pue ue|d juswabeuew ay) Jo eapl ay Loddns

(n)

P31ON

‘Kasurey o Jarorleyd ouolsIy
ay) Buipuelsiapun 1o} [NJBSN JUBWISSaSSY Ja1oeley)d ayl

(1)

P31ON

‘papnjoul
Aing Jo awos 9as 0] 921N "199.109 S| Alepunog mau ay]

()

P3iON

‘Irews A1aA [eulblio — eare UoBAISSUOD
a1 Jo Arepunog ay1 abueyd 0] eapl pool e sI 1 JulyL

0]

uapIsay Aaswey

4’

96



‘anN3g
‘Arepunoq ealy UoneAIasu0D
pasinal yum plodoe 01 dew ue|d uawabeue|y puswy (n
apo)d
apeuw sjuswpuswy ubisa@ 01 papaau syuawanoidwi oiydeib pue 1xa] JOUIN (1 OaH
190140 ubisaqg ueqin GT

97



This page is intentionally left blank

98



"dew SO G2 026T ‘¢
‘dew SO .52 088T 'T :sdew ppy

:G abed

‘pake|dsip aq

0] Spaau [le1ap alow JI Apuanbasgns pabiejua ag Aew 1ng JUBWNJ0P SIY1 JO Suswalinbal
3yl 1} 0] UBSOYD Uda([ dARY Jajoeleyd [ed0| alelisn||l 0} JUBWNJO0P SIY} ul pasn sdew sy
‘paldinbal se so|eds pue |le1ap JO S|aA3| a|gelins Je paAe|dsip uayl pue palols Ajuauewlad
a( 01 uonewJojul feneds smoje 1eyl (S19) waisAS uonewloju [eaiydelboas) e si siyL
"M3IA U2JY UIYlM paplodal usaq aAey wio) dew ul pake|dsip pue juswssasse Jajoeleyd
SIY} Ul 8sn 1oj 10sIp Aaswey ay) UIyliM Slusws|ilas ay) Uo palds||od uoneuwloul ayl ||v
uonew.Jojul reneds Jo Buipioday ayl €T'T

:ydeibesed ppy

aouealjlubIS
JO JUBWalelS pue uononpoul:yy abed

Aueld

¢ abed

suoIsInal ON

Sj1ualu0) :z abed

G002 Jaquiadaq :a1ep 0] UoISIneY

Jano) T abed

NOILVLINSNOD JI'1dNd ONIMOT104 LNIINSSISSV
d310VHVHO V3adV NOILVAYISNOD AISAVY JHL OL SNOISIATY 40 31NAd3IHDS

€ XIAN3ddV

99



peoy UMOoIMaN Jaye (BpIS 1Sam)

:J8sul ,spooyinoqybiaN,, 10} MOJ JUSWSMNSS 8INSO|oUT 1SOd Eg/eg uwnjod Ulyupn

T 8|qel :6 abed

sydeibered jusnbasgns Jaquinuay ‘p

"wloj 1)ing [eauoisly Bunsixa ays
alesisn||1 01 paodnpoidal ase sainjes) [einjoaliyase uedyiubis Jo sajdwexa Aleso| yoes 104

|rera@ Buipjing TT°¢

:ydeibered mau uasu| 2
sydeibered jusnbasgns Jaquinuay ‘q

"019 Ssew pue
salniea} uaalb ‘saull Buip|ing sapn|oul SIYL "Sainyea] [eieds Aay J1ayl JO SWI3] Ul pasAjeue
ale saodeds uado pue 1ing usamiag sdiysuone|al uealubis 1sow ayy Aledo| yoea uiyiupn
sisAjeuy [eneds 6'¢

:ydeibered mau ppy ‘e

ay}

Baly UOIBAIBSUOD
JOo sIsAleuy a9yl 8 abed

89T dew S,8100[\ JO Ued ‘2
:dew uispow uo palosloid abeurelp uaj -aid Aydeisbodo] T :Buimoys sdew ppy
£/8T "0 ‘dey are1s3 Aeswey .dew bBunsixa 01 uonded ppy

:) abed

SUOISINSY ON

1uswdojanaQ [ed1101SIH :9 abed

100



juawindop malAal Arepunoq pasinal Jad se salepunoq dew puswy

sIsAeuy Jaroereyd
JUBWS|N8S [eAdIpaN ez GT obed

JT sawo2aq pT

Arewwnsg apo)d
ubBisaq suoliaug Asqqy T obed

9T Sawo0923q JT

9pod
ubisaq suolsinug Asqqy T oabed

(payoene Adod) sjreiag bBuipjing suosaug Asqqy ‘pPT

(payoene Adod) sisAjeuy [eneds suosaug Asqqy ‘qT

ININNDOA
SIHL Ol X3INNV NI SV S39Vd
M3IN ddv €T/Z¢T S3D2Vd N3IIML3I4

ydeibojoyd mau yum yainyd ,sewoyl 1S Jo ainoid aoe|dey

sIsAleuy adA L
Buip|ing suoJinug Asqqy "qT 2T abed

sabueyo oN

sisAjeuy Ja1oereyd
suolinue  Aeqqy eT  IT obed

.uoneiualio [eneds, o) [oquAs maN ‘T ainbi4

“JUBWINO0P M3IA3J Arepunoq pasinal Jad se sallepunog dew 01 suoisingy "z dep

0T abed

101



‘peol
uoIeIS Ul |J00YdS JO SU0 YIIM prOoY UMOIMBN JO apIs 1sea uo sbuip|ing Jo sainoid aoe|day

JUBWINO0pP Malnal Arepunoq pasinal Jad se dew puswy e

sisAfeuy adAL
Bulp|ing ainsojou3 1s0d "qg 0z abed

‘'Spuepoeq ayl 0lul SMaIA Jueniodwi yum ‘aouediiubis eneds
e 11 soAIb :uasul pue aouedljiubis Arelodwajuod e 1l saAIb, a19|ap 1xa1 Jo ydeibesed 1s.i |

‘1X9) puswe pue ,r, ainjoid a1leg o
[peoy UMOIM3N JO 1IN0 1SaM M3IA YIIM Y, ainoid asejdey 'q

‘Juawndop malnal Arepunog pasinal lad se dew puswy ‘e

sisAleuy
la10eIeyD alnsojoug 1s0d ‘eg 6T abed

JZ Sawo023q pg

Arewwns apo)
ubisa@ 1UsWa|118S [eAdIpaN 8T abed

97 SaW093( 97

3pod
ubisa@ 1UsWa|118S [endlIpaN LT abed

(payoene Adod) sjrela@ bulp|ing JuawWamas [eASIPAN “PT

(payoene Adoo) sisAleuy eneds Juswamas [eAsIpalN "qg

ININNDOA
SIHL Ol X3INNV NI SV S39Vd
M3IN ddv 9T/ST S3IDOVd NIIML3I4

1UBWIN20p MalAal Arepunoq pasinal Jad se sallepunog dew puswy

sisAjeuy adA] Buip|ing

JUBWSaNBS [eAdIpdN gz 9T obed

102



3 SaW093q of

Arewwnsg
apo) ubisaq abuli4 usslo Gz abed

(payoene Adod) sjreia@ bulpjing abull4 usaio 'py

(payoene Adoo) sisAleuy [eneds abulH4 uaals ‘qy

ININNDO0Aa
SIHL Ol X3INNV NI SV S39Vd
M3IN ddv S¢/f¢ S3DVd NIIMLF4

JUBWNo0op MalAal Arepunoq pasinal Jad se dew puswy

sisAfeuy adAL
Buipjing abun4 usaio gy :yz abed

juswindop malnal Arepunoq pasinal Jad se dew puswy

sisAleuy
1910e1RYyD 8bullq4 ussl9 ey :gg abed

JE SaW093( PE

Arewwns
apo) ubisag ainso|oug 1s0d :zg abed

3¢ SaW093( 9¢

apo)d ubisaq ainsojoug 1sod :1z abed

(payoene Adod) sjrelaq buipjing aInsojou3 1so0d 'pPE

(payoene Adoo) sisAjeuy [eneds ainsojou3 1s0d "gg

ININNDO0Aa
SIHL Ol X3NNV NI SV S39vd
M3IN ddv T¢Z/0¢ S3DVd NIIML3I4

103



PG saWwo02aq qg

apo) ubisaq
sealy [elisnpul Ainjuad 6T L2 9bed

(payoene Adod) sjresaq Buiping fetisnpul Aimuad 6T "PS

(payoene Adod) sisAjeuy eneds [etnsnpul Ainjuad 6T 4G

ININNDO0Aa
SIHL Ol X3INNV NI SV S39Vd
M3IN ddv /[¢/9¢ S3ADVd N3IIMLI4

‘Buipeay mau mojjo) 0] . Aemaleb ulaylou ayl 1y, 1xa1 bunsix3y
sadA] Bulpjing

:1X81 anoge buimol|o) Buipeay gns yum ydeibered mau ajeald g

"eale ay) ul Ansnpui-oife uispow ayy jo suibo Ainyuad 6T pue ymmolb ayy piooal Asy)
asneoaq Aaswey 01 aouediubis ouoisIy Jejnanted Jo are saxa|dwod asay] ‘sadA) buip|ing
Bulurewas pue urelb ayl yiog 19adsal pjnoys juawdoaAap mau Aue pue eale uoleAIaSu0d

ay) uiyum panlasald ag pjnoys eale siyL ‘Sulewal Sasn pue| [euonipesl I1ayio pue
sAem|ies ay ‘apo ybiH 8yl Jo uoneiualo ayl bunos|yal sals ay) Jo urelb, ay) ‘1oAaMoH

X8} ppe ,Salls pjay
UMOIQ paJsea)d Ajjenuasss ale’ ", Bulpua aoualuas 1Sll) JIa)e ‘1xal Jo aAl) ydeibelred e

sisAleuy
adAl bBulpjing pue Jajoeleyd sealy
leuisnpul Aimuad 6T "e§ :9z abed

104



SAN4

‘sjuawanoIdwl [RIJUBWIUOIIAUS Y)IM SIBWO01Snd JIsy)

pue siapeJ] Jo spasau ayl Buioueeq ‘passalppe aq 01 spaau Bupjred Jo anssi ay) ‘Aewis
"1oya pue uoleulbew Yum pasianal 8q p|nod puall SIYl pue sieaAk ay) JaA0 Jalorleyd [eao|
1131 10 yonwi 1s0| aney swuolj-doys Auely ‘papaau si abeubis Jo Bulienn|o-ap ay) se [|om se
W0} pue sjeliarew [eo0] 0] uonuane Jareals ‘shkemybiy ajdiouud ay) Jo 1sow bBuoje abeubis
pue ainyuiny 19ans ‘Buined 0] sjuswanoidwi 1o} paau ay) Buneis-ai YoM SI 1l ‘JISASMOH

:1x3) Buimoyj|o} ay) ppe g’y ydeibelred

Juswaoueyuy
ainin4 Joj) saniunuoddo O :0g abed

Aued

62 abed

9G SaW093( 95

Arewwns apo) ubisag
sealy [elisnpul Ainjuad 6T :GZ 9bed

105



This page is intentionally left blank

106



Agenda Item 11

AGENDA ITEM NO.

COMT 22"° NOVEMBER 2005
CABINET 15™ DECEMBER 2005

THE GRAND CINEMA, RAMSEY
DEVELOPMENT BRIEF
(Report by PLANNING POLICY MANAGER)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise Cabinet of the result of public
consultation on the draft Development Brief and to consider the
Council’'s response. The Cabinet is asked to approve the amended
Development Brief for its use in the potential re-development of this
part of the town.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 A draft version of this document was released for public consultation
by Cabinet on 15" September 2005 and the consultation period
extended until 18" November 2005. It has been advertised locally
and affected properties have been leafleted.

2.2 As a result of comments received in writing, a number of revisions
have been made to the document.

2.3 The adoption of the Development Brief as Interim Planning Guidance
will be an important step towards achieving the most appropriate form
of re-development for this area. It will help to ensure that forthcoming
schemes are of a high architectural and urban design quality, and are
well integrated with existing developments. In addition, it will assist
the Council in delivering a suitable community facility as part of the
development package.

3. THE CONSULTATION RESPONSE

3.1 37 written responses have been received from statutory agencies,
local organisations and members of the public, containing 110
separate comments for consideration. A summary of the respondents,
their comments and the Council's response is contained within

Annex 1.

3.2 Most comments have given rise to minor text or graphic changes. The
most significant concerns and the Council’s responses are outlined
below:

3.3 Demolition of existing buildings: if implemented in full, the Brief may

result in the demolition of the existing cinema building and No. 29
Great Whyte. It is accepted that the existing cinema building is

107



3.4

3.5

3.6

something of a local landmark and has been associated with the town
for many years. Although its re-use for a limited range of functions is
conceivable, it is unlikely that these re-uses will bring about a
comprehensive improvement of the environment within and adjoining
the site. There is also the question as to whether a future re-use in
the existing building would be viable, given the demise of the most
recent cinema use, or whether that re-use provides a facility available
for a wide range of the community. It is the Council’s opinion that the
existing building, whilst of local interest, is not worthy of retention at
the expense of a new, high quality facility which provides not only a
suitable community function but also has the potential to deliver
architecture of equivalent or, as intended, superior quality. In relation
to No. 29, the same principles apply: it is an attractive building but is
in a poor state of repair. Its retention (even in part) has the potential
to curtail the comprehensive and viable re-development of the
combined sites, at the expense of improvement to the wider area and
the delivery of a community facility. Given the outcomes of the
Ramsey Action Plan which identified a need for a range of community
facilities in the town, the Council considers that the delivery of an
appropriate community facility on this site is desirable and outweighs
the potential loss of these buildings.

Loss of parking: parking would only be lost if some or all of this
particular area were to be included in the re-development. From the
Council's perspective, allowing development on the existing parking
area may be essential for the delivery of much-needed community
facilities and improved public toilets. The public consultation has
raised parking in general as a significant concern in the town, echoed
by Development Control Panel. This is a broader issue that cannot be
fully addressed within the remit of this document, but the Council is
planning to re-visit the parking strategy for the town centre.

Provision of housing: objections have been received in relation to the
provision of residential units in the town centre. If this concern relates
to the loss of retail property arising from the development of this site,
then the objection does not apply as no existing retail properties exist
on the site. The provision of new retail property would depend on
viability. Rejection of dwellings in the town centre would lead to a
reduction in the viability of the town centre itself, and would be
contrary to national policy in relation to town centres. This would be
contrary to the Action Plan ‘Vibrant Town Centre’ initiative. The
provision of a community facility in addition to housing would help to
extend the viability of the town further.

Community facility: whilst there was general support for the provision
of these facilities, some respondents requested uses such as a
cinema, theatre, entertainments centre and youth centre. It is unlikely
that this site could deliver such facilities, not least due to its restricted
size. Also, this site is just one of a number being considered for the
delivery of a range of appropriate community uses. Consultation is
currently underway with local groups to establish what facilities would
be best suited to the town, including considerations for their on-going
management and maintenance.

108



4.1

5.1

52

CONCLUSION

The revised document will incorporate a number of changes as a
result of the public consultation process. The promotion of
appropriate site analysis and a comprehensive design strategy is
unchanged.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Cabinet authorizes the revisions to the document as
presented in Annex 1.

That the Cabinet delegates adoption of the revised document,
incorporating minor consequential amendments, as Interim Planning
Guidance to the Executive Member for Planning Strategy, in
consultation with the Head of Planning Services.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Contact Officer: Chris Surfleet

Urban Design Officer
= 01480 388476

109



This page is intentionally left blank

110



[enuayod ay) pue abejuoly ayy uo uonisod
e Sl 01 8NP aAaIYde 0] JNJIYIP 89 PINOM SIY L 62 'ON J0 1se9| 1e uoiuod juol} urelay 0T
paloON "uonn|os [eandeid e aq wawdojanap mau ay)
€ | 10u Aew Jo Aew 11 Ing Anjigqissod [ealuydosl e SISIYyl | 011uol) e se apede) puelo) JO UONUSISI SPUSWILIOIDY 6
€ paIoON Buipjing Bunsixa jo uonijowsap siaibay 8 % uapisay
‘abe1s siyl 1e uonelapisuod ¢Sluawade|dal Jo uoisinoid pue bunsixa
¢ | 4o} areudoidde ju uoneIspISUOD pajieIsp B S SIYL | 4O uonijowap usamiaq papiroid soojeuod aq a1aus [IIM /
eale Aeid
juswdojanap | se ualp|iyd Aq asn 01 anp uonualal [eiued Jsjaid pjnom
e a1 Ag paloaye o 10U PINOM US3IS UMOIMSN pue padojansp ag p|N0d UdaI UMOIMBN 1Byl S810N 9 € uapisay
Buipjing mau ay1 Jo ubisap ayl ul SMOPUIM
e paloN | sse|b paulels se yons sainjes) pjo JO SN puawwoday G Z uapiIsay
"91IS SIY} UO Sanijioe) Anunwwod
3y JIaAljap 01 djay |IMm pue ‘Sa2IAISS S) pue
umo} 3y} Jo AljIgeIA By} 1S00(Q 0} pPapualul S| 8U3d
e umo} ayp ul sbuijjamp feuonippe Jo uoisinoid ay L papaau aJte Aaswey Ul Sjej} 810w IapIsuod Jou od %
a.uad
uMmo} a8y} ul Bupjred Jo anssi ay) 01 UOITRISPISUOD
Jayuny anIb [Im [1IounoD 8yl "Spasau Umo)
ay1 reyl Ajioey Alunwiwod ayi Janlsp 01 Ajdy|
aJow eale ay) Jo uawdojaaap anisuayaldwod
e ' 9|qeus 0} papnjoul si eale Bupred Bunsixe ayl Bunjred jo reaowsl Loddns jou og e
puewsp ul
e paloN dwn|s uauna uanib jre1al jo uoisinoid poddns Jou oQ I
sBunsaw 99WIWO0d 10} SWO0J pue |jey Aunwwod
e paloN | e Ajeroadsas ‘sanijioe) Anunwwod jo uoisinoid poddng T T uapisay
"ON ou
uonoy asuodsay juswiwo) | wwod | dsay wapuodsay

uael uonoe ou — g
1USWINO0P SILY) JO LSS BY) UILIM JOU — 2
uael uonoe — T

AISAVY "VININIDO ANVYD T XaANNV

111



UMO1 8y Uil Bunyred Jo anssi ay) 01 UOITRIBPISUOD
1ayuny aAIb |jIm 19UN0D 8y 'SPasu UMO)

ay1 1ey1 Ao} Alunwiwiod syl JaAliap 01 AjayI|
alow eale ay Jo Juswdojanap aAisuayaldwod

e 9|qeusa 0} papnjoul si eale Bupred Bunsixs ayL

peoy maN uo Bupped jo sso| 1dadde 10U saoq

LT

apisay

‘'sasn

Aunwwod 10} paispisuod Buisg saus Jo Jaquinu
® J0 auo 1snl sI aus puels ay] Jusawabeuew
pue aoueuajurew Bulob-uo Buipnjoul ‘pataniap
30 0] 3|qeIA 3q 0] pasau saljioe) yans jng paloN

219 SaJuep ‘smoys
‘saniAnoe YinoA ‘eseds Bunasw Buipnjoul ‘umol ay)
J1oJ Ajioey mau Jofew e Aq paoe|dal ag pjnoys ewauid

9T

"Aressadau palapisuod

ale saoeds [euonippe oN ‘lodsuel) areaud

Uo Juelj2) 3 AjLIesSa2au 10U PINOM SIONSIA 1ey)
papuajul si 31 ‘sanol Lodsuen olignd pue umol ayl
JO 24jua2 8y} 01 9S00 paredo| Arelql syl Buiney Ag

ded siswoisno Arelqi a8yl [|Im a8y

aT

EYIVER)
UMO] 8y} Ul Bunyed Jo anssi ay) 01 UOIRISPISUOD
Jayuny aAIb ||Im 19UN0D 8y 'SPaau UMO)

ay1 1ey1 Ao} AluNwiwod syl JaAliap 01 AjayI|
alow eale ay) Jo Juswdojanap anisuayaidwod

e a|geus 0] papn|oul si eate Bupjred Bunsixs ayL

sred red uo uswdojanap 1dadoe Jou s80Q

|4

papinoid aq 10u
(M Aoy Alunwiwod ay) asimIaylo ‘pajuawualdul
2 01 3|geIA 8¢ 01 sey Juswdojanap ayL

Auedwod uswdojanap e Jo 1jBuaq ay) 01 10U Aaswey
O 1jduaq ay1 1o} padojonap aq pINoys s ajoym ayL

€T

abejuol) syl uo sasn AUNWWO

Bunowoud sI [1IoUNOD By "SIIIAISS SlI pue

umo} ay} Jo AljIgeIA ay) 1S00(q 0} papualul S| 8U39
umo} ayp Ul sbuijjamp feuonippe Jo uolisinoid ay

[elauab ul juswdoljonap [enuapisal aiow 1o a1AYM
1eal9) ojuo Buioe) Auadoid jenuspisal yoddns jJou og

[4"

uapisay

anuad
uMO1 3y Ui Bunyred Jo anssi ay) 01 UORIBPISUOD
1ayuny aAIb |jIm 19UN0D 8YL 'SPasu UMO)

ay1 1ey1 Ao} AluNwiwod syl JaAliap 01 AjayI|
alow eale ay Jo Juswdojanap aAisusyaldwod

e 9|qeusa 01 papnjoul si eale Bupjred Bunsixs ayL

(eale anua)d
yiresH Ha) ataymas|a papinoid aq pjnoys saseds
anneulale ‘padojanap aq 01 ied Jed peoy MaN 4

1T

Ieal ayr 01 Buipjing Jo diysuone|al

112



*J1aded [e20| 8y} Ul
palsod usag aney suaApe om] “Aj1oaiIp paisjes)

Jadedsmau

e uaaq aney sauadolid Agreau pue jusdelpy ul Janpe pue sdoys [ed0] ul Bunajea spuswwoday 12
€ pPaloN eapl poob e aq pjnom als ayi 01 Areiq| Jo uonedoay 9Z
e FEIGIN ewauld ayl deay 01 Jajaid pinopn GZ 0T juapisay
‘1odsuen; aijgnd 01 8s0jd ag pjnom Ajioe) ay)
e | ‘anuad umol ayl ul paredo| Bulag "Ajlressadau 10N Bupjred feuonippe alinbal pjnom Aujioe) AllUNWWOI v ve
abejuol) ayl
€ "9|qeln J1 9|qissod Ajuo Ing ‘paloN | Jo wed Jamo| syl ul ie1al Jo wioy awos uoddns pinopn ez
EYUER)
umo} ayl ul Bupjed Jo anssI ay) 0] UONRISPISUOD
Jayuny aAIB Im [1IouNoD 8yl "SpPasu UMo)
3yl 1eyy Aupioey Ayunwiwiod ayy 1anidp 03 Ajax||
aIow eale ay) Jo Juswdojanap anisuayaldwod peoy Mau Ul yred Jed syl aAowal dls pueio) [1oUNoD
e ' 9|geua 0] papn|oul si eale Bupred Bunsixa ayl 3y} Jo wawdojaAap pInoYs SaoueISWNIIID OU JBpun a4 6 umo| Aaswey
a.uad
umo} ay1 ul Bupjred Jo anssi 8yl 01 UOITRISPISUOD
Jayuny aAIb [im [1I9UN0D By "SPaau UMO]
ay1 1eyl Aljioe) AlluNwiwod ayl JaAliap 01 AjaXI|
aJow eaJe ay} Jo wsawdojanap anisuayaldwod ‘peoy MaN Ul sadeds Jo sso| ay} Joj aresuadwod [aued |01uU0D
e ' 9|geua 0] papn|oul si eate Bupred Bunsixe syl 0] Yled JeD SMa|\ SpPUaIXa 1auige) leyl sisanbay 12 8 wawdojanaq
EYUER)
umol ayi ul bupjred jo anssi ay) 01 UONRISPISUOD
Jayuny aAIB Im [1IouNoD 8yl "SpPasu UMo)
ay1 1eyy Aupioey Ayunwiwiod ayy 1aniap 03 Ajax||
alow eale ay) Jo Juswdojanap aaisuayaidwod
e ® 9|qeua 0} papnjoul si eale Bupred Bunsixe ayl Bunjred Jo sso| 1dadoe j0u sa0Q 0z
‘OdD ays Jo awn ayl 1e pred uaaq Apealje buiney FEIET
uonresuadwod ‘19uno? 10LISIg Y3 JO |0Ju0d SIy wolj p,0dD Ajreuibiio sem siyi se pue| ied Jed
e 3Y1 Ul Mou S| pue| ay} se ajqissod jou si SiyL ay uo wawdojanap Aue 1o} uonesuadwod sisanbay 6T . juapisay
'Sanl|ioe) [euonippe
alelidoidde apinoid 01 palapisuod Bulaq ale sals
JaY10 ‘|[e 10U 1IN ‘spasu asay} Jo awos Jo} apinold aoeds Bunasaw ‘|ley asualajuod
e [IIm Allj1oe) Allunwiwod ayl 1eyl papualul Si | Se 9|qnop 01 al1eay} 8[eds [[ews SpUBWWLIOIDy 8T

2J1u=ad

113



e paloN Bunaaw ‘papinoid aq pjnoys sanijioe} Aunwwo) A%
ssadoe 2ljgnd uajeAinba
e P3ION | Yum awayds mau ayl ul papiaoid ag 1snw s19]101 MaN TV
€ pa10N urewsal pjnoys 6¢ ON ov
€ p3JON urewsal pjnoys ¢ ‘'oN 6€
€ pai1oN paAowal aq pjnoys puelo eyl saalby 8¢
EYIIER)
umo) ayl ul Bupjed Jo anssI ay) 0] UONRISPISUOD
Jayuny aAIB [Im [1IoUNoD 8yl "SpPaau UMo)
ay1 ey Ayjioey Ayunwiwiod ayy Jani|ap 03 Ajaxl|
aIow eale ay) Jo Juswdojanap anisuayaldwod
e ® 9|geua 0] papn|oul si eale Bupred Bunsixe ayl Bumjred Jo sso| 01 s193l00 1€ GT juapisay
Saouajap
poojy/abeurelp pue| 108ye Ajleiuswiilap asIMIBYI0 SIaUOISSIWWOD
e paioN 10 Jo-unJ asealoul 01 Aj@xIjun s wawdojanad og VT [9A37 3|PPIIN
“Aoe) Alunwwod ayl Janiep o1 djay uonouny [e12JaWwWod
[IIM pue 81uad umol ayi Jo Aljigela ayl uoddns 0} pue [1e18l S 8P0JS JBYuNY [[IM UMO] Y} JO Leay
¢ | diay |im suoneso| Asy ul Juswdolanap [enuapisay 3y} ul Juswdolanap [enuapisal Jayuny 1eyl sI1apisuo) GE
Juswdojonap
Aemares) Aaswey ay Jo Led se palapisuod sisixa puewaq ‘uawdojanap
e Bulag sI 2,uad SSauISNQ ® 10} UONeIO| 3y JO Led se a1uad SSauISN(g |[ewsS SPUSWWO099y vE eT uapisay
*Aoe); Aunwiwod ayy ul adeds uoniqiyxa
"19211J0 10 910U 192.1s se Jayla ‘sbuipuly [eaibojoseyose
T | @sed D@ ueas|al 01 passed uonsabbns pue pajoN | 124disiul 01 90TS 9yl ul Juswalinbal e awodjam piNoAA ee
e p3a10N sjuswabuelre 10(d Jeau| Jo aoueuodwi sasiseydwg Z8
Ssjuswalinbal
e paloN 22D YIIM SPI0IJe JUSWINI0P Ul Juswarels IE 2T | ABojoseyoly DDD
a.uad
umo} 8y} ul Bupjred Jo anssi ay) 01 UOITRISPISUOD
Jayuny anIb [Im [1IoUnNoD a8yl "Spaau UMmo)
ay1 rey Ajioey Alunwiwod ayi Janlsp 01 Ajdy|
aIow eaJe ay) Jo awdojaaap aaisuayaldwod
e ' 9|qeus 0} papnoul si eate Bupred Bunsixe ayl NJed Jed Jo sso| 01 S193[q0 0g
€ paioN papinoid aq pjnom Ajjioe) Allunwwod Jeyl pases|d 6¢
€ p3lON BWaUID 3S0| 0] pes 8¢ 1T juspisay

114



1221JJ0 JUBAS|a) 01 passed pue paloN BJIX9 WOJ} SI9M3S UO ainssald 1noge pauiaduo)d 8G 22 uapisay
p3a10N 1UBWIa|a 1509 MO| apinoid pinoys BuisnoH /G
Auoud
paloN ybiy e aq pjnoys Aujioe} Ayunwiwon Jo uoisinoid 95 12 uapisay
paurejal
10 papinoid ag 0] Japlo Ul 3|geIA 3 01 Sey
Aljioe) Aunwiwod v “AljigeIA sem Yoiym Jo auo
‘suoseal JO laquinu B 10} pasold BwauId pjo ayL BWAUID p|o 3y} yoeq buug GS 0z juapisay
apinoid pinoys Ajioe) sy reym 1noge SMaIA J1sy)
1o} payse bulaq Apealfe ate sdnoib Aunwwo)d Jpayse aq sdnoub abe |e |Im %]
apinoid pjnoys Aujioe} ayl reym Inoge SMaIA JIsy) épapinoid
1o} payse bulaq Apealfe ate sdnoib Aunwwo)d S| Jeym 1noge Aes e aney umol ay ul aidoad [jIpm fote]
‘sals a|qissod Jayio
0} UonIppe Ul ‘uoneNSU0I AJUNWWOo Jayuny 0}
109[gns a9 ||Im pue paulwIBep Udaq Jou sey Siy L ¢8q 01 Ayjioey Ayunwiwiod ay} st reYm Zs 6T juspisay
paloN sresodoud suoddns 15 T juapIsay
Jalq sy ul paresipul
ale 1noAe| Jo ajdidund ay) Ing anssi pajrelag ¢ded Jed ayl uo ind aq jim Buiping jo adA1 reypn 0S
lapew pajrelad ¢ind aq s1ybij19a4s 8y (IM 818y 61
S uIl Wodsuea yiim anuad umos e 1oy areudosdde
alel e Je sbuljjamp 10} papinoid aq pjnom Buned red sanuadoid mau [jIm a1aymn 8Y JT 1uapisay
"Sall|Ide} [leuonippe 1oy palapisuod Buiag
ale sals Jayl0 "pajuswajdwi aq 0} JapJIo Ul d|qeIA Aep
30 0] SpPasau a)Is aYy) Uo awayds Aue Ing ‘paloN | oyl Buunp sasuep ea) ‘obulq 1oy pasn aq pjnod adeds v
“Ajoey
Aunwiwod e Jo Alaniap ayl apisbuole anuad umo)
ay} Jo AnjigelA ayy urelurew o} palinbai si BuisnoH paJinba. jou Buisnoy alo o
‘sanijioey areudoidde ‘feuonippe
10 AlaAljap ay) 1oy palapisuod Buiaq osfe
ale sals JaylO "pajuswaldwi 8q 01 JapIo Ul 3|qelA
8Q 0] Spaau alIs 8yl uo awayads Aue Ing ‘paloN pooj ‘Jeq ‘As|re Buimoq e ojul pauin} aq pjnoys alsS G 9T juapisay
‘splepuels Jueaa|al 01 Buipiodoe awayas Aue
papinoid aq pjnom uoisinold Buppied ‘pailoN 1o} papinoid aq pinoys Bupped reuonippe arenbspy 4%
paloN papaau S19]1N0 |[e1al alow ON b

"SaI}I[19B) UBYOI YHM WOOJ

115



Jayuny aAIb |[im [1I9UN0D By "SPaau UMO}
ay1 reys Aijioey Auunwiwiod ayy Janisp o1 Ajex|
alow eale ay) Jo Juswdojanap aaisuayaidwod

e B 9|geua 0] papnoul si eale Bupjred Bunsixs ayl Bunred Jo sso] 01 S193[q0 T,
Ajioe] Alunwiwod 1apim e Jo uoisinoid ay Jou
‘Jeal pue suoleAS|S 3pIS aY] JO JusWadUBYUS 10}
moj[e jou Aew Buipjing ayl Bulurelal ‘os|y "s|geIA
aq 0] paau pinom Buipjing Bunsixa ay) surejal
€ | yosym awayas anneusd)e Aue Ing ‘os ag Aew siy| Sasn aAljeula)e 0] J|asi pua| saop Buipjing 0/ 12 juapisay
a.uad
umo} ay1 ul Bupjred Jo anssi 8yl 01 UOITRIBPISUOD
Jayuny anIb Im [1IoUnNoD YL "Spasu Umo)
ay1 reyl Ajioey Alunwiwod ayi Janlsp 01 Ajdy
aJow eale ay) Jo awdoaaap aaisuayaldwod
e B 9|qeua 0] papn[oul si eate Bupjred Bunsixs ayl Bunjred Jo reaowal 01 s193lq0 69
€ pal1oN Bulp|ing pueI9 Jo [eArowal 0} S}I3[00 89 9Z juspisay
e pa10N eapl poob e sI Ajioe) Ajlunwiwod/Areiqi| Jo UoIsInoid /9
€ pa1oN 62 ON JO [eAowsl 0] S108[00 99
3|geJISap Jo ajgensiyde
e Ajreanoeud aq jou Aew 1ng ajqissod Ajjeaiuyoa puelib ay Jo aberiuol) ay) urelay G9 Gz juapisay
aouasaid 21nD e aaey pinoys Buipjing MOU S90p puelio
e 8y} 1ey) sassaldxa Juawnoop ay] ‘pasiby ay1 se ‘19ans ay) ul Buipjing Jo asuasald asiseydwg 9
Z anssi [e1aq aul| 10desed ureloy )
aUd9s19a.1S 3y 10} saniunuoddopoedwil
3y} uodn paseq a( ||Im UOISIOap [eul OQH ‘llsmpey
¢ | Aue pueybiay jenualod e sisebbns sisAjeue ayL Buipjing mau ui puels Jo ybiay aniasald 29 vz -191s9y)D "9 1N
T papuawe oiydeis | ueld SO ayi woly Buissiw sbunje ayx ul Sasnoy om | 19
T papuawe 1xa | (S002) 1eak siy1 paso|d ewauld — abueyd 1xa | 09 ez juapisay
a.uad
umo} ay3 ul Bupjred Jo anssi ay) 01 UOITRISPISUOD
Jayuny anIb [Im [1IoUNoD 8yl "Spasau UMmo)
ay1 rey Ajioey Alunwiwod ayi Janlsp 01 Ajdy|
aJow eaJe ay) Jo uawdojaaap anisuayaldwod
e © 9|qeus 0} papnoul si eale Bupped Bunsixe ayl Bumred jJo sso| 01123lqO 65

Puisnoy

116



uondo
ue aq yBiw )1 udY) 3|geIA PRIBPISUOD S SIY} |

BWAUID [[ews e asnoy pjnoys Buipjing maN

28

0€

uapISaY

HTRIIYe)
ay1 AQ Jayuiny palapISu0d a(q [|IM 813USI UMO] 3y}

ul Bunyred Jo anssl ay "d1IS 8J1Ud2 UMO] SIY] J0}
arel areudoidde ue 1e papinoid aq pjnom Bunjred

Bunjred pajolsal 0 s193lqO

18

6¢

uapIsay

1901110
JueA3jal 8] 01 passed usa( sey Ulaouod Siy L

peoy MaN ul sainseaw Bulonpal paads spuswiwoday

08

“Apnis siyy Jo nwial sy
UIYIM 10U SI UMO] Y] ulyum juswabeuew Bupjred

paailjod aq 01 pasu seale Bupjied sjuspisay

6.

uoneoo|
a.11uad umol e Joj arelidosdde |an9| a|gelns B
1e Bunjred yum papinoid aq [im Buisnoy mau ay L

swajqo.d
Bunjred Bunsixa areqiaoexa |m Buisnoy maN

8.

™

a.uad
uMmo} 8y3 ul Bupjred Jo anssi 8yl 01 UOITRISPISUOD
Jayuny anIb im [1IoUnNoD 8y "Spasau Umo)

ay1 rey Ajioey Aunwiwod ay) Janlsp 01 Ajdy|
aJow eale ay) Jo awdojaaap aaisuayaldwod

© 9|qeua 03 papnjoul si ease Buped Bunsixs sy

Bunpred Jo sso| 01193lq0

LL

PaJON

300[1n0 Jo JuswaAoiduwi [enuaiod 1daday

9.

[0J1U0D S,|I2UNOD By}
ui Jou si1 Auadoud jo sjuedndo0o ayj Jo ainjeu ayl

suednaoo Buisnoy ajgepioye 01 s193lqo

74

"91IS-gam ay) pue
Arelqu ay1 Buipnjour ‘uonew.ojul syl Buissadoe

10 sAem anneulaie Buinib Ajjoalip palsjes|

sem Auadoud s,Juspuodsal ayy "pouad siyl Joj
uonIgIyxa ayl uew o} a|gissod ag 10U P|NOM 1| “JISIA
0] 9|qissod se ajdoad Auew se sjqeus 01 pouad
Buo| e 1oy Ae|dsip uo usaq sey uoniqIyxa ayl

"pal0ajle asoy 0}
1Uas AnoaJIp 10U 818M S|IRISP 1Byl pUR UONIgIYXa ay) 18
suonsanb Jo} ajgejreAe sem auo-ou eyl pajuioddesiq

v,

8¢

uapisay

mm

pajoN

BuIpiNg Jo UoNIOWap 0} $199lq0

€L

‘pals
a0 1539 ybBiw 1 ataym pue uoisiroid Ajlunwiwod
ysljgeisa 01 Aemiapun ale suoieynsuod

Buisnoy alow 10u ‘yinoA 1o} AlljIoe) e spasu Aaswey

[4A

anuad
uMO] ay) ul Buryred Jo anssi ay) 0] UONERISPISUOD

117



1ayuny aAIb ||IM 12UN0D 8y 'Spaau UMO}
ay1 1ey1 Ao} AluNwiwod syl JaAliap 01 AjayI|
alow eale ay Jo Juswdojanap anisuayaldwod

e ' 9|qeua 0] papnjoul si eate bupred Bunsixe syl | sanioe) 19)101 pue Bupjred Jo SSO| 16 UI8JU09d ssaldx3 €6
G0'6°9¢ JO Jana| ul passaldxa Ajsnoinaid aAITeNIu| 81us)
e palou eaJe alenbs 1axew e Buipnjoul jo sajdidund asiopu] 26 ee umo| Aeswey
payedo| a4 ybiw sani|ioe)
3JBYM pue AJIUNWWOI 3y} JO SPaaU 10BXa 3y} puels ay) Ul parepowwodde aq
e ysl|geisa 01 Aemiapun ate suole}Nsuod — pajoN | pInod — a4uad YinoA ‘[jey Alunwwod e spasau Aaswey 16
€ 3|geIA 3¢ p|noys awayds Aue — paloN 91]U3J SJUBWUIRLIBIUS Ue puelis) 3yl e 06
'sJasn Jo abuel e 10j
sallIoe] Le-ay)-jo-a1els apinoid pinod Areiqi) mau
ay! ‘uomppe u| “Ayjiqeln Jsreall pue sanijigissod
2I0W 30 pINOM Sanij1oe} AUNWwod 1aylo Yyim uoneoo|
e pax)ul| 843ua2 UMO] 8y} ul Arelqi| e reyl A1y si )| jua.LINd ul poobh Apospad — Arelqlp mau 01 S193[Q0 68
e paIoON puel Jo uonijowap 01 s193[q0 88
*Ajoe) Anunwwod
e ay) Buuaalap 01 [enuassa si Siyl Ing ‘pPaloN a11uad umol ul Buisnoy aJow 01 s193[q0 /8 A juapisay
‘slapjoyaxels
[[e 1o} 8wo21no a|qeidadde 1sow ay; Buinaiyoe
SpJemo) als siy} Jo uswdojanap ayl ul Alunwwod
sy} abebua o1 S Jauig SIyl Uo U} NSUOD ‘snuiwnT pue DgH usamiad 4onis
e ay} Jo asodind ay] -pa1dadde j0u pue paloN uaaq Apealfe sey [eap ugnpnel; e ey sisabbng 98
31IS Syl Jo Juawdolarap ay)
1o} awo21no areudoidde 1sow ay) ainsua 01 djay
[IIM JB1Ig BY1 INg dpew uaa( 18A aAey SUOISIOSp ON
"uawdojanap enualod Jo ainjeu syl UO SUBWIWOD palwi| SI uoneynNsuod algnd aiojalay) ‘als ay) uo ob
e s,01gnd 8y} sy@as jalg uawdojanag ayl | ||IM Teym papioap Apealie aaey snuiwnT 1ey) sisebbng G8 I€ uapisay
a.uad
umo} ay3 ul Bupjred Jo anssi ay) 01 UOITRISPISUOD
Jayuny anIb [Im [1IoUNoD 8yl "Spasau UMmo)
ay1 rey Ajioey Alunwiwod ayi Janlsp 01 Ajdy|
aJow eaJe ay) Jo uawdojaaap anisuayaldwod
© 9|gqeua 0} papnoul si eale Bupped Bunsixe ayl peoy maN ul Buppred jo sso| 0] S198lqO v8
€ pai1oON 9|qeidaddeun g "ON JO SSO €8

118



Jo s1aseyaind Buip|ing [enuslod Jo ainyeu ay}
Jan0 |011u02 mou sey Alioyiny Buluue|d 207 ayL

soluadold mau Jo Sjueud) INoge pauladuo)d

4]

EXUER
umo} ay3 ul Bupjred Jo anssi 8yl 01 UOITRISPISUOD
Jayuny aAIb [[im [1I9UN0D By "SPaau UMO}

ay1 ey Aupioey Ayunwiwiod sy} Janidp 03 Ajax||
aJow eaJe ay} Jo wsawdojanap anisuayaldwod

® 9|geua 0] papnjoul s eale bupped Bunsixs syl

yred |IM S1ed 81aym IN0ge PauIaduo)d

TOT

‘obels Jale| e 1e palapisuod A|jn; aq pjnom
Auadoud Buiulolpe uo 1oedwi s1ay) pue Buipjing Jo
suonisod 109exa pue ubisap ‘sybiay ayl ‘suldiooy
Buipling aAiredIpul Ajuo sajeolpul Jalg ay L

Auadoud 01 1yh| Jo SSO| INOge paulaIu0)

00T

GE

juspisay

pajoN

101U paurelal 8q PiNoYS Gg ON

66

"uanib suoseal ay} 10} uonisod Jejiwis
B Ul paurejuiew ag pjnom Aayj ueyi Juswdolaaap
ay1 Jo ued se papinoid-al aq 01 are Aay) §| "posiby

*mou uonisod wnwndo ay Ul aJe s1a|io] dljignd

86

™

'slasn Jo abuel e 1oJ

sall|1oe} Le-ayl-jo-a1els apinold pinod Areiqi) mau
ayl ‘uonippe u| “Aujigeln Jarealb pue sanijiqissod
2I0W J3Y0 pINOM SanijIoe) AJUNWWOI 18Y10 YUM
payul| 8u80 UMO) 8y} ul Areiq| e reys Aja| st |

£10042S Jolung pue
sjueju| 8y seau uonisod sy woly Areiqi) snow AYm

L6

P3JON

31AUM Ted19 6¢ OU Uleloy

96

EYUER)
uMo1 a8y Ul Bupjred Jo anssi ay) 0] UOITRISPISUOD
Jayuny aAIB Im [1IouNoD 8yl "SpPasu UMo)

ay1 1eyy Aupioey Ayunwiwiod ayy 1aniap 03 Ajax||
alow eale ay) Jo Juswdojanap aaisuayaidwod

© 9|geua 0] papn|oul si eale Bupred Bunsixa ayl

Bunyred Jo sso| 01 s198lq0

S6

"paYILLI| B [IM 13U UMO} BU]
ul auIs |rews Aj@Aneal siyl Jo wawdojaAap-al ay)
yuMm pareldosse uoneiauab dljen ayl Ing ‘paloN

aiyjel) si asealoul 0} s198lqO

148)

Ve

uapisay

"81Is a1 uo papiroid-al aq pjnom sanijioe]
a|qIssaooe-AoIgnd pue mau usy ‘awayds ayl
Ul papn|oul 8 0] aJe SaNijioe} 19[101 3yl J| "81Ud
uMO] ay) ul Buryred Jo anssi ay) 0] UONERISPISUOD

119



9.1u8d umo} ay} ul bupjred jo anssi
3Y} 01 UONBIBPISUOI JBYMNY BAIB |[IMm [1IDUN0D By L

yred red ojul
pauiny siyJed Jed SMajA 0} 1Xau adeds puswiwoday

0Tt

EVUER
umo} ay1 ui Bupjred Jo anssi syl 01 UOIRIBPISUOD
Jayuny aAIB [Im [1IoUNoD Byl "SpPaau UMo)

a1 1eyy Aupioey Ayunwiwiod ayy 1aniap 03 Ajaxl|
alow eale ay) Jo Juswdojanap aaisuayaidwod

© 9|geua 0} papn|aul si eale Bupred Bunsixa ayl

Bunjred Jo SSO| JBAO UIB2U0D

60T

P3iON

BWABUID JO SSO| 184631 INg 1UBWdO|ASP SWO0D|BMN

80T

LE

[1oUN0)D
ysired Aing

“Aujioe) Aunwiwod ay) 1aAljsp
01 A1essadau 8¢ pjnom pue a1juad UMo] 8y} Jo
AljigeIA ay) 01 81NgLIUOD ||IM JUBWaId Buisnoy ay L

uMo} 8yl ul arelsa Buisnoy e 01 s198lg0

L0T

‘'sinoy bujiom [ewiou apisino Apenaiued
‘ANjIgeIA S)I SISISSE pue 311U UMO) 8Y} Ul S1asn
J0 abuel ay} 01 s8INQLIUOD AjI9€) ALUNWWOI W

uMo] a1 0] pabeinooua ag pjnoys siaddoys

90T

EVUER
umo1 ay1 ui Bupjred Jo anssi syl 01 UOIBIBPISUOD
Jayuny anIb im 1IoUN0D By "Spasu UMmo)

3yl 1eyy Aupioey Ayunwiwiod ayy 1anidp 03 Ajax||
alow eale ay) Jo Juswdojanap aaisuayaidwod

® 9|geua 0] papnoul si eate Bupjred Bunsixs ayl

Bunyred Jo sso| 01 s198lq0

S0T

‘Jjalg syl
ul pal1oads 10u si syueua) Jo adAl pue ainreu ay |

uonepowwodde
pajuai Jo Alwixoud fenualod 1e pauladsuo)d

70T

"ue|d Uondy Aaswey ayl Ulylim pasu [eao)

B Se payiuapl usaq sey yaiym Ajioe; Alunwiwod
e apinoid 01 Buisodoud si 11 ‘asowiayuing
‘sBuip|ing JO 18s 8|gelAuNn Ue pue eale

umop-uni e jo Juswdo|anap-al aAIsuayaidwod
abeinooua 0} Bujoo) sI Jaug uswdodaaqg aylL

Aaswey
0] [eluawiap aq |m [esodoud 1ey) pauiadsuo)d

€0t

9€

apisay

Sslueus]

120



'S92URISWNAIID 3say) ul painsnl ag Aew uoneao| siyl ul sadeds Jo
SS0| 8y} InQ 813u8d uMo} ay) ul Buppred Jo anssI ay) 01 UONRBIBPISUOI Jaylny SAIB [|IM |IDUN0D Byl "SPaau umol ay) 1eyl Aljioe) Ajlunwiwod ayj Jo
Aloniap ayy 10) [enuassa ag Aew pue eale siy) Jo Juswanoidwi anisuayaldwod apinoid pinom xied Jed peoy maN Bunsixa ayl uo uawdojanag

1, @SN pueT, 9 UONISS Ul papiAoid ag 0 18] [euoniPPY

G6 ‘€6 ‘¥8 ‘T8 2L 'TL '69 '6G ‘L€ '0€ '2C ‘TZ '0C ‘LT ‘YT ‘TT :Sluswwo)

AISAVY "VININIDO ANVYD ¢ XaANNV

121



This page is intentionally left blank

122



Agenda ltem 12

CABINET 15 DECEMBER 2005

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT SITE ,
MOORHOUSE DRIVE HUNTINGDON
(Joint report by the Head of Housing Services and Head of Legal and
Estates)

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To consider the disposal of the council owned site at Moorhouse Drive,
Huntingdon.

2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2.1 This site was identified in the Oxmoor Action Plan for residential
development. The adjacent redundant church has since been purchased and
demolished to enlarge the site area to 1.25ha (3 acres). Outline Planning
Permission has now been granted which includes provision for 29% of the
dwellings to be affordable housing. The site is due to be advertised for sale by
tender early next year once the marketing details have been prepared
including a draft section 106 agreement. A number of house builders have
already expressed interest in the site having become aware of the planning
application.

2.2 During the discussions with Huntingdonshire Housing Association Ltd (HHP)
for the acquisition of Sapley Square, it was agreed that HHP would be the
nominated registered social landlord for Moorhouse Drive (Cabinet report
29.1.04). Prior to securing the Growth Area Delivery Grant (GADG) funding,
HHP submitted a bid to the Housing Corporation for Social Housing Grant to
fund the affordable housing element of the Moorhouse Drive development.
This bid was successful and a grant of £480,000 has been secured.
However, the funding is available on condition that some spend occurs before
before March 2006.

2.3 Initially, it was anticipated that the Moorhouse Drive site might be marketed at
an earlier stage but the GADG funding enabled other sites (Buttsgrove way,
Coxons Close and California Road) to be brought forward increasing the
Council's workload. The HHP bid was made in anticipation of being able to
secure the affordable housing site in sufficient time to enable it to take up the
grant funding. This delay is not the making of HHP. It is fair to say that if the
sale of the land, to a developer, had taken place earlier there still would have
been some uncertainty in the timing of the affordable housing coming forward.
Nevertheless, HHP are in danger of losing the grant funding if site
acquistion/start on site for the affordable housing element is not made by
them before March 2006.

2.4 A proposal has been put to the Housing Corporation to move the grant
funding to other affordable housing sites on Oxmoor. While this approach
has been accepted in the past, the Housing Corporation have changed the
rules this year and will only fund the Moorhouse Drive site if it achieves spend
in this financial year. The alternative option is to consider a sale of the whole
site to HHP.

123



3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

5.1

IMPLICATIONS

Under the Code of Procurement, which also applies to sales of assets,
the disposal of land would normally take place following the receipt of
sealed tenders after a period of marketing. The Code does not cover a
situation whereby the sale of development land takes place to one
purchaser. Therefore Cabinet approval is required if this arrangement
is to be adopted.

In order to ensure that the best consideration reasonably obtainable is being
achieved, an independent valuation would be obtained for the site. This would
be based on the information being prepared for marketing including a draft
section 106 agreement.

Any sale to HHP would need to incorporate provisions to ensure there is an
agreed programme of development and to protect the Council's position
should the site not be developed in whole or HHP wish to sell on the site or
part of the site.

CONCLUSIONS

The sale of the site to HHP would enable the grant to be drawn down this
year. Without the grant, the affordable housing element would be delayed
and it may be necessary to alter the housing mix to incorporate more shared
ownership.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that:-

(a) the sale of land at Moorhouse Drive, Huntingdon, to HHP be
approved in principle

(b) the Director of Central Services, after consultation with the
Executive Councillors for Resources and Welfare, and Finance, be
authorised to approve the detailed terms for sale.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Oxmoor Action Plan
Site Location Plan (attached)
Report to Cabinet 29.1.04

Contact Officer: Frank Mastrandrea, Policy and Enabling Officer

Keith Phillips, Estate and Property Manager

& (01480) 388208
® (01480) 388260

124



Agenda Item 13

CABINET 15TH DECEMBER 2005
EMPLOYMENT PANEL 8™ FEBRUARY 2006

THE COUNCIL’'S SCHEME OF DELEGATION: INTERIM VARIATION PENDING
THE APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND TECHNOLOGY

(Report by the Head of Administration)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to invite the Cabinet to consider interim
arrangements relating to the Council's Scheme of Delegation pending the
recruitment of a replacement Director of Commerce and Technology.

1.2 As Members will be aware the current incumbent of the post of Director will
leave the Council’s employment on 20th January 2006.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Scheme of Delegation comprises part of the Council’'s Constitution and
consists of a schedule of powers delegated to Officers by the Council, by
Cabinet and by various Panels and Committees, often after consultation with
an Executive Councillor or a Panel/Committee Chairman. This report is
concerned solely with the powers delegated by the Cabinet and Employment
Panel.

2.2 Following the departure of the present incumbent of the post of Director of
Commerce and Technology, the Cabinet and Panel are invited to consider
appropriate interim arrangements in the event that powers delegated to the
Director need to be exercised pending the commencement of duty of his
successor.

2.3 The Council’s financial Proper Officer functions are already delegated to the
Head of Financial Services in the Director's absence and the Code of
Financial Management contains a similar provision with regard to the
administration of the Council’s financial affairs under Section 151 of the Local
Government Act 1972. The Cabinet and Employment Panel are invited to
consider interim arrangements with regard to those other powers delegated to
the Director where there is not a similar existing delegation to a Head of
Service.

3. PROPOSAL

3.1 Bearing in mind that the issue in any event will be time-limited by the
appointment process for the Director and having regard to the relationships of
Directors and Heads of Service in other instruments of governance, it is felt
that the matter could be dealt with most conveniently as an interim measure
by substituting the Chief Executive for the Director of Commerce and
Technology wherever the latter term appears in the Delegation Scheme.

4. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

125



4.1 Interim arrangements are required to facilitate the discharge of responsibilities
delegated to the Director of Commerce and Technology until a new Director is
recruited.

4.2 The most convenient way of addressing the matter in the interregnum would
be via the appointment of the Chief Executive for that purpose.

4.3 Accordingly it is -
RECOMMENDED
that, with effect from 20th January 2006 and pending the recruitment
of a new Director, the Chief Executive be authorised to undertake the
powers delegated to the Director of Commerce and Technology in the

Council’'s Scheme of Delegation, with the exception of those relating
to the financial Proper Officer and Section 151 functions..

Contact Officer: Roy Reeves - (01480) 388003

Background Papers: The Council’s Constitution

126



